
 

 

Please ask for Amanda Taylor: Telephone 01775 764454  

e-mail: cmorgan@sholland.gov.uk 

 

AGENDA 
 
 
 

 

 

Committee - GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT 

 

Date & Time - Thursday, 26 June 2014 at 6.30 pm 
 

Venue - Meeting Room 1, Council Offices, Priory Road, 
Spalding 

 
 

Membership of the Governance and Audit: 
 
Councillors: G R Aley (Chairman), F Biggadike, C J T H Brewis, P E Coupland, 
A Harrison, A M Newton and R M Rudkin (Vice-Chairman) 
 
Revised quorum 3. 

 
 

 Persons attending the meeting are 
requested to turn mobile telephones to 

silent mode 

 
 
 
 
 
Member Services 
Council Offices, Priory Road 
Spalding, Lincs PE11 2XE 
 
Date:  18 June 2014 



AGENDA 
PLEASE NOTE TIMINGS 
ARE APPROXIMATE 
 
TIME 
6.30 pm 1. Apologies for absence.  

 
 

6.31 pm 2. To sign as a correct record the minutes of: 
 

 

 2.a) The Governance and Audit Committee meeting held on 
26 March 2014 (enclosed).   
 

(Pages 1 - 
12) 

 2.b) The Special Governance and Audit Committee meeting 
held on 14 May 2014 (enclosed).   
 

(Pages 13 
- 14) 

6.35 pm 3. Fraud Report 2013-14 – To raise awareness of 
fraudulent activity detected during 2013/14.  (Report of 
the Assistant Director Finance (S151) enclosed.) 
  
Please note that a Fraud Officer will be in attendance 
at the meeting to give a brief overview of the 
Council's approach to tackling fraud. 
 

(Pages 15 
- 18) 

6.50 pm 4. Annual Internal Audit Report 2013-14 – To provide the 
Committee with the Head of Audit’s Annual Internal Audit 
Report.  (Report of the Head of Audit & Risk 
Management – Audit Lincolnshire and Assistant Director 
Finance (S151) enclosed.) 
 

(Pages 19 
- 36) 

7.05 pm 5. Internal Audit – To update the Committee on progress 
with the Audit Plan February 2014 to June 2014.  (Report 
of the Head of Audit & Risk Management – Audit 
Lincolnshire and Assistant Director Finance (S151) 
enclosed.) 
 

(Pages 37 
- 80) 

7.20 pm 6. Draft Annual Governance Statement 2013-14 – To seek 
approval for the Annual Governance Statement prior to 
submission to audit.  (Report of the Assistant Director 
Finance (S151) enclosed.) 
 

(Pages 81 
- 92) 

7.35 pm 7. Pre-Audit 2013-14 Financial Statements – To present the 
pre-audit 2013-14 Financial Statements for members’ 
consideration, prior to formal approval by the Assistant 
Director Finance.  (Report of the Assistant Director 
Finance (S151) enclosed.)  
   
Please note that Appendix A – Pre-audit Financial 
Statements 2013-14 will be circulated in due course. 
 
 
 
 

(Pages 93 
- 96) 



7.50 pm 8. Annual Treasury Management Review – To provide pre-
decision scrutiny to the Annual Treasury Management 
Review 2013-14 being proposed.  (Report of the 
Assistant Director Finance (S151)   
Enclosed.) 
 

(Pages 97 
- 108) 

8.05 pm 9. Local Code of Corporate Governance – To adopt a Local 
Code of Corporate Governance.  (Report of the Assistant 
Director Finance (S151) enclosed.) 
 

(Pages 
109 - 122) 

8.20 pm 10. Risk Management – To update the Governance and 
Audit Committee on Risk Management.  (Report of the 
Interim Business Development and Transformation 
Manager enclosed.) 
 

(Pages 
123 - 132) 

8.35 pm 11. Governance and Audit Work Programme – To set out the 
Work Programme of the Governance and Audit 
Committee.  (Report of the Assistant Director Democratic 
Services enclosed.) 
 

(Pages 
133 - 140) 

8.50 pm 12. Any other items which the Chairman decides are urgent. 
  
NOTE:           No other business is permitted unless by 

reason of special circumstances, which 
shall be specified in the minutes, the 
Chairman is of the opinion that the item(s) 
should be considered as a matter of 
urgency. 

 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



- 28 - 

 

 

Minutes of a meeting of the GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE held in 
Meeting Room 1, Council Offices, Priory Road, Spalding, on Wednesday, 26 March 
2014 at 6.30 pm. 
 

PRESENT 

  
G R Aley (Chairman) 

R M Rudkin (Vice-Chairman) 
 

 

F Biggadike 
C J T H Brewis 
 

P E Coupland 
A M Newton 
 

  
 

Apologies for absence were received from or on behalf of Councillors A Harrison    
 
In Attendance:  L Pledge (Audit Lincolnshire), J Castledene (Audit Lincolnshire), J 
Scott (Audit Lincolnshire),  N Bellamy (Audit Director, KPMG), Helen Brookes (Audit 
Manager, KPMG) the Assistant Director Finance (Section 151) and the Performance 
and Risk Officer. 
 

32. MINUTES  

 
The minutes of the meeting of the Governance and Audit Committee held on 30 
January 2014 were signed by the Chairman as a correct record. 
 

33. EXTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2013/14  

 
Consideration was given to KPMG’s External Audit Plan for 2013/14, which was 
presented to the Committee by the Audit Director, KPMG. 
 
The external auditor’s statutory responsibilities and powers were set out in the Audit 
Commission Act 1998 and the Audit Commission’s Code of Audit Practice.   
 
The Code of Audit Practice summarised the auditor’s responsibilities into two 
objectives, requiring them to review and report on the Authority’s: 
 

• Financial statements (including the Annual Governance Statement): providing an 
opinion on the Authority’s accounts; and 

• Use of resources: concluding on the arrangements in place for securing economy, 
efficiency and effectiveness in the Authority’s use of resources (the value for 
money conclusion). 

 
Section two of the report included headline messages, focusing on the key risks 
identified for the year.  The following risks were identified: 
 

• With regard to the financial statements audit, a single significant risk had been 
identified, relating to the triennial revaluation of the Local Government Pension 
Scheme for Lincolnshire.                                                

• With regard to the Value for Money (VFM) audit approach, one specific risk had 
been identified in relation to the Authority’s arrangements for securing financial 
resilience in terms of developing and delivering its savings plans.     

Page 1

Agenda Item 2.a)



- 29 - 

 

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT - 26 March 

2014 

 

 

 

 
Section three of the report outlined KPMGs audit approach.  This was undertaken in 
four stages: Stage 1 – Planning (January to March); Stage 2 – Control evaluation 
(April); Stage 3 – Substantive procedures (July to September); and Stage 4 – 
Completion (May and September). 
 
Section four of the report provided more detail on the triennial revaluation of the Local 
Government Pension Scheme for Lincolnshire, as highlighted above. 
 
Section five of the report provided detail on other audit issues.  Members were 
advised that during the year, the Council had implemented a new fixed asset register 
system.  There was a risk that the data transferred between the systems was 
incomplete or inaccurate and that these inaccuracies affected the figures in the 
accounts.  
 
In addition, professional standards required that consideration be given to two 
standard issues for all organisations.  These would be considered as a matter of 
course in the audit and any findings would be included within the ISA 260 report.  The 
two issues were management override of controls and fraudulent revenue 
recognition.  
 
Section six of the report explained KPMGs’ approach to VFM work.  In meeting their 
statutory responsibilities relating to economy, efficiency and effectiveness, the 
Commission’s Code of Audit Practice required auditors to: 
 

• Plan their work based on consideration of the significant risks of giving a wring 
conclusion (audit risk); and 

• Carry out only as much work as was appropriate to enable them to give a safe 
VFM conclusion. 

 
The VFM audit methodology remained unchanged from last year,  There were only 
relatively minor amendments to reflect the key issues facing the local government 
sector.  The specified criteria for VFM conclusion were: 
 

• The organisation had proper arrangements in place for securing financial 
resilience; and 

• The organisation had proper arrangements for challenging how it secured 
economy, efficiency and effectiveness.  

 
More information was also provided in this section on the identified risk regarding the 
Authority’s arrangements for securing financial resilience in terms of developing and 
delivering its savings plans, as detailed above.     
 
Section seven of the report provided information on the audit team, its proposed 
deliverable, the timescales and fees for their work.   
 
Under the audit deliverables, the following information would be provided to the 
Committee 

Page 2



- 30 - 

 

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT - 26 March 

2014 

 

 

 

 

• External Audit Plan – March 2014 

• Report to Those Charged with Governance (ISA 260 report) – September 2014 

• Auditor’s Report – September 2014 

• Whole of Government Accounts – September 2014 

• Annual Audit Letter – November 2014 
 
The Audit Fee for the 2013/14 audit of the Authority was £58,482.  The fee had not 
changed from that set out in the Audit Fee Letter 2013/14 issued in March 2013.  
However, KPMG had identified that additional audit work was likely to be required to 
review and test the Council’s new asset register system.  The impact on fees would 
be discussed with the Assistant Director (Finance) in due course.  
 
AGREED: 

 
That the External Audit Plan 2013/14 be agreed.                                                                              
 

34. CERTIFICATION OF GRANTS AND RETURNS 2012/13  

 
Consideration was given to KPMGs’ Certification of grants and returns 2012/13.  The 
report summarised the results of work on the certification of the Council’s 2012/13 
grant claims and returns.  For 2012/13, three returns with a total value of £47.5 
million were certified. 
 
Unqualified certificates were issued for two grants and returns but a qualification 
letter was necessary for the Housing and Council Tax Benefit claim.  Testing of the 
Housing and Council Tax Benefit claim identified several processing and 
classification errors, some of which could not be addressed through amendment, and 
were therefore reported in a qualification letter to the Department of Work and 
Pensions.  These results were consistent with the previous year where a qualified 
certificate and qualification letter were also issued in relation to the Housing and 
Council Tax Benefit claim. 
 
Adjustments were necessary to one of the Council’s returns as a result of the current 
year’s certification work.  An agreed adjustment, resulting in an amendment to the 
amount due to the Council, of £2,921 was made to the Housing and Council Tax 
Benefits Claim as a result of errors identified in the Council’s claim compilation 
methodology. 
 
The Council had adequate arrangements for preparing its grants and returns and 
supporting the certification work, but improvements were required in some areas.  
The number of errors identified from testing the Housing and Council Tax Benefit 
claim had again increased from the previous year, necessitating additional work to be 
undertaken by both the Council’s and KPMG’s own staff.  The quality of completion of 
the mandated workbooks by the appointed Council staff had diminished from 
previous years, necessitating additional work to be undertaken. 
 

Page 3



- 31 - 

 

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT - 26 March 

2014 

 

 

 

The overall fee for the certification of grants and returns was £10,782.  This was 
higher than the original estimate but 34% lower than the previous year.  The overall 
fee for claims certification was £1,782 higher than the original estimate although 
£5,534 lower than the previous years fee.  This had arisen as a result of changes to 
the Audit Commission fee regime and differences in the level of work required for 
each claim compared to a base year of 2010/11 in particular – additional work on the 
Housing and Council Tax Benefit claim and the pooling of Housing Capital Receipts 
return; and reduced work in relation to the National Non-Domestic Rates return.   
 
Listed at the end of the report were KPMG’s recommendations.  Each 
recommendation had been given a risk rating and action management would need to 
take had been agreed.  These recommendations would be followed up during the 
next year’s audit.  The recommendations identified were: 
 
Workbook Completion – Any staff involved in completion of the Audit Commission 
workbooks were encouraged to attend update training sessions on a periodic basis to 
ensure that they remained fully appraised of the Audit Commission requirements. 
Risk Based Verification Policy – It should be ensured that the appropriate report was 
prepared by the S151 Officer and subsequently formally approved by Members. 
 
AGREED: 

 
That the Certification of grants and returns 2012/13 be noted. 
 

35. PROTECTING THE PUBLIC PURSE  

 
Members gave consideration to a fraud briefing entitled ‘Protecting the public purse’.   
 
In November 2013, the Audit Commission published a national report, ‘Protecting the 
Public Purse 2013. Fighting fraud against local government’.  The report was 
intended to show those responsible for governance in local government bodies how 
they could fight fraud more effectively.   
 
Following publication of the national report, the Commission had produced tailored 
fraud briefings for individual councils.  These briefings: 
 

• Could be delivered to those responsible for governance at individual audited 
bodies, typically the audit committee or equivalent; 

• Had been developed by the Commission’s counter-fraud team; and 

• Provided contextual and comparative benchmark data 
 
The briefing was a tailored briefing that was undertaken every two years.  It provided 
information on national trends and individual data relating to South Holland.    
 
Following the presentation, members discussed the information and the following 
issues were raised: 
 

Page 4



- 32 - 

 

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT - 26 March 

2014 

 

 

 

• Members asked if SHDC could liaise with other Councils to learn of any 
successes they may have had in detecting fraud.  KPMG advised that all 
authorities were encouraged to do this. 

• KPMG advised that at the back of the full report ‘Protecting the Public Purse 2013’ 
was a checklist for Governance and Audit members to undertake self-analysis.  
This would be sent through to members for their attention. 

• Members requested that the fraud team at SHDC attend a future meeting of the 
Governance and Audit Committee to explain their work. 

• Members were advised that the Government was planning to introduce a single 
fraud initiative which would bring together all social benefit fraud.  This could 
result in some local resources relating to these areas being centralised, although 
a resource would still be retained to cover other types of fraud. 

• The Government had allocated £16.6 million to cover corporate fraud.  It was 
suggested that Lincolnshire authorities could work together collectively to gain 
some of this funding.  It was felt that it would be positive to show all authorities 
working together to fight fraud. 

 
AGREED: 

 
a) That the information from the ‘Protecting the public purse’ fraud briefing be noted; 

and 
 
b) That the self-analysis checklist appended to the ‘Protecting the Public Purse 

2013’ report be distributed to members of the Governance and Audit Committee 
in due course.   

 
36. INTERNAL AUDIT  

 
Consideration was given to the report of the Head of Audit and Risk Management 
(Audit Lincolnshire) and the Assistant Director, Finance, which updated the 
Committee on progress with the Audit Plan for the period November 2013 to 
February 2014.   
 
All the audits that were to be completed as part of the 2013/14 Audit Plan were in 
progress, and the auditors were on track to deliver reports by the end of March 2014.   
 
Two areas had been removed from the plan with the agreement of the Assistant 
Director – Finance.  The audit of Efficiency Savings would be deferred to next year’s 
plan as this would be a more useful time for the review to be undertaken.  The audit 
of Project Management had also been deferred – this was a follow up of a previous 
audit and had been deferred as there were no new projects to review that would 
demonstrate recommendations had been implemented.  
 
The following audit work had been completed and a final report issued: 
 

• Treasury Management – Full Assurance 

• Housing Benefits – Substantial Assurance 

• Council Tax and NNDR – Substantial Assurance 

Page 5



- 33 - 

 

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT - 26 March 

2014 

 

 

 

• Information Governance – Limited Assurance 

• Procurement – Limited Assurance 
 
The management summaries for the two Limited assurance audits reported were 
provided in Appendix 2 to the report.  Progress with the implementation of agreed 
management action on recommendations for previous audits resulting in ‘No’ or 
‘Limited’ assurance was followed up and reported in Appendix 3 (summary) and 
Appendix 4 (detail).  In the audits given Full and Substantial Assurance, it had been 
confirmed that the Council had sound processes in place.   
 
The following audits were currently in progress, at various stages of completion: 
 

• Welfare reform 

• Payroll 

• Bank Reconciliation 

• Accounts Payable 

• HR Strategy and Policies 

• Risk Management 

• Business Continuity 

• ICT audit – Data Migration of Fixed Asset Register 

• ICT audit – Systems Supporting Finance/General Ledger and Cash Receipting 
Processes 

 
Members attention was drawn to other matters of interest detailed within the report 
which included: 
 

• Audit Commission – Tough Times 2013 (November 2013) – This was the Audit 
Commission’s third and final report examining the scale and impact of funding 
reduction from Central Government; 

• Audit Committees – Practical Guide for Local Authorities and Police, 2013 Edition 
(CIPFA) – CIPFA had issued updated guidance on the function and operation of 
audit committees in local authorities and police bodies.  It represented CIPFA’s 
view of best practice; and 

• The Whistleblowing Commission – Report on the effectiveness of existing 
arrangements for workplace whistleblowing in the UK – November 2013. 

 
Members considered the report and the following issue was raised: 
 
Within Appendix 2, under the item on Procurement, where improvements could be 
made, one of the items stated ‘It was difficult to locate the contracts required as the 
contract register was held electronically on SHINE but access was restricted.  Once 
this information was available, we found that it did not contain the filing references to 
locate a contract’.  Members asked how long it had been between the access 
difficulty being identified and access being obtained.  The auditors were not aware of 
the timeframe but would find out this information and report back. 
 
 

Page 6



- 34 - 

 

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT - 26 March 

2014 

 

 

 

AGREED: 

 
That the report be noted 
 

37. DRAFT INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2014/15  

 
Consideration was given to the report of Audit Lincolnshire which presented to the 
Committee the Draft Internal Audit Plan 2014/15.  The report set out the proposed 
work of Internal Audit for 2014/15.  The plan had been developed using information 
from the Council’s Assurance Map, which identified assurances present and their 
source against the Authority’s critical activities and risks.  
 
The Internal Audit strategy had been developed to demonstrate how assurance could 
be given on: 
 

• The critical systems of the Council 

• Due diligence activities 

• Strategic Risks 

• Emerging risks 

• Key transformation programmes and projects  

• ICT Assurance 
 
The level of assurances in place had been identified by using the ‘Three lines of 
Assurance’ Model’ – Management, Third Party and Independent Audit.   
 
The combined assurance map showed where Internal Audit could co-ordinate their 
assurance work across the whole Council.  This approach would enable the Head of 
Audit to produce their annual opinion on the Council’s governance, risk and control 
framework for 2015.   
 
Each year, a risk based audit plan was developed, and in developing the plan, 
Internal Audit had identified a number of critical activities which they did not have the 
resources to view.  The Governance and Audit Committee could specifically request 
management to provide assurance on these areas.  Once the assurance map had 
been agreed, Internal Audit would provide a further report to the Governance and 
Audit Committee with more details.  These areas provisionally included: 
  

• Project Management 

• Performance Management 

• Waste Management/Household Collection 

• Sheltered Housing 

• Cemeteries 

• Environmental Protection/Licensing/Food Safety 

• Property Strategy/Asset Management plan 
 
Internal Audit co-ordinated their work on key financial systems with the Council’s 
External Auditors, KPMG.  They were working towards a joint working protocol which 

Page 7



- 35 - 

 

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT - 26 March 

2014 

 

 

 

set out where the External Auditor sought to place reliance on Internal Audit’s work.  
This ensured that the Council got the most out of its combined audit resource, 
keeping audit fees low. 
 
Internal Audit also worked with Internal Audit colleagues at East Lindsey District 
Council on systems that were provided to both councils by Compass Point Business 
Services (East Coast) Ltd, to avoid duplication of work and make the best use of 
resources.   
 
The type of areas included in the draft Internal Audit Plan 2014/15 were shown within 
the report, and detailed projects were outlined in Appendix C to the report.  A 
schedule of audits would be developed with management once the plan had been 
approved. 
 
Members were advised that the Plan was still draft and had to be presented to the 
Corporate Management Team for agreement.   
 

AGREED: 

 
That the proposed Internal Audit Plan for 2014/15 be approved.   
 

38. UK PUBLIC SECTOR INTERNAL AUDIT STANDARDS AND INTERNAL AUDIT 

CHARTER  

 
Consideration was given to the report of the Head of Audit and Risk Management 
(Audit Lincolnshire) and the Assistant Director Finance, which informed the 
Committee of the key elements of the UK Public Sector Internal Audit Standards and 
presented a draft Internal Audit Charter following the introduction of the Standards. 
 
In May 2011, the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) and 
the Chartered Institute of Internal Auditors (CIIA) agreed to collaborate in the 
development of the internal audit professions in the public sector.  As a result, UK 
Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) were developed. 
 
PSIAS came into force from 1 April 2013 and aimed to promote further improvement 
in the professionalism, quality and effectiveness of internal audit across both public 
and private sectors.  They reaffirmed the importance of robust, independent and 
objective internal audit arrangements and the key role it played in the Council’s 
assurance arrangements and supporting the Section 151 Officer, including the 
development of the annual governance statement.   
 
Detailed within the report were key elements of the Standard.  These key elements 
included: 
 

• Definition of Internal Audit 

• Code of Ethics 

• Purpose, Authority and Responsibility 

• Performance Standards and Professional Practice 

Page 8



- 36 - 

 

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT - 26 March 

2014 

 

 

 

 
In April 2013, CIPFA produced a Local Government Application Note for UK Public 
Sector Internal Audit Standards 2013, against which a self-assessment had been 
conducted by Audit Lincolnshire.  A summary of the results of this self-assessment by 
the Head of Audit was attached at Appendix A to the report.  This information, 
together with the outcome of Audit Lincolnshire’s Quality Assurance Improvement 
Programme, had been provided to the Assistant Direct Finance to help inform the 
Council’s annual review of the effectiveness of the internal audit function. 
 
Listed within the report were a number of actions/changes resulting from the new 
Standards. 
 
A draft Audit Charter was attached at Appendix B to the report for the Committee to 
review and comment upon.  The purpose of the Charter was to set out the nature, 
role, responsibilities and Authority of the Internal Audit Service and that of Council’s 
Senior Management and Governance and Audit Committee.   
 
As part of the report’s recommendations, the Committee had been asked to consider 
the impact of the UK Public Sector Internal Audit Standards and: a) Agree how they 
wished to be involved in the annual review of the effectiveness of the Council’s 
Internal Audit function; and b) The content/suitability of the draft Internal Audit charter 
and identify any changes the Committee wished to make, prior to its adoption.  The 
Committee agreed that it wished to be kept involved in the annual review of the 
effectiveness of the Council’s Internal Audit function and requested that a separate 
meeting be arranged to consider how to take this forward. 
 
AGREED: 

 
a) That the report be noted; and 
 
b) That the Governance and Audit Committee be involved in the annual review of the 

effectiveness of the Council’s Internal Audit function and a separate meeting be 
arranged to consider how to take this forward. 

 
39. CIPFA GOOD GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK AND GUIDANCE  

 
Consideration was given to the report of the Head of Audit and Risk Management 
(Audit Lincolnshire) and the Assistant Director, Finance, which presented members 
with an update on the CIPFA Good Governance Framework and Guidance and how 
this could impact on the Council’s Governance framework.  
 
In December 2012, CIPFA issued a revised ‘Delivering Good Governance in Local 
Government Framework’ with associated guidance.  These set out best practice to be 
followed for developing and maintaining a local code of governance, including the 
publication of an annual governance statement.  It defined six core principals by 
which Councils could test out their governance arrangements: 
 

Page 9



- 37 - 

 

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT - 26 March 

2014 

 

 

 

• Focussing on the purpose of the authority and on outcomes for the community 
and creating and implementing a vision for the local area; 

• Members and officers working together to achieve a common purpose with clearly 
defined functions and roles; 

• Promoting values for the authority and demonstrating the values of good 
governance through upholding high standards of conduct and behaviour; 

• Taking informed and transparent decisions which were subject to effective 
scrutiny and managing risk; 

• Developing the capacity and capability of members and officers to be effective; 

• Engaging with local people and other stakeholders to ensure robust 
accountability.                                                 

 
CIPFA had not changed the Framework from the original 2006 publication, however 
the guidance had been updated to reflect: 
 

• Changes to structures resulting from the way local government operated and 
undertook service provision – partnerships, collaboration, commissioning, shared 
services including shared management teams and chief executives.  

• New roles and greater flexibility through the Localism Act and other legislation. 

• Increasing transparency of date. 

• Responsibilities for public health. 

• Governance requirements to support the role of the Chief Financial Officer and 
Head of Internal Audit. 

 
It gave greater flexibility in demonstrating compliance but gave greater emphasis on 
scrutiny, fraud, maintaining standards and governance of risk. 
 
The Governance and Audit Committee played a key component of the Council’s 
governance framework – one of its roles was to oversee to Local Code of 
Governance and the development of the Annual Governance Statement. 
 
The updated guidance included assessment questions around each of the six 
principles of good governance, relating to shared chief executive and management 
teams, and were appended to the report.  Also attached were questions the 
Governance and Audit Committee may ask relating to the core principles and value 
for money. 
 
As part of Internal Audit planned audit work for 2012/13, a review of the Council’s 
Corporate Governance framework was undertaken against the CIPFA/SOLACE 
Framework – Delivering Good Governance in Local Governance.   
 
Internal Audit provided substantial assurance and recommended that the Council 
reviewed and updated its Code of Corporate Governance to reflect new 
requirements.  Consideration and inclusion of these requirements would ensure the 
local code reflected best practice and compliance with the principles of good 
governance. 
 

Page 10



- 38 - 

 

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT - 26 March 

2014 

 

 

 

The Local Government Association had recently published the outcome of its peer 
review on South Holland and Breckland Councils.  It was suggested that the 
Committee may wish to consider the key messages in the report and any impact they 
may have on the governance arrangements of the Council and assurances it may 
wish to seek as part of it’s role and remit.      
 
The Assistant Director, Finance advised that a revision of the Local Code of 
Governance had been prepared, and that the CIPFA guidance was reflected in the 
governance arrangements.  He was aiming to bring a report to the next Committee 
meeting in June.  The Chairman offered to provide assistance in this should it be 
required. 
 
Members commented that the information provided in the two appendices was very 
helpful and that it may be useful to consider the questions at a separate meeting of 
the Committee. 
 
AGREED: 

 
a) That the information provided within the report be noted; and 
 
b) That the questions detailed within appendices A and B to the report be considered 

at a separate meeting of the Governance and Audit Committee. 
 

40. RISK MANAGEMENT  

 
Consideration was given to the report of the Assistant Director, Democratic Services, 
which updated the committee on risk management as at March 2014. 
 
Since the last risk report received by the Committee in June 2013, a new 
performance management process had been implemented, and the way in which this 
was managed and reviewed was detailed within the report.  In addition, the officers 
who had previously supported risk management within the organisation had left the 
authority, and the Performance and Risk Officer (James Edwards) had now taken 
over this role.   
 
Risks were grouped into two categories: 
 

• Strategic – these were risks that affected the whole and long term plan of the 
council  These risks could fundamentally impact upon the Authority’s reputation, 
the organisation that it was, and the dependable, accountable delivery of public 
services. 

• Operational – These risks concerned the day to day activities in the delivery of 
functions and services. 

 
Risks were rated using a 3x3 matrix through a numerical number that combined the 
impact score of the risk occurring, with the likelihood score of it happening.  Risks 
were then classed as High, Medium or Low risks dependant on their rating. 
 

Page 11



- 39 - 

 

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT - 26 March 

2014 

 

 

 

The risk summary covered two areas;  a) The risk summary table showed the total 
number of risks by category and the percentage of high, medium and low risks within 
each category; and b) The exceptions report, a detailed report to provide focus on 
high level risks.   
 
A Risk Summary Table was detailed within the report, showing the risk position at 14 
March 2014.  The table detailed 11 Strategic risks and 62 Operational risks.  
Therefore: 
 

• Strategic Risk Overview: Overall rating was High 

• Operational Risk Overview: Overall rating was Medium 
 
The Exceptions Report was attached at Appendix B to the report. 
 
AGREED: 

 
That the report of the Assistant Director, Democratic Services, be noted. 
 

41. GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME  

 
Consideration was given to the report of the Assistant Director, Democratic Services, 
which provided details of the Committee’s work programme.  A copy of the work 
programme was attached as an appendix within the report.   
 
AGREED: 

 
That the report be noted. 
 
(The meeting ended at 8.02 pm) 
 
(End of minutes) 
 

Page 12



- 1 - 

 

 

Minutes of a meeting of the GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT held in the Council 
Chamber, Council Offices, Priory Road, Spalding, on Wednesday, 14 May 2014 at 
7.10 pm. 
 

PRESENT 

  
G R Aley (Chairman) 

R M Rudkin (Vice-Chairman) 
 

 

F Biggadike 
C J T H Brewis 
 

P E Coupland 
A Harrison 
 

A M Newton 
 

 
1. ELECTION OF A CHAIRMAN FOR THE ENSUING YEAR  

 
Councillor Aley was elected Chairman for the ensuing year. 
 

2. ELECTION OF A VICE-CHAIRMAN FOR THE ENSUING YEAR  

 
Councillor Rudkin was elected Vice-Chairman for the ensuing year. 
 
 
(The meeting ended at 7.12 pm) 
 
(End of minutes) 
 

Page 13

Agenda Item 2.b)



This page is intentionally left blank



SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
Report of: The Assistant Director Finance (S151) 
 
To:    Governance and Audit Committee – 26 June 2014  
 
(Author:  Mark Finch – Assistant Director Finance (S151)) 
 
Subject: Fraud Report 2013-14 
 
Purpose: To raise awareness of fraudulent activity detected during 2013-14 
 

 
Recommendation:  
 
a) To note the report. 
 

 
1.0 BACKGROUND 
 
1.1 The Audit Commission carries out a survey of fraud activity measured by authorities 

throughout the UK on an annual basis. This report summarises South Holland’s survey 
submission for the year ended 31st March 2014.  

 
1.2 The following table shows the number of cases recorded for the annual return. There were 

also a number of cases of householders claiming single person occupancy (in order to gain 
a council tax discount) where circumstances had changed, and the discount was dis-
applied. The numbers of these had not been recorded. 

1.3 The commencement of the Local Council Tax Reduction Scheme in 2013-14 (which 
replaced Council Tax Benefit) introduced a new category of fraud to be reported, which is 
now reflected in the table. 

1.4 None of the cases reflected in the table below involved officers or members of the authority. 

Table 1 - Summary of Identified Fraud Cases

No. Cases £ Value No. Cases £ Value

Housing & Council Tax Benefit 32             54,343      36             75,212      

Council Tax Reduction -            -            8               894           

2012-13 2013-14

 
 
1.5 All cases identified related to housing and council tax benefits. Five of the cases were taken 

to court and ended in successful prosecutions. This compares with four cases which also 
resulted in successful prosecutions in the previous year. 

 
1.6 The survey covered a number of other areas, but there were no recorded fraud cases.  

These areas included housing tenancy; national non-domestic rates; procurement, 
insurance and economic/third sector; debt and investment; payroll and expenses; and 
abuse of position fraud. 

 
1.7 Authorities are also required to report to the Audit Commission where any cases involve 

fraud greater than £10,000. There were three reported cases in 2013-14, compared with 
none the previous year. 

 

Page 15

Agenda Item 3.



1.8 It is expected that CIPFA will organise the Fraud Survey in future years following the 
closure of the Audit Commission and dispersal of its functions.   

 
2.0 OPTIONS 
 
2.1 To note the report. 
 
3.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION 
 
3.1 To meet corporate governance best practice. 

 
4.0 EXPECTED BENEFITS 
 
4.1 To raise awareness of fraud activity identified during the financial year.  
 
5.0 IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.1 Carbon Footprint / Environmental Issues 
 
5.1.1 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications. 
 
5.2 Constitution & Legal 
 
5.2.1 This report has been written in line with the Constitution. 
 
5.3 Contracts 
 
5.3.1 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications. 
 
5.4 Corporate Priorities 
 
5.4.1 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications. 
 
5.5 Crime and Disorder  
 

5.5.1 The number of prosecutions is covered in the report. 
 
5.6 Equality and Diversity / Human Rights 
 
5.6.1 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications. 
 
5.7 Financial  
 
5.7.1 Reported in statistics. 
 
5.8 Risk Management  
 
5.8.1 The authority recognises the risk of fraud and implements appropriate controls to mitigate 

these risks. 
 
5.9 Staffing 
 
5.9.1 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications.  
 
 

Page 16



5.10 Stakeholders / Consultation / Timescales 
 
5.10.1 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications. 
  
6.0 WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED 
 
6.1 None. 
 
7.0 ACRONYMS  
 
7.1 CIPFA – Chartered Institute for Public Finance and Accountancy 
 

Background papers:- None 

 
Lead Contact Officer 
Name and Post: Mark Finch 
Telephone Number: 01775 761161 
Email: mark.finch@breckland-sholland.gov.uk 
 
Director / Officer who will be attending the Meeting:  
Mark Finch – Assistant Director Finance (S151) 
 
Appendices attached to this report:  
None 
 
 

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank



SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
Report of: Head of Audit & Risk Management – Audit Lincolnshire and Assistant 

Director, Finance 
 
To:    Governance & Audit Committee – 26 June 2014 
 
(Author:  Lucy Pledge – Head of Audit & Risk Management – Audit Lincolnshire 

 Mark Finch – Assistant Director, Finance (S151)) 
 
Subject: Annual Internal Audit Report 2013-14 
 
Purpose: To provide the Committee with the Head of Audit’s Annual Internal Audit 

Report 
 

 
Recommendations:  
 
1.  That the Committee consider the Head of Audit’s Annual Report and Opinion for 

2013/14 and identifies any actions it requires; and  
 
2.  That the Committee consider this Annual Report when scrutinising the Annual 

Governance Statement. 
 

 
1.0 BACKGROUND 

 
1.1 The purpose of the annual internal audit report (Annex A) is to provide a summary of 

Internal Audit work undertaken during 2013/2014 timed to support the Annual 
Governance Statement by providing an opinion on the organisation’s governance, 
risk management and internal control environment.  

 
2.0 OPTIONS 
 
2.1 Consider the content of the Annual Internal Audit report  
 
3.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION(S) 
 
3.1 To monitor Internal Audit progress including the results of Audit work. 
 
4.0 EXPECTED BENEFITS (AND MAIN REPORT) 
 
4.1 To meet the Audit Committees terms of reference in monitoring the work of Internal 

Audit. 
 

Overall our opinion in the four areas was substantial (green) which indicates 
performing well: no concerns that significantly affect the governance framework and 
successful delivery of the Council priorities. 
 
The Annual Internal Audit Report of South Holland District Council aims to present a 
summary of the audit work undertaken over the past year.  In particular: 

 

Page 19

Agenda Item 4.



• Include an opinion on the overall adequacy of and effectiveness of the 
governance framework and internal control system and the extent to which the 
Council can rely on it; 

• Inform how the plan was discharged and of overall outcomes of the work 
undertaken; 
 

• Draw attention to any issues particularly relevant to the Annual Governance 
Statement. 
 

5.0 IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.1 Carbon Footprint / Environmental Issues 
 
5.1.1 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications. 
 
5.2 Constitution & Legal 
 
5.2.1 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications. 
 
5.3 Contracts 
 
5.3.1 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications. 
 
5.4 Corporate Priorities 
 
5.4.1 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications. 
 
5.5 Crime and Disorder  
 
5.5.1 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications. 
 
5.6 Equality and Diversity / Human Rights 
 
5.6.1 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications. 
 
5.7 Financial  
 
5.7.1 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications. 
 
5.8 Risk Management  
 
5.8.1 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications. 
 
5.9 Staffing 
 
5.9.1 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications. 
  
5.10 Stakeholders / Consultation / Timescales 
 
5.10.1 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications. 
  
6.0 WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED 
 
6.1 Not applicable. 

Page 20



7.0 ACRONYMS  
 
7.1 None. 
 

Background papers:- None 

 
Lead Contact Officer 
 
Name/Post: Lucy Pledge - Head of Audit & Risk Management, Audit Lincolnshire 
Telephone Number: 01522 553692 
Email: lucy.pledge@lincolnshire.gov.uk 

 
Director / Officer who will be attending the Meeting:   
Lucy Pledge – Head of Audit & Risk Management – Audit Lincolnshire; and  
Mark Finch – Assistant Director, Finance (S151)) 
 
Key Decision: No  
 
Exempt Decision: No  
 
Appendices attached to this report:  
Appendix A – Annual Internal Audit Report 2013-14 

Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank



                              

Lucy Pledge 

Head of Audit  
 

v
3

  
1
6

..
0
6

.1
4

  
N

&
S

D
C

 A
n

n
u

a
l 
In

te
rn

a
l 
A

u
d

it
  

R
e
p

o
rt

 

South Holland 
District Council 
Internal Audit 
Annual Report 
2013/14 

 

P
age 23



 

           CONTENTS 

 Para No 

Executive Summary 
 
Purpose of Annual Report 
Our opinion on the governance framework and internal control 
environment 
 

 
 
1 

2-4 

How we came to our opinion. 
 

5 - 19 

Scope of our work 
 
Delivery of internal audit plan 2013/14 
Restrictions on scope 
Other areas of audit activity 
 

 
 

20 
21 
22 

Quality Assurance 23-30 

 
Effectiveness of Internal Audit 

 

 
31-32 

Appendix 1 - Internal Audit Assurances Given 2013/14 
Appendix 2 - Outstanding Internal Audit Recommendations as at 31st    March 2014 
Appendix 3 - Quality Assurance Framework 

 

 

        

 

Distribution List   
Governance  and Audit 

Committee 

Chief Executive 

 

Director Resources External Audit 

P
age 24



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                                                                                                              
                           Governance                        Risk Management                           Internal Control   Financial Control 

                                

                                                                                                                                                              
                                        

 

                                     1Performing well                           Performing Well                               2Performing Adequately               Performing Well 

                                                                      .                                                  
                                                           
1
 Green - Performing Well - No concerns that significantly affect the governance framework and successful delivery of the Council priorities. 

2
 Amber – Performing Adequately Some improvement required to manage a high risk in a specific business area and medium risks across the Council. 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 

Purpose of Annual Report   
 

1  The Annual Internal Audit Report of South Holland 
District Council aims to present a summary of the 
audit work undertaken over the past year.  In 
particular: 

 
� Include an opinion on the overall adequacy of and 

effectiveness of the internal control system and 
the extent to which the Council can rely on it; 

� Inform how the plan was discharged and of 
overall outcomes of the work undertaken; 

� Draw attention to any issues particularly relevant 
to the Annual Governance Statement. 

 

 
Our Opinion 

 
2         We have taken account of structures and processes, 

which have been put in place to ensure that the Council 
promotes good governance in the way it operates.    

 
3 The Governance & Audit Committee plays a key role to 

help ensure that these arrangements are working 
effectively. They regularly review the governance 
framework and consider draft and final versions of the 
Annual Governance Statement.    

 
4 From the work we have undertaken during the year our 

opinion on the effectiveness of South Holland District 
Council’s arrangements for governance, risk 
management and control is as follows: P

age 25



         

How we came to our opinion 
 

Internal and Financial Control 
 

5 We took account of the outcome of our internal audit work 
during the year – Appendix 1 shows all audits completed in 
2013/14.  Our work identified a number of areas where our 
assurance opinion identified some concerns on service delivery 
arrangements, management of risks and operation of controls.  
The following areas continue to have outstanding actions by 
management:- 

 
5.1      Information Governance – February 2014 
 

To ensure the Council complies with the Data Protection and 
Freedom of Information Acts, officers and members need to 
have a clear understanding of the Acts’ requirements and the 
processes which are in place to deal with complaints or 
requests for information.   
 
Our review identified a number of improvements designed to 
support staff and members to discharge their information 
governance responsibilities.  These include training and 
awareness for staff and Members on responsibilities for 
managing information and records. 

 
5.2      Business Continuity – May 2014 

 
At present, we are only able to provide limited assurance on 
SHDC's Business Continuity arrangements as there are a 
number of key areas that still need to be fully developed and 
completed. Whilst these remain outstanding, there is a risk that 
staff will not know how to respond to an incident, or that the 
response will not be well co-ordinated and disruption to services 
will be for longer than necessary. 

 
 

       The areas to address include: 
� Completion of all Business Continuity Plans with regular reviews 
and updates scheduled 

� Promotion and embedding of processes with greater emphasis 
placed on BCM at senior management level 

� Regular exercising of the Business Continuity Plans 
� Training on Business Continuity for all staff 

 
With changes in roles, responsibilities and management 
arrangements in recent years, including the formation of 
CompassPoint Business Services and links with Breckland, it is clear 
that focus on the BCM framework and testing for resilience has 
'dipped' and plans have not been kept up to date. Our discussions 
and review of documentation confirmed that, with the involvement of 
JEMS, steps are now being taken to progress service area plans and 
determine training requirements.  A business continuity exercise has 
been scheduled for 2014/15. 
 

5.3  Procurement – December 2013 
 

Our audit review identified occasions where the Council’s contract 
regulations and procedures have not been followed when procuring 
goods and services. Where these rules are not applied, there is a risk 
that the Council cannot demonstrate transparency and fairness in the 
selection of suppliers, and may not have achieved value for money. 

 
5.4  Payroll – June 2014 

 
Our review found that control design around checking of the payroll 
has changed since the previous audit.  This, in our opinion, increases 
the risk that a fraud or error will not be detected during payroll 
processing, and whilst budget holders do not receive detailed 
information on staffing costs they cannot provide an additional 
control. Discussions are currently underway to agree the acceptable 
level of risk the Council is prepared to accept in this business area. 

 

P
age 26



 
6 We suggest the Council consider whether the areas contained 

in section 5 should be included in the Annual Governance 
Statement 2014. 

 
7         We have co-ordinated the level of assurance which is provided 

on the Councils’ critical systems key risks and projects:  
 

          
           The red assurance relate to the strategic risks facing the 

Council and three projects.  The overall assurance for critical 
activities only is 37% Amber and 63% green.  

 
 
 

         Benchmarking – Comparison of Assurances 
 
8       The charts below show the assurance opinions given in 2013/14 

compared to those in 2012/13.   Our audit plan includes different 
activities each year – it is therefore not unexpected that these vary 
however the assurance levels do give an insight on the application 
of the Council's control environment.  We can report that there were 
no instances of a ‘no assurance’ opinion this year.  Details of 
systems reviewed can be found in Appendix 1: 

       
 
                         Assurance levels 2012/13 and 2013/14 

 
 

P
age 27



 
           
Benchmarking – Comparison of Recommendations 
 
9      The charts below show the comparison of internal audit 

recommendations made 2012/13 and 2013/14.  Details of 
systems reviewed can be found in Appendix 1: 

 
            Comparison of Recommendations 2012/13 and 2013/14 

                

                                                
10         We track the implementation of agreed management actions.  

Over the past year management have implemented 92% of the 
agreed actions due by 12 June 2014.    Where action has not 
been taken we have escalated the activity to the Governance & 
Audit C Committee.  We will continue to work with the 
Committee to monitor implementation of recommended action 
during 2014/15.  The table in Appendix 2 provides details of the 
areas with outstanding management action.   

 

 
Counter Fraud  

 
11  The Council has put in place a framework to help reduce the risk of 

fraud. This largely complies with the 'Fighting Fraud Locally' 
agenda promoted by the National Fraud Authority.  Action has 
been taken to implement the recommendations made by Internal 
Audit within their 2012/13 report. 

 
12 The Council also engages positively with the National Fraud 

Initiative.   
 
13       Based on the above we have assessed the internal control 

framework as amber – performing adequately. 
 
14       Our work provides an important assurance element to support the 

External Auditor’s opinion on the Council’s Statement of Accounts.  
During the year we reviewed: 

 

• Treasury Management 

• Bank Reconciliation 

• Payroll 

• Creditors 

• Council tax & benefit 

• ICT – fixed asset data migration 
 
15  Our work did identify some areas of improvement over the payroll 

systems however overall we have assessed finance as green – 
performing well. 

  
Risk Management 

 
16  The Council has well established risk management arrangements 

in place that work effectively.  Based on this we have assessed the 
risk management arrangements as green – performing well.   
 

P
age 28



 
Governance 

 
17 We have taken account of structures and processes, which 

have been put in place to ensure that the Council promotes 
good governance in the way it operates. 

 
18 CIPFA has updated its best practice guidance on 'Delivering 

Good Governance in Local Government'.  The review of the 
Council's local code is completed.  Based on this we have 
assessed the governance arrangements green – performing 
well.   

 
19       During the year there has been a number of changes in 

membership of the Governance & Audit Committee – it may be 
an opportunity for the Committee to consider reflecting on it's 
work plan and undertaking a self- assessment of its 
effectiveness – producing an annual report. 

 
Scope of Our Work 
 
Delivery of internal audit plan 2013/14 
 
20 The audit plan for 2013/14 was approved by the Audit and 

Accounts Committee on the 18th April 2013.  We are pleased to 
report that by the end of the year 99% of the revised audit plan 
was delivered. 

 
 Restrictions on Scope / Disagreements 

 
21 In carrying out our work we identified no unexpected 

restrictions to the scope of our work.  In the main there have 
been no disagreements on the weighting of recommendations 
or assurance levels in final reports.  However, we are currently 
discussing the control environment and the level of risk over 
the payroll system with the Section 151 Officers. 

 

 
Other Areas of Audit Activity 
22       The audit plan provides limited scope for additional work. We 

provided advice where required on good practice, risk and internal 
control. 

 
Quality Assurance  
 
23 We recognise the importance of meeting customer expectations 

as well as conforming to the UK Public Sector Internal Audit 
Standards.  We continually focus on delivering high quality audit 
to our clients – seeking opportunities to improve where we can.   

 
24 Our commitment to quality begins with ensuring that we recruit 

develop and assign appropriately skilled and experienced people 
to undertake your audits. 

 
25         Our audit practice includes ongoing quality reviews for all our 

assignments.  These reviews examine all areas of the work 
undertaken, from initial planning through to completion and 
reporting.  Key targets have been specified - that the assignment 
has been completed on time, within budget and to the required 
quality standard. 

26 Our Quality Assurance Framework (Appendix 3) includes all 
aspects of the Internal Audit Activity – including governance, 
professional practice and communication.  We are able to 
evidence the quality of our audits through performance and 
delivery of audits, feedback from our clients and an annual self-
assessment and the annual review of the effectiveness of the 
Internal Audit Function by the Council.    

 27 There is a financial commitment for training and developing staff. 
Training provision is continually reviewed through the appraisal 
process and regular one to one meetings.  A training programme 
has been developed to ensure that staff are kept up to date with 
the latest technical / professional information and to ensure that 
they are equipped with the appropriate skills to perform their role.   

P
age 29



 

28         Audit Lincolnshire conforms to the UK Public Sector Internal 
Audit Standards.  Our quality assurance framework has 
however identified the following areas of improvement: 

� Ensuring contemporary reporting  

� More regular client liaison arrangements with Corporate 
Management Team 

 
29         We have a Quality Assurance Improvement Plan which tracks 

all continuing improvement actions throughout the year.   
 

30 Although internal and external auditors carry out their work 
with different objectives in mind, many of the processes are 
similar and it is good professional practice that they should 
work together closely.  Wherever possible, External Audit will 
place reliance and assurance upon internal audit work.   

 
Effectiveness of Internal Audit 
 
31 Internal Audit’s performance is measured against a range of 

indicators.  The table in Figure 1 shows performance at the end 
of the year.  

 
32      We regularly canvass opinions on audit planning, report and 

communication from management responsible for activities 
under review. They score the effectiveness of our service as 
excellent, good, adequate or poor.  The table below outlines the 
responses by management on our service.  We are pleased to 
report that overall feedback ranges from good to excellent.   

 

Figure 1 – Performance Results 2014 

Performance Indicator Target Actual @ 

12/06/14 

Percentage of plan 

completed. 

100%  

(revised plan) 

99% 

Percentage of key 

financial systems 

completed. 

100%  100% 

Percentage of 

recommendations 

agreed. 

100%  100% 

Percentage of 

recommendations 

implemented (13/14 

audits) 

100% or escalated  92% 

Timescales Draft report issued within 

10 working days of 

completing audit.  

Final report issued within 5 

working days of closure 

meeting / receipt of 

management responses.     

� 50% 
 
 

� 88% 
 
 

 

Client Feedback on 

Audit (average) 

Good to excellent Excellent 

 

 

   
      
 
 

P
age 30



 
                      

 

  

Questions    

A. Audit Planning B. Audit Report C. Communication 

1. Consultation on audit coverage 3. Quality of report 
6. Feedback of findings during 
audit 

2. Fulfilment of scope and 
objectives 4. Accuracy of findings 7. Helpfulness of auditor(s) 

 5. Value of report 
8. Prompt delivery of the audit 
report 

P
age 31



 

P
age 32



Internal Audit Assurances Given 2013/14 

Activity Assurance 
Total 

Recs 

Priority of 

Recommendations 

High Medium Low 

Financial Assurance 

BACS / DD arrangements Substantial 6  4 2 

Bank Reconciliation Substantial 3  2 1 

Treasury Management Full 2  1 1 

Council tax/NNDR Substantial 5 3 1 1 

Housing Benefit  Substantial 4  3 1 

Housing Benefit Subsidy Grant Certification work 

Payroll* Limited 9 3 6  

Creditors (Accounts Payable)* Substantial Nearing 

Completion (ELDC work) 

    

ICT – Fixed Asset Register Data Migration Full 1  1  

Assurance on Critical Activities 

Combined Assurance Completed     

Asset Management Substantial 6  4 2 

Community Development - Safeguarding Substantial 1  1  

Community Development – Health 

Initiatives 

Limited 3 2 1  

HR Strategy & Policies Substantial 4  4  

Risk Management Substantial 7  6 1 

Business Continuity* Limited 10 4 3 3 

Welfare Reform Substantial 5 1 3 1 

Procurement Limited 6 2 3 1 

Information Governance Limited 23 5 11 7 

ICT – application review – cash receipting Full 1   1 

Total  96 20 54 22 

Project Management & Savings Targets were removed from the plan at the request of the S151 Officer and with the 

agreement of the Governance & Audit Committee.

Appendix 1 

End of Appendix 1 
 

Page 33



 

 

Outstanding recommendations as at 12/06/14 

 

 

 

Audit Area 

 

 

Date 

 

Assurance 

 

Number 

of Recs 

 

 

Implem’d 

 

Outstanding 

 

Due 

date not 

yet 

reached  

H M L 

Asset & Property 

Asset Management Sept 

2013 

Substantial 6 4  1  1 

Democratic Services 

Risk Management April 

2014 

Substantial 6     6 

Information 

Governance 

Feb 

2014 

Limited 23 8  5  10 

Note A1 

Finance 

Counter Fraud July 

2012 

Substantial 5 4    1 

Income Generation Feb 

2013 

Limited 4 4    Note A1 

Budget Management Feb 

2013 

Substantial 9 8  1   

BACS / DD Nov 

2013 

Substantial 6 5    1 

Bank Reconciliation Mar 

2014 

Substantial 3 2    1 

Treasury 

Management 

Mar 

2014 

Full 2 1    1 

Housing Benefit  Mar 

2014 

Substantial 4 2    2 

Council tax/NNDR Mar 

2014 

Substantial 5     5 

Appendix 2 

Page 34



Welfare Reform Feb 

2014 

Substantial 5 3    2 

Procurement Dec 

2013 

Limited 6 2    4 

ICT 

AX Security 11/12 April 

2012 

Limited 20 19 1   Note A1 

ICT Infrastructure Dec 

2012 

Substantial 21 11  1  9 

ICT Disaster 

Recovery 

Nov 

2012 

Limited 4 3 1    

ICT Data Migration 

Fixed Asset Register 

Mar 

2014 

Full 1     1 

ICT Application Audit 

– Cash Receipting 

May 

2014 

Full 1     1 

Housing 

HRA Business Plan Oct 

2012 

Limited / 

Substantial 

9 6    3 

Human Resources 

HR Strategy & Policy April 

2014 

Substantial 4     4 

 

Note A1: Further discussion is required with management on recommendation sign off as some areas are 

still planned rather than delivered. Also discussion required on one recommendation from the 12/13 payroll 

audit. 

 

 
 

End of Appendix 2

Page 35



Audit Lincolnshire – Quality Assurance Improvement Programme  

Audit Managers
Principal
Auditors 

Quality

Assurance

Audit Managers 

Review

Supervision

Individual 

Auditors

HIA

Quality  

Periodic quality assurance assessments 

• Obtain periodic assurance that engagement planning, fieldwork 

conduct and reporting /communicating results  adheres to audit 

practice standards 

• Provide HIA with quarterly highlight reports on outcome of reviews 

. 

Ongoing monitoring – quality built into the audit 

process 

Quality checks and oversight are undertaken throughout 

the audit engagement ensuring that processes and 

practice are consistently applied and working well. 

, 

  

• Conduct all audit engagements in accordance with audit 

practice standards / PSIAS 

• Behave at all times in accordance with the Code of Ethics 

/ Code of Conduct  

• Promote the standards and their use throughout the 

Internal Audit activity 

• Commitment to delivering quality services   

Quality outcomes / process designed to deliver a 

consistently high quality audit service to our clients - fit 

for purpose / meet client expectations / conform to 

PSIAS  

Quality 
Assurance

Quality 

Plan

HIA

 

 

Annual self- assessment  

•  Head of Internal Audit - develop & maintain Quality Assurance 

Improvement Programme (QAIP)  & improvement action plan 

• Focus on evaluating conformance with Internal Audit Charter, 

definition of Internal Audit, Code of Ethics & the Standards  

• Arrange an External Assessment – co-ordinated with Audit 

Committee (planned for 2015) 

  

/ 

• Obtain on-going assurance that that engagement planning, 

fieldwork conduct and reporting /communicating results  

adheres to audit practice standards 

• Undertake engagement supervision and review 

 

Quality improvement plan - HIA reporting to Audit Committee 

on the outcome of Quality Assurance – with improvement 

action plan and any significant non-conformance included in 

the Annual Report / Annual Governance Statement  

 Plan  

&

Supervision

Review

Individual 

Auditors

Principal
Auditors 

&

Appendix 3 

P
age 36



SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
Report of: Head of Audit & Risk Management – Audit Lincolnshire and Assistant 

Director Finance (S151) 
 
To:    Governance & Audit Committee – 26 June 2014 
 
(Author:  Lucy Pledge – Head of Audit & Risk Management – Audit Lincolnshire 

 Mark Finch – Assistant Director, Finance) 
 
Subject: Internal Audit 
 
Purpose: To update the Committee on progress with the Audit Plan February 2014 

to June 2014 
 

 
Recommendation:  
 
a) That members consider the content and outcomes of Internal Audit work and identify 

any action required. 
 

 
1.0 BACKGROUND 

 
The purpose of this report is to: 

 

• Advise of progress being made with the 2014/15 Audit Plan 

• Provide details of the audit work during the period  

• Provide details of the current position with agreed management actions in 
 respect of previously issued reports 

• Update the committee on any changes to the 2014/15 Audit Plan 
 
2.0 OPTIONS 
 
2.1 Consider the content and outcomes of Internal Audit work and identify any action 
 required. 
 
3.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION 
 
3.1 To monitor Internal Audit progress including the results of Audit work. 
 
4.0 EXPECTED BENEFITS (AND MAIN REPORT) 
 
4.1 To meet the Audit Committees terms of reference in monitoring the work of Internal 

Audit. 
 
Key Messages  
 
4.2.  All the audits that are to be completed as part of the 2013/14 Audit Plan are now 
complete. A number of the finance audits have also been delivered by our colleagues at 
ELDC. 
 
4.3.  Work is progressing on the 2014/15 plan. 
 

Page 37

Agenda Item 5.



Internal Audit work completed from March 2014 to May 2014 
 
4.4. The following audit work has been completed and a final report issued:  
 

Full Assurance Substantial Assurance 
 

Limited Assurance 

• Treasury 
Management  

• ICT application 
review-cash 
receipting systems 

• ICT - Fixed Asset 
Register 

• ICT – AX system 
application review 

 

• Welfare Reform 

• Bank Reconciliation 

• Accounts Payable 

• HR Strategies and 
Policies 

• Risk Management 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Note: The Governance & Audit Committee should note that the assurance expressed is 
at the time of issue of the report but before the full implementation of the agreed 
management action plan.  Definitions levels are shown in Appendix 1.  
 
We are reporting no Limited assurance audits in this period. There are three remaining 
2013/14 audits at draft report stage, Payroll, Business Continuity and Accounts payable, 
the former two are provisionally Limited assurance. 
 

4.5. Progress with the implementation of agreed management action on 
recommendations for previous audits resulting in ‘No’ or ‘Limited’ assurance is 
followed up and reported in Appendix 3 (summary) and Appendix 4 (detail).  

 
4.6. In the audits given Full and Substantial Assurance, we confirmed that the Council has 

sound processes in place: 
 

Welfare Reform – Substantial Assurance 
 
This was a joint audit for SHDC and ELDC. We have reviewed how welfare reform has 
been implemented at each council focussing on:  

• Local Council Tax Support Scheme 

• Welfare and Discretionary Housing Payments 

• Under- occupancy and the Benefits Cap 
 
We found that at both Councils the process for implementing the Council Tax 
Support scheme was well managed and effective. In particular: 

• The decision making process was clearly evidenced  

• Training was provided to staff & Members 

• Communications and Consultation were undertaken in line with DCLG guidance. 

• Support was regularly offered to affected claimants 
 
We found that the under occupancy reductions and council tax support reductions had 
been applied correctly.  
 
We identified a couple of areas for improvement in particular around recording and 
reconciling Discretionary Housing Payments (DHP’s) and the timeliness of applying the 
Benefit Cap. These areas have been agreed with management and will be addressed. 
 

Page 38



Title Bank Reconciliation – Substantial. 
 
This audit covers both SHDC and ELDC.  Bank reconciliation processes are undertaken 
by Compass Point Business Services (CPBS) on behalf of East Lindsey (ELDC) and 
South Holland District Councils (SHDC). 
 
We confirmed that reconciliations are completed regularly, are up to date and that they 
are being managed and maintained appropriately. Written procedures are also in place. 
 
Treasury Management- Full Assurance  
 
The Treasury Management function is administered by Compass Point Business 
Services (CPBS) for South Holland (SHDC) and East Lindsey (ELDC) District Councils at 
the Manby site. 
 
Our colleagues at ELDC have completed the audit of Treasury Management 
arrangements for both Councils.  The review covered: 

 

• Cash Flow Monitoring 

• Current investments and withdrawal of funds 

• Viability of potential investments 

• Decision making around Investments 

• Actioning the investment 

• Reporting of the Treasury Management Strategy, Mid Term and Annual report /  
Reconciliation 

 
We found that the Treasury Management arrangements for both Councils remain robust 
and well controlled.  
 
In particular: 

 

• Efficient processes are in place for the monitoring of cash flow and investment of 
monies 

• Investment institutions are closely monitored for suitability 

• Investment decisions are only made by authorised officers 

• The Treasury Management Strategy is comprehensive 

• Update reports are regularly provided to Audit and Governance Committees 
 
Title HR Strategy & Policies – Substantial Assurance 
 
This review focussed on HR strategy and policies to ensure that there are appropriate 
arrangements in place to facilitate effective management of the workforce to deliver 
Council priorities.  
 
We found that the Human Resources (HR) Service at South Holland District Council 
(SHDC), as put in place by Compass Point Business Services (CPBS), is being 
effectively managed.  The Service is being delivered within the agreed timescales and 
the performance targets set up under the initial Management Agreement.  
 
Under the Management Agreement between SHDC and CPBS a Service Level 
Agreement (SLA) for HR provision was established, however we could not see that it has 
been approved or reviewed.  It was also identified that a number of policies applicable to 
the HR Services including the Workforce Strategy document have not been recently 
reviewed. Management have agreed to address these matters. 

Page 39



Risk Management – Substantial Assurance 
 
This review was a follow up to the previous audit completed in May 2012.  

 
Our review confirmed that, following a period of change, SHDC has sound arrangements 
in place to identify, assess and manage its risks to delivery of the council's priorities. The 
strategic and operational risk registers have recently been refreshed and both provide a 
high level of detail on the control methods used to mitigate risk. As part of the new 
performance management process, registers are updated on a quarterly basis and we 
found that the risk team provide support to staff when they complete this process. All high 
level risks are regularly reported to senior management groups and the Governance & 
Audit Committee.  Our review confirmed that officers have access to a detailed and up to 
date Risk Policy and Process Guide. These explain the concept of risk management, 
define roles and responsibilities at all levels and set out the processes and reporting 
arrangement to follow.  
 
We identified further opportunities for improvement and we have made a number of 
recommendations as part of our review. These include:  

• Ensuring there is clarity around Risk Appetite within SHDC and that 
additional information on this is included in policy and guidance  

• Making a clearer link between risks on the strategic risk register and 
corporate priorities  

• Clarify the use of the 'mitigating' actions column on the strategic and 
operational risk registers  

• Reinstate regular meetings of the Programme Board to ensure effective 
monitoring of performance / risk management  

• Ensure there are adequate resources within the risk team and succession 
planning to manage the loss of key members of staff  

 
We also identified that two findings from our audit in 2012 remain outstanding. These 
include plans for embedding risk management across the Council and providing risk 
training to staff. We understand that these will be addressed as part of the planned 
service review of performance and risk.  
 
ICT audit - Cash Receipting Processes – Full Assurance 
 
As part of our ICT work, we completed an application review of the cash receipting 
system used by SHDC. 
 
Our review found that the security of the cash receipting system is being applied in a 
controlled and effective manner. 
 
We were able to confirm the existence of robust controls around software access through 
the use of unique user IDs, secure passwords and restricted use of high privileged 
accounts. 
 
The system also benefits from good physical controls as the machines upon which the 
software is installed are typically held within a secure area of the Council offices. 
 

Page 40



ICT audit – AX Finance System – Full Assurance 
 
We have completed a review of the security arrangements of the finance system 
(Microsoft Dynamics AX 2012) used by Compass Point Business Services (CPBS), to 
help provide services to both South Holland District Council (SHDC) and East Lindsey 
District Council (ELDC). 
 
The AX system is a proprietary Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) system that allows, 
for the purpose of this review, the recording and reporting of financial information. 

 
Our review found that the AX system is being operated in a controlled and efficient 
manner. 
 
Clear policies have been established to help support the application and convey the 
expectations of management for the control and maintenance of the application.   
 
We confirmed that new users of the AX system were authorised by appropriate officers 
and that system password policy requires users to create passwords of a sufficient level 
of complexity.  
 
Data Migration of Fixed Asset Register – Full Assurance 
 
During 2013/14, Compass Point Business Services (CPBS) adopted a dedicated 
application for the purpose of recording the non-current asset register for both South 
Holland District Council and East Lindsey District Council. The introduction of the new 
system enables Compass Point Business Services to move away from spreadsheet 
based non-current asset register solutions to a compliant externally supported 
application. 
 
We found that the movement of data between the excel registers and the RAM 
application was undertaken methodically and accurately with relevant documentation to 
support the overall project.  
 
A clear business case supported the decision to move to a proprietary system and a 
project plan identified and scheduled the key tasks involved.  
 
Revised policies and procedures linked to the new system are being developed however 
some were outstanding and required completion; this work was agreed at the time of 
audit. 

 
Audits in Progress 
 
4.7. The following 2014/15 audits are currently in progress: 
 
Recruitment and retention 
 
We will be seeking to provide assurance on the following areas: 
 

� Policy and guidance 
� Roles and responsibilities and training 
� Vacancy management 
� Staff retention initiatives and handover arrangements 

 

Page 41



This review will not cover workforce planning. 
 
Housing Benefit Subsidy 
 
The Council submits an annual subsidy return in support of benefit payments made during 
the previous financial year. Internal Audit undertake detailed testing on the Council’s housing 
benefit subsidy claim which feeds into External Audit’s certification work on the Council’s 
grants and returns. This work will commence as soon as samples are agreed. 
 
Remaining 2013/14 work 
 
There are three remaining 2013/14 audits at draft report stage, Payroll, Business Continuity 
and Accounts Payable, the former two are provisionally Limited assurance. 
 
Performance Information 
 
4.8. Our current performance against targets is shown below:  
 

 
Performance Indicator 

 
Target 

 
Actual @ 31st May 
2014 

Percentage of 14/15 plan completed. 100%  
(revised plan) 
 
 

2% 
 
 

Percentage of key financial systems 
completed. 
 

100%  Annual Indicator 
 

Percentage of recommendations 
agreed. 
 

100%  No reports issued 
for 2014/15 

Percentage of recommendations 
implemented (12/13 & 13/14 audits) 
 

100% or escalated  
 

2012/13 – 89% 
 
2013/14 – 92% 
 

Timescales Draft report issued within 
10 working days of 
completing audit.  
 
Final report issued within 5 
working days of closure 
meeting / receipt of 
management responses. 
 
Audit completed to draft 
report stage within three 
months of starting 
fieldwork 
 

No reports issued 
for 2014/15 
 

Client Feedback on Audit (average) Good to excellent No reports issued 
for 2014/15 

 

Page 42



Other matters of interest 
 
 
4.9 Grant Thornton – Local Government Governance Review 2014 

 
This report has been compiled by a detailed review of 2012/13 annual governance 
statements of 150 councils, fire & rescue authorities and police bodies – comparing 
them to Grant Thornton's best practice critieria.  They have also analysed responses 
from their survey of 80 senior council officers and members.  The report focuses on 3 
particular elements of governance:  

 

� Risk leadership 
� Partnerships and alternative delivery models  
� Public communication 

 
Key messages: 
 
Risk leadership – they conclude that in some local authorities risk management 
needs to step up a gear to provide full assurance about critical areas of responsibility 
and satisfy the ever-increasing level of scrutiny and regulation.  However, the majority 
of survey respondents felt their organisations encouraged well-managed risk taking 
and innovation.  The cautionary notes included concerns about the blame culture and 
lack of clear leadership from members about risk appetite. 
 
Partnerships and alternative delivery models – they advise that councils and fire 
authorities need to reflect on the joint reporting and management of risk in 
partnerships and alternative delivery models and assess whether the governance 
arrangements are fit for purpose.  The report focuses attention on the rising concerns 
about the level of transparency and accountability for service delivery under these 
arrangements – linking these concerns with the increased fragmentation of public 
service delivery.   It says the public sector needs to learn the key lessons about 
contract management reported on by the National Audit Office and Public Accounts 
Committee in their reviews of outsourced services in central government.   Survey 
respondents had doubts over: 

� joint risk registers / meetings 
� common understanding of risks (and risk terminology) 
� resilience of contingency plans (in the event of partnership failure) 
� ability of governance arrangements to identify potential service failures 

 
Public communication – the report concludes that greater clarity is required on 
public reporting to give greater transparency and to address the demands of the 
interactive expectations of the public.   
 
The report focuses on the reporting of the accounts – survey respondents were not 
convinced that the explanatory forewords to their accounts helped the public 
understand the authority's financial management.  Grant Thornton's analysis showed 
that most explanatory forewords just met the minimum standards and did not provide 
genuine insight to the accounts.  They conclude that, although improvements have 
been made, generally accounts continue to be 'long and impenetrable'.   
 

Page 43



Just over a third of survey respondents felt that the Annual Governance Statement 
did not clearly explain how authorities handled risk.  The report highlights that there is 
a growing need for local authorities to become more proactive in managing the way 
their performance is perceived by the public.  They advise on more public 
engagement to establish what information the local public want to receive – this, they 
say, is necessary with the fast changing digital communications and rising demands 
for openness. 
 
The main body of the report includes the research findings, examples of good 
practice and poses a number of questions for management and members, to help 
them assess the strength of their current governance arrangements.  The full report 
can be found at: www.grant-thornton.co.uk under publications 2014. 

 
4.10 Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 
 

This bill is the final step in a programme of local audit reforms which aims to deliver 
savings and enable local people to hold public bodies to account for their spending 
decisions.  The Bill will replace the Audit Commission with a new local audit and 
accountability framework for public bodies in England which will be better matched to 
local needs, will safeguard whistle blowers through secondary legislation and 
encourage a focus on value for money.    

 
Key features: 

 
Audit – Audit Commission will be closed on the 31st March 2015.  The monitoring of 
existing external audit contracts are set to run until 2017 (but may be extended until 
2020).  Councils will be able appoint their auditor at least once every five years either 
as an individual organisation or through joint procurement.  The Organisation will 
need to consult and take into account the advice of an independent auditor panel and 
will be required to publish information about the appointment of an auditor within 28 
days of making the appointment. 

 
Unless the local authority is using a collective procurement service – it will be 
required to establish an auditor panel to safeguard the independence in the 
appointment of the external auditor.   

 
A key consideration for the Audit Committee is whether the Committee will be taking 
on the panel role or whether it will be working alongside a panel / sub- committee. 

 
All local audit providers will have to work to the Code of Audit Practice which will now 
be written by the National Audit Office.   

 
CIPFA Better Governance Forum – Audit Committee update Issue 13 is attached 
which provides more information on the Act. 

 
Publicity Code – the Local Government Act 1986 is amended to allow the Secretary 
of State to require local authorities in England to comply with the provisions of the 
Code of Recommended Practice on Local Authority Publicity.  The Secretary of State 
is given the power to make regulations that may require local government bodies to 
allow the public to attend all public meetings and to access the records of any 
decisions taken, to allow residents to film, photograph or audio-record public 
meetings of local government and allow commentaries on meetings via social media 
such as Twitter and Facebook.  This comes into force two months after the Act is 
passed. 

  

Page 44



Officers have reviewed the new guidance and noted the Secretary of State’s intention 
to issue regulations in relation to both publicity information, such as council 
newsletters and in relation to public access to meeting and their ability to video record 
proceedings. Officers are of the view that the council will meet the proposed 
regulations.   

 
Local government finance – the Local Government Finance Act 1992 is amended 
so that any increase by a levying body is included within the council tax referendum 
threshold.  Local taxpayers can veto excessive council tax increases by taking 
account of any change in levies paid out to external bodies. These do not appear 
separately on the council tax bill and can makeup over 40% of the bill.  This provision 
comes into force the day the Act was passed.   

 
The Bill also allows the continuation of the National Fraud Initiative.  The powers 
required to run the initiative have been transferred to government by this Bill. 

  
The full document can be found at:   Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014   

 
4.11 Local Government Transparency Code 2014 
 

The aim of the Code is to make it easier for local people to contribute to the local 
decision-making process and help shape public services.  In principle, all data held 
and managed by local authorities should be available unless there are specific 
sensitivities. 

 
Key messages: 

 
Minimum information which must be published 

 
Quarterly (not later than one month after the quarter to which the information is 
applicable) - expenditure exceeding £500, Government Procurement Card 
transactions and procurement information.     

 
Annually (not later than one month after the year to which the information is 
applicable) – local authority land, grants to voluntary, community and social 
enterprise organisations, organisation chart, trade union facility time, parking 
revenues, controlled parking spaces, senior salaries, constitution, and the pay 
multiple. 

 
The data should be published in a format that allows open re-use in order to 
maximise value to the public and should be in an open and machine-readable format.  
The Open Government Licence published by the National Archives should be used 
as the recommended standard. 

 
Information recommended for publication 

 
This includes: expenditure data, procurement information, local authority land, 
parking information, organisation chart, grants to voluntary community and social 
enterprise organisations, and fraud. 

 
It is recommended that information is published on a monthly rather than quarterly 
basis – ideally 'real-time' publication.   

 

Page 45



The method of publication – the Government endorses the 5 step journey. 
One star Available on the web but with an open license 
Two star As for one star plus available as machine readable structured data 
Three star As for two star plus use of a non-proprietary format 
Four star All of the above plus use open standards from the WWW Consortium 
Five star All the above plus links to others' data to provide context. 

 
The full document can be found at: Local government transparency code 2014 - 
Publications - GOV.UK 

    
The City Council was already compliant with the code when its status was ‘voluntary’. 
There are some slight changes to the code in its journey to statutory status and 
officers have formed a working group to  move the council to compliance as quickly 
as possible. At this stage, due to capacity issues, the intention is to meet the 
mandatory requirements only.  

 

The Anti-social Behavior, Crime and Policing Act 2014  

This received royal assent on 13 March 2014. 

The act will introduce simpler, more effective powers to tackle anti-social behaviour 
that provide better protection for victims and communities.  

The new community trigger and community remedy will empower victims and 
communities, giving them a greater say in how agencies respond to complaints of 
anti-social behaviour and in out-of-court sanctions for offenders.  

The Bill contains a variety of measures to protect the public, including from anti-social 
behaviour, dangerous dogs, forced marriage, sexual harm and illegal firearms used 
by gangs and in organised crime. It also includes changes to improve the provision of 
services to victims and witnesses. In addition, the Bill will take forward further police 
reform, to enhance the public's confidence in police integrity and continue 
modernising police pay and conditions, as well as improving the effectiveness of our 
extradition arrangements and the efficiency of the criminal justice system.  
 
Anti-social behaviour  
 
Parts 1 to 6 introduce simpler, more effective powers for tackling anti-social 
behaviour, which provide better protection for victims and communities, act as a real 
deterrent to perpetrators and give victims a say in the way their complaints are dealt 
with.  
 
The provisions in Parts 1 to 4 replace the existing 19 powers to deal with anti-social 
behaviour with six faster, more effective ones.  
 
Part 5 gives landlords powers to deal swiftly with the most serious anti-social 
behaviour committed by their tenants.  
 
Part 6 gives victims the power to ensure that action is taken to deal with persistent 
anti-social behaviour through the new community trigger, and a greater say in what 
form of sanction an offender receives out of court through the new community 
remedy.  

 

Page 46



5.0 IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.1 Carbon Footprint / Environmental Issues 
 
5.1.1 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications. 
 
5.2 Constitution & Legal 
 
5.2.1 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications. 
 
5.3 Contracts 
 
5.3.1 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications. 
 
5.4 Corporate Priorities 
 
5.4.1 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications. 
 
5.5 Crime and Disorder  
 
5.5.1 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications. 
 
5.6 Equality and Diversity / Human Rights 
 
5.6.1 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications. 
 
5.7 Financial  
 
5.7.1 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications. 
 
5.8 Risk Management  
 
5.8.1 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications. 
 
5.9 Staffing 
 
5.9.1 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications. 
  
5.10 Stakeholders / Consultation / Timescales 
 
5.10.1 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications. 
  
6.0 WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED 
 
6.1 Not applicable. 
 
7.0 ACRONYMS  
 
7.1 None. 
 

Background papers:- None 

 

Page 47



Lead Contact Officer 
Name/Post: Lucy Pledge - Head of Audit & Risk Management, Audit Lincolnshire 
Telephone Number: 01522 553692 
Email: lucy.pledge@lincolnshire.gov.uk 

 
Director / Officer who will be attending the Meeting:   
Lucy Pledge – Head of Audit & Risk Management – Audit Lincolnshire;  Mark Finch – 

Assistant 
Director, Finance) 
 
Key Decision: No  
 
Exempt Decision: No  
 
Appendices attached to this report:  
Appendix A – Assurance Definitions 
Appendix B – Audits with Limited Assurance 
Appendix C – Outstanding Recommendations as at 12//06/14 
Appendix D – Outstanding Recommendations as at 12/06/14 (detail) 
Appendix E – Internal Audit Plan & Schedule 

 

Page 48



APPENDIX A 
 

Assurance Definitions 
 

Full Assurance 
 
 

Our critical review or assessment on the activity gives us a high level 
of confidence on service delivery arrangements, management of 
risks, and the operation of controls and / or performance. 
 
The risk of the activity not achieving its objectives or outcomes is low. 
 
As a guide there are a few low risk / priority actions arising from the 
review. 
 

Substantial Assurance 
 
 

Our critical review or assessment on the activity gives us a 
reasonable level of confidence on service delivery arrangements, 
management of risks, and operation of controls and / or performance. 
 
There are some improvements needed in the application of controls 
to manage risks. However, the controls are in place and operating 
sufficiently so that the risk to the activity not achieving its objectives is 
medium to low. 
 
As a guide there are low to medium risk / priority actions arising from 
the review.  
 

Limited Assurance 
 
 

Our critical review or assessment on the activity identified some 
concerns on service delivery arrangements, management of risks, 
and operation of controls and / or performance. 
 
The controls to manage the risks are not always being operated or 
are inadequate. Therefore, the risk of the activity not achieving its 
objectives is medium to high. 
 
As a guide there are medium and a few high risk / priority actions 
arising from the review.   
 
Our work did not identify system failures that could result in any of the 
following: 
- damage to the Council’s reputation 
- material financial loss 
- adverse impact on members of the public 
- failure to comply with legal requirements 
 

No Assurance 
 
 

Our critical review or assessment on the activity identified significant 
concerns on service delivery arrangements, management of risks, 
and operation of controls and / or performance. 
 
Our work identified system failures that could result in any of the 
following: 
- damage to the Council’s reputation 
- material financial loss 
- adverse impact on members of the public 
- failure to comply with legal requirements 
 
The controls to manage the risks are not being operated or are not 

Page 49



present. Therefore the risk of the activity not achieving its objectives 
is high. 
 
As a guide there are a large number of medium and high risks / 
priority actions arising from the review. 
 

 
 
 

APPENDIX B 
 

Audits where assurance is assessed as ‘No’ or ‘Limited’ 
 
 
There are no audits being reported in this section 

 
 
 

APPENDIX C 
 

Outstanding recommendations as at 12/06/14 
 
 

 
Audit Area 
 

 
Date 

 
Assurance 

 
Number 
of Recs 
 

 
Implem’d 

 
Outstanding 

 
Due 
date not 
yet 
reached  

H M L 

Asset & Property 

Asset Management Sept 
2013 

Substantial 6 4  1  1 

Democratic Services 

Risk Management April 
2014 

Substantial 6     6 

Information 
Governance 
 

Feb 
2014 

Limited 23 8  5  10 
Note A1 

Finance 

Counter Fraud July 
2012 

Substantial 5 4    1 

Income Generation Feb 
2013 

Limited 4 4    Note A1 

Budget Management Feb 
2013 

Substantial 9 8  1   

BACS / DD Nov 
2013 

Substantial 6 5    1 

Bank Reconciliation Mar 
2014 

Substantial 3 2    1 

Treasury 
Management 

Mar 
2014 

Full 2 1    1 

Housing Benefit  Mar 
2014 

Substantial 4 2    2 

Council tax/NNDR Mar 
2014 

Substantial 5     5 

Page 50



Welfare Reform Feb 
2014 

Substantial 5 3    2 

Procurement Dec 
2013 

Limited 6 2    4 

ICT 

AX Security 11/12 April 
2012 

Limited 20 19 1   Note A1 

ICT Infrastructure Dec 
2012 

Substantial 21 11  1  9 

ICT Disaster 
Recovery 

Nov 
2012 

Limited 4 3 1    

ICT Data Migration 
Fixed Asset Register 

Mar 
2014 

Full 1     1 

ICT Application Audit 
– Cash Receipting 

May 
2014 

Full 1     1 

Housing 

HRA Business Plan Oct 
2012 

Limited / 
Substantial 

9 6    3 

Human Resources 

HR Strategy & Policy April 
2014 

Substantial 4     4 

 
Note A1: Further discussion is required with management on recommendation sign off as 
some areas are still planned rather than delivered. Also discussion required on one 
recommendation from the 12/13 payroll audit. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 51



APPENDIX D 
 

Outstanding recommendations as at 12/06/14 (detail) 
 
Report Name No. Priority Finding Ref Status Agreed management action Date to be 

completed 

Response Comments Revised 

date for 

completion 

Person 

responsible 

SHDC Asset 

Management 
1 Medium 

The 2008-2012 Asset Management 

Plan is now out of date. 

Review and update of the plan is 

included in the team's service 

delivery workplan for the year and is 

scheduled for approval and adoption 

in quarter 3. 

1.1 
Not 

Implemented 
Agreed 31/12/2013 

Asset Management Strategy approved by PDP 

29/04/2014 and Execs 13/05/2014.  Going forward 

to Full Council for adoption 18/06/2014.  Expect 

implementation by  following quarter. 31/08/2014 Steve Udberg 

SHDC Asset 

Management 
4 Medium 

There is currently an issue with 

reporting on rent collection. The 

length of time a case has been in 

arrears cannot be identified at the 

moment. Therefore the data for the 

KPI of less than 3% of arrears at 90 

days or more cannot be reported. 

CPBS are currently working with the 

team on this issue, but there is no 

estimated completion time for 

delivery of a report to identify the 

arrears. 

4.1 

  Arrangements are being made with 

CPBS to meet up and work out a short 

term solution to allow KPI reporting, 

as well as a long term more 

permanent solution that will provide 

the team with regular and accurate 

data. 

If a solution is not forthcoming, this 

will be escalated by Steve Udberg. 

01/10/2013 

Not due 

31/12/2014 Steve Udberg 

SHDC Project 

Management 

2012/13 

11 Medium 

We could not identify evidence to 

confirm the project for Joint Review 

of Environmental Health Services in 

Breckland and SHDC was formally 

agreed at CMT.    We recognise that 

management are receiving updates 

on the progress of this project. 

11 Implemented 

Agreed. This was a one off and the 

correct procedure will be followed in 

the future.   The draft committee 

report where the project was agreed 

will be signed off by CMT and 

retained with the project 

documentation. 

01/04/2013 

This review has been completed with the full 

knowledge of members and relevant members of 

CMT.  This recommendation should therefore be 

closed as the action to retrospectively obtain 

agreement for the project at CMT would serve no 

purpose. 

N/A 

R Blanden, 

Interim 

Business 

Development 

Manager 

SHDC Project 

Management 

2012/13 

13 Medium 

Review of the 2 projects sampled 

confirmed project management has 

followed Prince 2 principles, but the 

documentation used by the project 

groups differed to those held in the 

toolkit on SHINE. 
13 Implemented 

Agreed. SHINE will be updated to 

accommodate the new framework. 

The projects will vary in size so we 

would expect the process to be 

scalable. One area that will be 

mandatory will be milestone reports 

that will be required at key stages of 

the projects lifecycle and monitored 

through the performance plus 

system. 

01/04/2013 

The Performance plus system has been 

discontinued and a new project management 

reporting system put in place. This 

recommendation should be closed. 

N/A 

R Blanden, 

Interim 

Business 

Development 

Manager 

P
age 52



SHDC 

Community 

Development 

2 High 

Our review found that targets for 

the health initiatives, other than 

Cook and Grow, are a bit vague with 

just improvement expected on the 

previous year's performance. 

2.1 Implemented 

We recognise that there should be 

clear targets for providers which will 

enable SHDC to monitor their 

performance. 

However we feel that we cannot 

introduce these during the current 

year as providers have signed up to 

the schemes without such targets.  It 

is our intention to introduce  these in 

2014/15 once we are aware of our 

funding and expectations from Public 

Health for 2014/15. 

30/04/2014 

The targets from Public Health have been received 

and these have been discussed with our partner 

providers. 

N/A 

Emily Holmes 

- Team 

Leader - 

Community 

Development 

SHDC 

Community 

Development 

3 High 

There is little monitoring of 

performance  of the health 

initiatives by SHDC. Information is 

recorded on databases by the 

providers but SHDC get very little 

information from this, unless there 

are issues in which case the 

Lincolnshire Sports Partnership 

contact Community Development 

asking for information/action to be 

taken. 

3.1 Implemented 

We will strengthen this area by: 

-information sent to providers is now 

also being copied to the Team Leader 

- Community Development. 

- SLA's have been introduced in other 

areas of Community Development 

and are proven to work so will be 

introduced for the Health Initiatives. 

- Regular meetings will be held with 

the providers 

- We are considering next year 

releasing money to providers in 

stages dependent on conditions being 

met. 

Discussions with Public Health for this 

year has established that GP referrals 

and exercise are at capacity.  

Clarification has been sought over fit 

kids and involving families which 

means that more children can be 

included in the programme.  We are 

asking Public Health to confirm these 

discussions in writing. 

30/04/2014 

Information from all the project county networks 

are  being sent to the Community Development 

Team Leader. The meetings are being attended by 

our partner  providers. Regular meetings are now 

taking place with our providers with clear actions. 

There have been improvements with 

communication and improvements in delivery 

have been seen. egular meetings will continue to 

take place 

N/A 

Emily Holmes 

- Team 

Leader - 

Community 

Development 

SHDC 

Community 

Development 

4 Medium 

Meetings are held for the health 

initiatives. From some of these 

meetings good minutes are received 

eg Food Leads meetings however 

others for the exercise referrals 

where representatives from SHDC 

do not always attend, rough notes 

are received if anything at all. 

4.1 Implemented 

Agreed, we will ensure that minutes 

are received from meetings where we 

do not send a representative. 

30/04/2014 
Minutes are received, read and discussed. 

Meetings are attended by delivery partners. 
N/A 

Emily Holmes 

- Team 

Leader - 

Community 

Development 

SHDC ICT 

Disaster 

Recovery 

2012/13 2.1 
2 High 

Details of critical systems have not 

been reviewed at ELDC since CPBS 

was created and do not exist at 

SHDC. 
2.1 

  CPBS Business Continuity Team will 

establish recovery priorities and 

determine timescales and will meet 

with the client Business Continuity 

Groups. 

31/03/2013 

Requires follow up 

31/03/2014 

Mark 

Haynes, 

Head of 

Customer 

Services 

P
age 53



SHDC AX 

Security 
2 High 

There are a number of AX-related 

Policies and Procedures being 

developed, many of them are 

awaiting completion or are in draft 

form. 

In addition, there are gaps in the 

high-level policy framework relating 

to the use of IT across the 

organisation and selectively to the 

AX system in particular. 
2.1 

  A number of AX related policies have 

been published on the intranet: 

Fixed Assets, AP, AR, Security, 

General Ledger, VAT. There are 3 that 

are currently still under review: 

Interfaces, Treasury and reporting. 

The HR, payroll and expenses policies 

will also be prepared when there is a 

full system roll- out. 

We consider it would be appropriate 

to issue a full set of AX policies for the 

start of the next financial year. 

The Councils would also need to 

amend their budget and policy 

frameworks including financial 

regulations. 

31/03/2013 

Requires follow up 

31/04/2014 

David Bailey, 

CPBS Finance 

Director 

SHDC AX 

Security 
9 Medium 

User access rights are defined in the 

form of a four level hierarchy as 

follows: 

- Roles 

- Duties 

- Privileges 

-Permissions 

There is a one-to-many relationship 

at each level, for example, a Role 

may have 20 Duties, each of which 

may have 10 Privileges and so on. 

Accordingly the actual mapping  of a 

user's access to system functionality 

and the range of their permitted 

activities can be quite complex. 

The AX system can produce standard  

reports, by user, of the allocated 

Roles and Duties with descriptive 

text against each entry. However, 

the details of Privileges and 

Permissions are only viewable on 

screen and the associated data 

cannot apparently be extracted and 

reported upon. Consequently, it is 

not possible to generate a standard 

report for a specific user that 

includes the mapping at all of the 

levels. 

9.1 Implemented 

Potential AX developments are being 

captured through the AX user group 

and security reporting will be an area 

for further consideration as part of 

that review. 

30/09/2012 

A new security development tool has been 

implemented to assist the management of security 

- but conflicts of roles is not a built in feature that 

has to continue to be policed outside of the 

system. 

NOTE: This item had been closed as implemented 

from 07/03/13 but has been re-opened 08/11/13 

as it is still on the ELDC Internal Audit Tracker and 

will therefore crop up on the next AX Security 

audit.  EJ provided this update to ELDC Internal 

Audit on 29/10/13: 

The AX development plan is currently under 

review. We are operating the Beta version of AX, 

however, there are new releases of AX R2 & R3.  

This could impact  on the AX security audit actions 

identified to date. A meeting with HSUK is 

scheduled to discuss new releases and explore 

options. 

DB 11/11/2013: We have reviewed this as agreed 

through AX User Group and we are not taking any 

further action  on this until we are clear on the 

functionality of R2 version of AX.   

N/A 

David Bailey, 

CPBS Finance 

Director 

P
age 54



SHDC AX 

Security 
13 Medium 

Following advice from HCUK, the 

standard configuration logging 

options have been set up and no 

specific changes have been 

subsequently applied by CPBS. 

Two specific types of logging are 

known to be in place: 

Database Logging reports on key 

system actions such as changes to 

supplier accounts, bank account 

details and permitting processes to 

proceed. David Jackson advised that 

he has been reviewing the database 

log but he was rather vague as to 

the frequency of such examination 

and what he was specifically looking 

for. 

Audit Logging works at a 

transactional level and records all 

such actions. This log would 

facilitate the tracing of actions to 

specific individuals; however, the 

available volumes of data would 

have to be filtered in order to 

generate more meaningful reports. 

The future monitoring of AX system 

13 Implemented 

This had already been flagged as an 

area for AX development for the 

systems team. It will be incorporated 

into the overall AX development plan. 

A basic assessment of the information 

required is needed before any further 

work is undertaken 

30/11/2012 

A basic assessment of key information has now 

been undertaken and application and routines will 

be refined in the new financial year. 

NOTE: This item had been closed as implemented 

from 07/03/13 but has been re-opened 08/11/13 

as it is still on the ELDC Internal Audit Tracker and 

will therefore crop up on the next AX Security 

audit.  EJ provided this update to ELDC Internal 

Audit on 29/10/13: 

The AX development plan is currently under 

review. We are operating the Beta version of AX, 

however, there are new releases of AX R2 & R3.  

This could impact  on the AX security audit actions 

identified to date. A meeting with HSUK is 

scheduled to discuss new releases and explore 

options. 

DB 11/11/2013: We have reviewed this as agreed 

through AX User Group and we are not taking any 

further action  on this until we are clear on the 

functionality of R2 version of AX.  IS THIS 

COMPLETED IF WAITING TO SEE FUNCTIONALITY 

OF r2 

N/A 

David Bailey, 

CPBS Finance 

Director 

SHDC AX 

Security 
14 Medium 

Once the necessary logging options 

have been assessed and, where 

necessary, implemented, a regime of 

system activity monitoring and 

oversight can be introduced and 

formalised in a published procedure. 

Such action, if effectively applied, 

would provide a further degree of 

assurance as to the integrity of the 

AX system and the data it contains. 14 Implemented 

This had already been flagged as an 

area for AX development for the 

systems team. It will be incorporated 

into the overall AX development plan. 

A basic assessment of the information 

required is needed before any further 

work is undertaken 

30/11/2012 

Linked to implementation response 13 (Audit 

Tracker ID 104 refers) 

NOTE: This item had been closed as implemented 

from 07/03/13 but has been re-opened 08/11/13 

as it is still on the ELDC Internal Audit Tracker and 

will therefore crop up on the next AX Security 

audit.  EJ provided this update to ELDC Internal 

Audit on 29/10/13: 

The AX development plan is currently under 

review. We are operating the Beta version of AX, 

however, there are new releases of AX R2 & R3.  

This could impact  on the AX security audit actions 

identified to date. A meeting with HSUK is 

scheduled to discuss new releases and explore 

options. 

DB 11/11/2013: We have reviewed this as agreed 

through AX User Group and we are not taking any 

further action  on this until we are clear on the 

functionality of R2 version of AX. 

N/A 

David Bailey, 

CPBS Finance 

Director 

P
age 55



SHDC AX 

Security 
15 Medium 

The application of any intended 

monitoring and oversight regime 

should be clearly evidenced, trailed 

and retained. 

Any issues or queries arising from 

the logged information should be 

identified, followed  up and the 

relevant details of actions taken 

should be recorded and retained. 

15 Implemented 

This had already been flagged as an 

area for AX development for the 

systems team. It will be incorporated 

into the overall AX development plan. 

A basic assessment of the information 

required is needed before any further 

work is undertaken 

30/11/2012 

Where logs and databases are reviewed, 

documentation is retained 

NOTE: This item had been closed as implemented 

from 07/03/13 but has been re-opened 08/11/13 

as it is still on the ELDC Internal Audit Tracker and 

will therefore crop up on the next AX Security 

audit.  EJ provided this update to ELDC Internal 

Audit on 29/10/13: 

The AX development plan is currently under 

review. We are operating the Beta version of AX, 

however, there are new releases of AX R2 & R3.  

This could impact  on the AX security audit actions 

identified to date. A meeting with HSUK is 

scheduled to discuss new releases and explore 

options. 

DB 11/11/2013: We have reviewed this as agreed 

through AX User Group and we are not taking any 

further action  on this until we are clear on the 

functionality of R2 version of AX. 

N/A 

David Bailey, 

CPBS Finance 

Director 

SHDC Income 

Generation 

1 Medium 

Income generation is not driven 

corporately. There is no overarching 

strategy or charging policy. 

1.1 Implemented 

An income generation strategy will be 

created to formalise the approach 

and document appetite, governance 

structures and review processes. 31/05/2013 

Fees and charges policy considered as part of 

Budget Chalenge and preparation of Medium Term 

Financial Plan for 2014/15. Fee schedules 

approved with budget February 2014  Requires 

follow up 

N/A 

Mark Finch, 

Assistant 

Director - 

Finance 

SHDC Income 

Generation 
2 High 

A fees and charges policy is held for 

all key income areas; however these 

are not up to date, the most recent 

are dated 2011/12. These policies 

are very detailed in terms of basis 

for charging, concessions, approval, 

benchmarking and consultation etc 

and offer a robust review process to 

support an overall strategy. 

2.1 Implemented 

The fees and charges policies will be  

updated and used to support and 

evidence the overall strategy for 

income generation. Whilst fees and 

charges may increase annual for 

inflation or cost recovery, the policies  

will only be fully reviewed every three 

years. 

31/05/2013 

Fees and charges policy considered as part of 

Budget Chalenge and preparation of Medium Term 

Financial Plan for 2014/15. Fee schedules 

approved with budget February 2014 

N/A 

Mark Finch, 

Assistant 

Director - 

Finance 

SHDC Income 

Generation 

4 Medium 

Our work to compare SHDC fees and 

charges with neighbouring 

authorities identified several 

opportunities to charge for some 

services. We also identified low 

charges in some areas. 

4.1 Implemented 

These recommendations will be 

progressed through with the overall 

Income Generation Strategy as 

agreed at finding one. 
31/05/2013 

Fees and charges policy considered as part of 

Budget Chalenge and preparation of Medium Term 

Financial Plan for 2014/15. Fee schedules 

approved with budget February 2014 
N/A 

Mark Finch, 

Assistant 

Director - 

Finance 

P
age 56



SHDC 

Governance 

2012/13 
1 Medium 

The Council's Code of Corporate 

Governance (code) and the 

document 'How we aim to meet the 

requirements of the code' do not 

clearly reflect some of the 

requirements included in the 

framework, particularly for the 

following areas: 

- partnerships and other joint 

working 

- measuring value for money 

- measuring the environmental 

impact of policies, plans and 

decisions 

- developing, promoting and 

demonstrating the values for the 

council 

- use of legal powers to the full 

benefit of the communities 

1.1 Implemented 

A review of the Local Code will be 

conducted in consideration of the 

CIPFA Guidance and the 

recommendations made within here. 

This work will be carried out in 

conjunction with the review of the 

Council's Constitution. 

31/10/2013 

Local Code review completed. Report to 

Governance and Audit Cttee June 2014 to confirm 

approval   

N/A 

Mark Finch, 

Section 151 

Officer 

SHDC 

Governance 

2012/13 
2 Medium 

In respect of the core principle to 

develop the capacity and capability 

of members and officers to be 

effective, the code refers to 

induction, training and development 

of members, but not for officers 

with governance   responsibilities. 

2.1 Implemented 

A review of the Local Code will be 

conducted in consideration of the 

CIPFA Guidance and the 

recommendations made within here. 

Induction for members is already in 

place and has recently been assessed 

as part of the April 2013 

reaccreditation for Member 

Development Charter Status. 

Ongoing Officer training is identified 

as part of the existing arrangements 

for staff development and 

performance management. 

Induction procedures will be 

reviewed to ensure they cover 

relevant areas for newly appointed 

officers. 

31/10/2013 

Local Code review completed. Report to 

Governance and Audit Cttee June 2014 to confirm 

approval 

N/A 

Mark Finch, 

Section 151 

Officer 

SHDC 

Governance 

2012/13 
3 Medium 

The local code could be 

strengthened in relation to 

developing strong accountability 

relationships, voicing accountability 

and taking an active and planned 

approach to meet responsibilities to 

staff. 

3.2 Implemented 

A review of the Local Code will be 

conducted in consideration of the 

CIPFA Guidance and the 

recommendations made within here. 

This work will be carried out in 

conjunction with the review of the 

Council's Constitution. 

31/10/2013 

Local Code review completed. Report to 

Governance and Audit Cttee June 2014 to confirm 

approval 

N/A 

Mark Finch, 

Section 151 

Officer 

SHDC 

Governance 

2012/13 4 Medium 

The scrutiny role is referred to but 

currently given little emphasis in the 

local code. 4.1 Implemented 

Strong scrutiny arrangements are in 

place, however, during the review of 

the Local Code in consideration of the 

CIPFA Guidance these will be 

reflected more explicitly. 

31/10/2013 

Local Code review completed. Report to 

Governance and Audit Cttee June 2014 to confirm 

approval N/A 

Mark Finch, 

Section 151 

Officer 

P
age 57



SHDC 

Governance 

2012/13 

5 Medium 

There is currently no reference to 

the Governance and Audit 

Committee in the local code. 

The questions for Audit Committee 

members to ask relating to the six 

principles of good governance and 

value for money, included in the 

updated guidance, have not yet 

been considered. 

5.1 Implemented 

Reference to the Governance and 

Audit Committee will be reflected 

explicitly in the revised Local Code, 

and updated guidance on audit 

committees will be considered during 

the review of the Local Code. 
31/10/2013 

Local Code review completed. Report to 

Governance and Audit Cttee June 2014 to confirm 

approval 

N/A 

Mark Finch, 

Section 151 

Officer 

SHDC 

Governance 

2012/13 

6 Medium 

The code does not make any 

reference to the shared chief 

executive and management team. 

The council has not yet considered 

the assessment questions, around 

each of the  six principles of good 

governance, relating to shared chief 

executive and management teams. 

6.1 Implemented 

Reference to shared management 

and Chief Executive arrangements 

will be reflected explicitly in the 

revised Local Code and updated 

guidance on shared management will 

be considered during the review of 

the Local Code. 

31/10/2013 

Local Code review completed. Report to 

Governance and Audit Cttee June 2014 to confirm 

approval 

N/A 

Mark Finch, 

Section 151 

Officer 

SHDC 

Governance 

2012/13 

7 Medium 

The local Code of Corporate 

Governance currently refers to the 

three fundamental principles of 

corporate governance identified in 

the Cadbury report, rather than the 

six core principles, supporting 

principles and specific requirements 

set out in the framework. 

7.1 Implemented 

A review of the Local Code will be 

conducted in consideration of the 

CIPFA Guidance and the 

recommendations made within here. 

This work will be carried out in 

conjunction with the review of the 

Council's Constitution. 

31/10/2013 

Local Code review completed. Report to 

Governance and Audit Cttee June 2014 to confirm 

approval 

N/A 

Mark Finch, 

Section 151 

Officer 

SHDC 

Governance 

2012/13 
8 Medium 

Documents, systems and processes 

to show how the council will meet 

its aims  are listed in the document 

'How we aim to meet the 

requirements of our code'.  There 

are no links to the supporting 

evidence. 

8.1 Implemented 

Use of hyperlinks will be considered 

in the drafting of the revised Code, 

subject to level of administrative 

burden. 

Following adoption of a revised Local 

Code, a self assessment will be 

carried out. 

31/10/2013 

Local Code review completed. Report to 

Governance and Audit Cttee June 2014 to confirm 

approval. Hyperlinks included 

N/A 

Mark Finch, 

Section 151 

Officer 

P
age 58



SHDC BACS 

and DD 

arrangements 

2013/14 

2 Medium 

Through discussion with service 

areas tested, we found that in some 

areas there was not always another 

member of staff who could process 

the BACS payment and direct debit 

files if required. 

There should be sufficient cover for 

BACS processes in case of an un 

expected absence. 

2.1 Implemented 

CPBS will liaise with the CPBS Head of 

HR and S151 Officers of SHDC and 

ELDC to arrange appropriate cover 

and agree timescales for 

implementation. 

31/12/2013 

CPBS Head of HR requested K Gray to be set up for 

Payroll. 

This has been done and the Head of HR has been 

advised and requested to have training completed 

by 31/3/2014. 

Ken Bell in SHDC Housing Rents asked for Jane 

Fowler and Lesley Wantling to be set up.  This has 

been done and Ken Bell has been advised and 

requested to have training completed by 

31/3/2014. 

Aeneas Richardson from ELDC Leisure has agreed 

that Chris Cloveley be set up. This has been done 

and Aeneas Richardson has been advised and 

requested to have training completed by 

31/3/2014. 

All highlighted areas have now had additional staff 

set up and the various Managers are to ensure 

that the training is completed by 31/3/2014. 

Treasury Team's action is now complete. 

Responsible person re-assigned to Tony Lascelles 

for follow up on the HR / Payroll Training and for 

confirmation that this has been completed (this 

will then complete all CPBS responsibilities in 

connection with this item). 

E-mail sent to David Bailey to request extension to 

completion date. Agreed as 31/3/2014 by DB on 

02-Jan- 2014. 

N/A 

Sean 

Howsam - 

Finance 

Manager 

Treasury 

SHDC BACS 

and DD 

arrangements 

2013/14 

3 Medium 

Staff check values of BACs files to 

source systems and then to 

notifications received from BACS.  

However: 

- the Payroll Officer does not always 

print these off so there is no obvious 

confirmation that the file value 

submitted is as expected. 

-Operational Support note down the 

value of the payment run but do not 

save the onscreen message. 

Documents to support the value of 

the BACS files should be retained so 

there is a full audit trail. 

3.1 

  CPBS Treasury Team will give 

guidance and agree work instructions 

for HR and Operations Support to 

ensure a full audit trail is in place. 

The AX banking policy will be updated 

at high level to include the audit 

requirements on BACS. 
31/03/2014 

Not due 

30/06/2014 

Sean 

Howsam - 

Finance 

Manager 

Treasury 

SHDC 

Counter 

Fraud Review 

(Health 

Check) 12/13 

1.1 Medium 

The Counter Fraud and Corruption 

Policy has not been reviewed since 

February 2009 and does not reflect: 

"the current arrangements in place 

with Compass Point Business 

Services Ltd "recent changes in 

legislation and good practice. 

The Sanctions Policy (Housing 

Benefit and Council Tax Benefit 

Fraud offences) also requires review 

to ensure it is up to date. 

1.1.1 

  All legislation is now in place for the 

Single Fraud Investigation Service. 

This will be implemented in April 

2013 and policies will be updated in 

accordance with this. 

01/04/2013 

Not due 

30/09/2014 

Sharon 

Hammond & 

Andy Eaman 

(CPBS) 

P
age 59



SHDC Bank 

Reconciliation 

2013/14 

2 Medium 

Adjustments have been made during 

the year on the SHDC bank 

reconciliation for returned BACS 

Benefit payments.  These need to be 

cancelled on the Benefits system 

(Academy) before the Treasury 

Team are notified so these can be 

cancelled off the ledger.  Payments 

are being cancelled on Academy but 

currently Treasury are not being 

informed so that they can be 

cancelled from the ledger.  At the 

end of January the amount stands at 

£10,927.00. These should be cleared 

regularly to ensure the reconciled 

balance of the bank account is an 

accurate reflection of its position. 

0.1 Implemented 

We will liaise with Benefits to agree 

processes for returned SHDC BACS 

payments. 

30/04/2014 

It has been agreed with Melanie McDonald that 

the same process will be followed for SHDC as is 

the case for ELDC. This will be monitored as part of 

the monthly bank reconciliation to ensure it is 

happening. 

N/A 

Sean 

Howsam - 

Finance 

Manager 

Treasury 

SHDC Bank 

Reconciliation 

2013/14 

1 Medium 

Our review of 3 months bank 

reconciliations on all ELDC and SHDC 

bank accounts found that, based on 

records retained,  the ELDC receipts 

account and SHDC account had not 

been completed and did not show as 

being reviewed by the Finance 

Manager, Treasury in May 2013. We 

also found that the ELDC 

disbursement account for 

September did  not show as having 

been reviewed in the spreadsheet 

version history.  All other months 

reconciliations' were complete and 

had been reviewed as per 

procedures. 

0.1 Implemented 

We will investigate if it is possible to 

'lock down' documents within 

Sharepoint so they cannot be 

changed or deleted accidently. 

If this is not possible we will look at 

other wasys of protecting documents 

eg restricting access to certain 

individuals only. 
31/03/2014 

It would be too time consuming to change 

properties on each document to lock them down. 

When signing off monthly reconciliations we will 

ensure that the previous months reconciliations 

are still there. 

N/A 

Sean 

Howsam - 

Finance 

Manager 

Treasury 

SHDC 

Treasury 

Management 

2013/14 

1 Medium 

There is no formal documentation 

recording the Council’s authorised 

signatories for investment decision 

making and for the  bank mandate. 

There have been a number of senior 

staffing changes at SHDC and 

although relevant officers are aware 

of whom the authorised signatories 

are, there is no formal record in 

place to evidence this. 

This finding was highlighted during 

the course of the audit and we are 

aware that action has commenced 

on this. 

1.1 Implemented 

Agreed that an up to date authorised 

signatory list be produced in 

accordance with the Audit 

recommendation. 

30/04/2014 

Up to date ELDC and SHDC document produced. 

ELDC signed and copy passed to Audit 10/3/14 

As at 31/3/14 SHDC document with Colin Wyatt 

awaiting signature from M Finch and A Chubbock 

Signed Copy of SHDC authorised signatories 

document submitted to internal audit on 3/4/14 

N/A 

Finance 

Manager, 

Treasury 

P
age 60



SHDC Welfare 

Reform 

2013/14 

1 High 

Details and outcomes of 

Discretionary Housing Payment 

applications are recorded on a 

spreadsheet by the Benefit 

Specialists. This spreadsheet is used 

as a management tool to calculate 

expenditure and assist with 

forecasting. 

We found that we could not 

reconcile this spreadsheet to the 

Academy System: - incorrect dates 

had been input on the spreadsheet - 

claims had been cancelled/adjusted 

which were not reflected in the 

spreadsheet  - successful claims on  

the spreadsheet did not appear on  

Academy. 

It is important that accurate data is 

provided to management for 

budgetary control. 

1.1 Implemented 

A separate budget code will be set up 

for both Councils to ensure that DHP 

expenditure and Income can be 

separately identified and monitored. 

30/04/2014 

Separate Cost Centres have been established to 

record DHP transactions for both entities.  

Transactions for 2013/14 have been transferrred 

to the new cost centre. 

N/A 

Colin Wyatt - 

Senior 

Finance 

Analyst 

SHDC HRA 

Business Plan 1 High 

In March 2012, officers proposed 

revised governance arrangements 

for the HRA Business Plan that 

would address the 'risk to the 

sustainability of the plan' that 

current arrangements were 

considered to present. Whilst 

agreement to implement the 

proposal to form a specific HRA 

group or panel to oversee the plan 

was documented in Full Council 

minutes of 7 March 2012, the group 

was not set up. 

Management have now clarified 

scrutiny arrangements within a 

paper to Full Council (24th October 

2012) and this element of 

governance will added to the 

responsibilities of the Governance 

and Audit Committee. 

The committee will not provide the 

regular, more detailed monitoring 

and review of the plan that was the 

role originally set out for a dedicated 

HRA group, including: 

§review of detailed budgetary 

control 

1.1 

  

We will consult with management 

team and Portfolio Holders to identify 

ways to implement this 

recommendation. 

31/03/2013 

Not due 

29/08/2014 Duncan Hall 

P
age 61



SHDC HRA 

Business Plan 3 High 

The SHDC HRA Business Plan is made 

up of 3 key elements: 

§2012 HRA Business Plan 

§HRA Asset Management Strategy 

2012- 2017 

§30 year financial model 

The 2012 plan and Asset 

Management Strategy were 

produced as draft documents for 

approval in March 2012, and 

included proposals for members to 

consider. The documents were 

never updated when details were 

approved. 

We also noted the action plan 

attached as appendix 1 was not 

filled in, although referred to as a 

'robust and fully considered, 

prioritised and resources Action 

Plan' in section 1.1. 

We recognise that management 

intended to update the plans, but 

with staff changes and workloads 

this has not been a 

priority. 

3.1 

  

Once the plans for 2013/14 have 

been approved by Full Council, we 

will ensure the final versions available 

are complete and up to date. 

31/03/2013 

Not due 

29/08/2014 

Duncan Hall, 

Housing 

Manager & 

Richard 

Scorthorne, 

Property 

Asset 

Manager 

(HRA) 

SHDC HRA 

Business Plan 9 High 

Two strategic risks were included 

within the Strategic Risk Register 

when the HRA financing project was 

in progress. These are still on the 

register but are now out of date. 

There are no risks relating to the 

HRA Business Plan on the Housing 

Operational Risk Register. 

Ongoing risks to the delivery of the 

plan were not included within the 

2012 HRA Business Plan. Risks were 

listed against the individual options 

set out in the HRA Asset 

Management Strategy. 

9.1 

  Management will review the risks 

relating to the Housing Business Plan 

and determine: Risk(s) to be included 

in the Strategic Risk Register 

Risks to be included within the 

Housing Operational Risk Register. 

31/01/2013 

Not due 

29/08/2014 

Duncan Hall, 

Housing 

Manager & 

SHDC Senior 

Management 

Team 

P
age 62



SHDC Budget 

Management 

& Monitoring 

2012/13 

3 Medium 

Detailed payroll expenditure is not 

transferred from the AX payroll 

module into finance. Expenditure is 

posted in total for the month and 

budget holders cannot drill into the 

detail. 

Our review confirmed that budget 

holders monitor monthly spend 

against the profiled budget, but do 

no request any additional reports to 

check they are being charged for the 

correct employees, expenses etc. 

CPBS accountants can use a pivot 

table to extract this information.  

We undertand that CPBS recently 

agreed to purchase ZAP, report 

writer software that will enable 

tailored reports to be produced and 

made available through the portal. 

3.1 
Not 

Implemented 

ZAP is planned for implementation 

from 1 April 2013 therefore no 

further action  and await ZAP reports. 

The estblishment has been checked 

as part of the estimate process. 

31/05/2013 

ZAP rollout delayed - revised date to Sept (DB) 

Update to ELDC Internal Audit 29/10/13: 

We have some technical issues which we are 

working with HSUK to resolve. This has led to 

delays in implementation. DB 18/11/2013: ZAP 

should progress shortly and so allow time for TL to 

ensure this reporting need is met by 31/03/2014 

so that 2013/14 data onwards is available. 

TL 03/04/2014: ZAP rollout delayed until 

30/6/2014. Requires follow up 

? 

Sam 

Emmett- 

Laing, Payroll 

Officer, CPBS 

SHDC Payroll 

2012/13 
6 Medium 

Our testing identified occasions 

where J Stamp and M O'Connor had 

signed as their individual claim 

forms as authorising officer (the 

individual claim held by payroll) and 

then approved the summary sheet 

for payment. 

Effectively they are approving their 

own additional hours for payment 

by payroll. 

6.1 Implemented 

A hierarchy is being set up in 

Staffright to automatically forward 

claims to the appropriate officer for 

authorisation. The system will not 

allow self-authorisation. 
31/10/2013 Expenses module rolled out 01/04/2014. I35 N/A 

Tony 

Lascelles, 

CPBS Head of 

HR 

SHDC ICT 

Infrastructure 
13 Medium 

There is no security training plan 

covering staff at CPBS, SHDC and 

ELDC. 13 

  We will engage with the clients on 

their training requirements and 

provide training materials. 

CPBS will add to its training 

programme for CPBS Staff. 

31/12/2013 

Not due 

30/06/2014 

Tony 

Lascelles, 

CPBS Head of 

HR 

SHDC HR 

strategy 

& policies 

2013/14 

1 Medium 

Review of the Workforce Strategy 

document identified that it had not 

been reviewed since it was 

introduced in 2009. 

Additionally review of a number of 

the HR policies identified that they 

had also not been reviewed for a 

number of years.  For example; 

Performance Management Policy 

September 2009 

Long & Short Term Sickness policies 

March 2010. 

1.1 

  The HR Manager explained that 

following comments made by the 

Shared Management Team with 

regards to some issues they have in 

working to the different HR policies in 

place at both Council's, consideration 

is being given to introducing where 

applicable single policies covering 

both Councils. 

Once agreement is reached on this 

approach a programme of policy 

reviews will be instigated. 

31/12/2014 

Not due 

31/12/2014 

Ruth Hassall 

- HR 

Manager 

P
age 63



SHDC HR 

strategy 

& policies 

2013/14 
2 Medium 

Officers who took part in the review 

were unable to find an approved 

Service Level Agreement covering 

the provision of a Human Resources 

function. 

Officers did provide a draft 

document. 

2.1 

  The HR manager agreed with the 

finding explaining that she had 

recently been considering an update 

to the SLA. 

The HR manager will instigate a 

meeting with CPBS to review the 

current SLA in preparation for taking 

to Senior Management for formal 

approval. 

31/07/2014 

Not due 

31/07/2014 

Ruth Hassall 

- HR 

Manager 

SHDC HR 

strategy 

& policies 

2013/14 

4 Medium 

It was agreed that the introduction 

of a performance indicator would 

help encourage managers to 

undertake PDR's with their staff in 

line with the PDR policy. Thereby 

enabling prompt identification of the 

training requirement for the year 

and production of a timely training 

plan. 

The HR manager will approach the 

Performance Team and Senior 

Management to discuss the 

inclusion of an indicator as part of 

the performance indicator review 

that is currently taking place. 

4.1 

  

There are no corporate performance 

indicator to monitor the completion 

rate of the Performance 

Development Reviews. 

30/09/2014 

Not due 

30/09/2014 

Ruth Hassall 

- HR 

Manager 

SHDC ICT 

Infrastructure 
12 Medium No firewall policies exist. 12 

  All changes are agreed but it is 

acknowledged that it is not formally 

documented. This will be 

incorporated into the change control 

review identified in 6 above. 

30/04/2013 

Not due 

30/06/2014 

G Stephens, 

S Burns 

SHDC ICT 

Infrastructure 
21 Medium 

There are three Windows domains 

covering SHDC, ELDC and CPBS and a 

concern was raised with regard to 

the stability of the SHDC Windows 

domain. 

21 

  The process of replacing the SHDC 

domain has commenced. Migrating to 

active Directory. 31/12/2013 

Not due 

30/09/2014 

G Stephens, 

S Burns 

SHDC ICT 

Infrastructure 1 Medium 

Whilst individual ICT strategies exist 

there is no single ICT strategy 

document reflecting the needs of 

ELDC, SHDC and CPBS. 1.1 

  CPBS shall produce an overarching 

ICT strategy. 

The two Council's will need to 

develop their own policies that reflect 

their Corporate policies, to which 

CPBS's policy will respond. 

31/03/2013 

  

31/10/2013 

Gary 

Stephens, 

CPBS Head of 

ICT 

SHDC ICT 

Infrastructure 5 Medium 

There is no document describing the 

security tests, checks and tests to be 

completed, including responsibility 

and frequency, or references to the 

results from earlier security audits 

and other security related activities. 

5.1 

  

We will design a security matrix plan. 31/03/2013 

Not due 

30/06/2014 

Gary 

Stephens, 

CPBS Head of 

ICT 

SHDC ICT 

Infrastructure 5 Medium 

There is no document describing the 

security tests, checks and tests to be 

completed, including responsibility 

and frequency, or references to the 

results from earlier security audits 

and other security related activities. 

5.2 

  

We will implement the security 

matrix plan. 
30/04/2014 

Not due 

30/06/2014 

Gary 

Stephens, 

CPBS Head of 

ICT 

P
age 64



SHDC ICT 

Infrastructure 
10 Medium 

The backup policy for servers and 

applications is not currently 

captured and recorded via the 

service desk (Hornbill). 

10 

  
Records will be added to Hornbill 

system. 
30/04/2013 

Not due 

30/06/2014 M Hall 

SHDC ICT 

Infrastructure 
15 Medium 

For ELDC there is no intrusion 

prevention system. For SHDC a LAN 

guardian product has been 

deployed, however it is questionable 

as to how much usage is made of it. 

15 

  Will install a system for ELDC if 

approval given for the expenditure. 

30/06/2013 

Not due 

30/06/2014 S Burns 

SHDC ICT 

Infrastructure 
17 Medium 

At present it is difficult to assess the 

level of network separation or 

indeed its effectiveness. 17 

  Will include within firewall 

documentation and policies, and 

make reference in operational 

procedures. 

VLANS implemented at both sites. 

30/06/2013 

Not due 

30/06/2014 S Burns 

SHDC ICT 

Infrastructure 8 Medium 

There is a reference to event logging 

in the 'Communications and 

Operations management' 

procedure, however a more detailed 

policy is required. 

We were advised that a discussion 

paper on application administration 

is being prepared for CPBS MT. 

8.1 

  This has been incorporated into CPBS 

procedures firstly for CPBS managed 

systems and secondly for Client 

systems. 

CPBS ELDC SHDC 30/09/2013 

Not due 

30/06/2014 
S Burns, M 

Payne 

SHDC 

Information 

Governance 

13/14 

1 High 

The Data Protection Policy has not 

been reviewed since August 2003 

when it was first published. Whilst 

the majority of the   content is still 

applicable, details of the officers 

responsible for data protection and 

council structures have changed. 

This is also the case for the 

Information Management Policy 

(dated 2004) which includes the 

Freedom of Information policy. 

Regular review and update of these 

policies is essential to make sure 

they remain up to date and to give 

users the confidence that they are 

complete and accurate. 

1.1 Implemented 

Agreed. This is currently being 

worked on and will be given to CMT 

for review and sign off when 

completed. 

This task will be scheduled in for an 

annual review. 

01/06/2014 

Approved by Cabinet on 6 May 2014, was also 

approved by CMT and PDP.  To be published when 

the website and other supporting documents are 

updated. This will be late June/early July. The two 

policies can be found in the audit evidence folder. 

N/A 

Louisa Clare, 

Member 

Services 

Officer 

P
age 65



SHDC 

Information 

Governance 

13/14 

2 High 

From discussion we understand that 

a briefing on data protection and FOI 

may be included as part of an 

employee's induction, but this is at 

the manager's discretion. 

A PowerPoint presentation is 

available for this purpose, but there 

is no reference within it to actual 

policies, procedures or any further 

reading for staff. 

Without some basic training on data 

protection and FOI, there is a risk 

new staff may not be aware of 

statutory requirements and their 

responsibilities when dealing with 

personal information. 

2.1 Implemented 

We will speak to HR and get this set 

up to ensure that this process is more 

robust and that it is a mandatory part 

of the induction process. 

01/06/2014 

HR has agreed to inform the Data protection and 

Freedom of Information Officer of any new 

starters.  The appropriate Officer will then provide 

a one to one induction and will ensure that they 

have access to the supporting documents on the 

intranet. 

N/A 

Louisa Clare, 

Member 

Services 

Officer 

SHDC 

Information 

Governance 

13/14 

3 High 

Our discussions with a sample of 

council staff identified that 3 out of 

9 had not received training on data 

protection, and 1 out of 9 had not 

received training on FOI. 

The staff interviewed all stated that 

they were confident that they 

understand requirements without 

training. However, 5 out of 9 

interviewed stated that they were 

uncertain about or didn't know the 

statutory time limits for responding 

to a subject data access request. 

Training is a fundamental control to 

ensure staff have sufficient 

understanding of their 

responsibilities for data protection 

and FOI. 

There are no regular reminders to 

raise awareness of data protection 

and FOI. 

3.1 Implemented 

This will be looked into while we 

update the policies. We will examine 

possible E- Learning programmes to 

enable all staff to gain a better 

understanding of DP and FOI, and 

provide refresher training to those 

staff that have already had formal 

training. 

We will also look at providing support 

to managers to enable them to 

discuss this at team meetings and will 

send out emails to all staff on a 

quarterly basis to remind them of the 

process and provide links to the 

policies. 

01/06/2014 

We have spoken to Breckland Training Services 

and they have agreed to provide training on Data 

Protection, Freedom of Information and RIPA.  

Requires review 

N/A 

Louisa Clare, 

Member 

Services 

Officer 

P
age 66



SHDC 

Information 

Governance 

13/14 

4 Medium 

While the information available for 

members of the public on the SHDC 

website about data protection and 

freedom of information is clear and 

still relevant, it has not been 

reviewed since its creation in 2003 

and 2004. 

Contact details and council 

structures are not up to date. This 

may undermine confidence in the 

other information presented. 

4.1 
Not 

Implemented 

Agreed. This information will be 

refreshed at the same time as the 

policies. 

01/06/2014 

The Access to Information section on the Councils 

website is under review and will be updated late 

June/early July. 

31/07/2014 

Louisa Clare, 

Member 

Services 

Officer 

SHDC 

Information 

Governance 

13/14 

5 High 

In the past each council Member has  

needed to be registered individually 

as an Information Controller. This 

registration has not been completed 

this year on the basis of feedback 

from the Council Leader that central 

government do not require this 

process any more. 

Currently there is no official 

confirmation of this. The council's 

Data Protection Officer is accepting 

the risk until official notification is 

received. 

We have identified that another 

local district council does not 

register all Members but only those 

that meet specific criteria on the 

processing of information. 

5.1 Implemented 

We will look into this and aim to get a 

definitive answer from the ICO. 

Depending on the outcome of this, 

information from the other local 

authority regarding registering 

specific members will be examined 

and legal advice will be taken to verify 

that this can be done at SHDC. 

01/04/2014 

Almost all members have been registered under 

the scheme now. Final few members to be 

registered within June 2014.  Requires review 

N/A 

Vicky 

Thomson, 

Assistant 

Director 

Corporate 

Services 

SHDC 

Information 

Governance 

13/14 

6 Medium 

Whilst the guidance for staff, 

councillors and members of the 

public makes reference to the 40 

day limit for responding to a data 

subject access request, this is not 

stated within the Data Protection 

policy itself. 

This deadline is a key element of the 

council's responsibilities under the 

data protection act and should be 

clearly stated within the policy. 

6.1 Implemented 
This will be included within the policy 

update. 
01/06/2014 See page 8 of the revised policy. N/A 

Louisa Clare, 

Member 

Services 

Officer 

P
age 67



SHDC 

Information 

Governance 

13/14 

8 Medium 

We could not identify any internal 

guidance on the disclosure of service 

user data to third parties. 

If staff do not have clear guidelines 

to follow there is a risk information 

may be shared inappropriately. 8.1 
Not 

Implemented 

Agreed. More detailed information 

will be created for staff. This will be 

included within the updated policies, 

and refresher information will also be 

sent out to staff to ensure that the 

correct procedures are followed. 01/06/2014 
This will be uploaded to the intranet along with all 

other supporting documents. 
31/07/2014 

Louisa Clare, 

Member 

Services 

Officer 

SHDC 

Information 

Governance 

13/14 

9 Medium 

It is not clear when the council's 

Publication Scheme was last 

reviewed. 

This document needs to be up to 

date so that members of staff and 

the public are aware of the 

information that will be published 

and is a key point of reference prior 

to making a FOI request. 

The Information Commissioner's 

Office has recently issued new 

guidance to local authorities on 

publication schemes. We 

understand CPBS are planning a 

review on behalf of the council. 

9.1 
Not 

Implemented 

This role is to be completed as part of 

the CPBS service agreement. We will 

liaise with CPBS to ensure that this is 

completed. 

01/06/2014 

To be implemented along with the new webpage. 

Publication Scheme will have its own section, with 

a completely new layout to ensure it is user 

friendly.  CPBS have had no involvement. 

31/07/2014 

Louisa Clare, 

Member 

Services 

Officer 

SHDC 

Information 

Governance 

13/14 

10 Medium 

During the testing of a sample of 10 

FOI requests, we found that 2 were 

responded to outside of the 

statutory 20 working days. Both 

examples appeared to be around 

staff not responding quickly enough 

to the request rather than a 

procedural issue. 

10.1 Implemented 

Reminders are sent out to staff as 

part of this process but we will look at 

making this more robust to ensure 

that they are completed within the 20 

days. We will also ensure that senior 

management is made aware if there 

could be late responses in their areas 

to allow them to chase their staff up 

as well. 

01/06/2014 

Reminder and chaser emails are sent out to staff,  

phone calls and visits to offices are made to ensure 

that deadlines are met.  Any outstanding FOI 

requests will be reported to CMT on a quarterly 

basis. 
N/A 

Louisa Clare, 

Member 

Services 

Officer 

SHDC 

Information 

Governance 

13/14 

11 Medium 

Exemptions can apply to some FOI 

requests. In our testing we could not 

always see written approval to 

confirm exemptions had been 

approved by the Assistant Director, 

Democratic Services. 

To ensure the council always applies 

exemptions correctly, there should 

be clear evidence of approval from 

the senior officer responsible for 

FOI. 

11.1 Implemented 

This process will now be taken on by 

Mark Stinson, Legal Services Co-

ordinator. 

We will ensure that written 

confirmation is now received and 

retained for all requests that fall 

under the exemption process. This 

will not include cases where 

information is held by another 

Authority. 

31/03/2014 

All Freedom of Information refusal notices and 

Data Protection subject access requests are 

authorised by either Vicky Thomson or Mark 

Stinson. 

N/A 

Louisa Clare, 

Member 

Services 

Officer 

P
age 68



SHDC 

Information 

Governance 

13/14 
12 Medium 

There is little information available 

to members of the public as to what 

is classified as an exemption under 

the FOI Act. 

Having information on exemptions 

would help the public understand 

when a request is unlikely to be 

successful. 

12.1 
Not 

Implemented 

We will add a link to the ICO website 

that allows users to understand what 

is classified as an exemption. 

01/06/2014 To be included on the Councils website. 31/07/2014 

Louisa Clare, 

Member 

Services 

Officer 

SHDC 

Information 

Governance 

13/14 
14 Medium 

We noted that there were a number 

of  cases on the FOI spreadsheet 

where Ops Support had not been 

informed when a FOI request had 

been replied to. This meant that the 

FOI spreadsheet was not updated  

making it appear that some 

completed FOI requests were still 

outstanding. 

14.1 Implemented 

We do highlight that staff should 

complete the process fully through 

emails but will ensure that this 

information is made clearer. We will 

ensure that this process is refreshed 

through the quarterly email process 

as well. 

01/06/2014 

This noted clearly on all requests that are sent to 

Officers and we will be sure to highlight this at 

every opportunity. 

N/A 

Louisa Clare, 

Member 

Services 

Officer 

SHDC 

Information 

Governance 

13/14 13 Medium 

The FOI charging policy was written 

in 2004 and has never been 

reviewed. It is not included on the 

FOI section of the website or 

available in the Priory Road 

reception for members of the public 

to refer to. 

13.1 
Not 

Implemented 

This role is to be completed as part of 

the CPBS service agreement. We will 

liaise with CPBS to ensure that this is 

completed. 01/06/2014 

All charges are available within our Publication 

Scheme which will be available on our website and 

to view at Reception.  There is no need for a 

charging policy however we have created charging 

guidance, which will be  available on our website 

and on our intranet.  CPBS have had no 

involvement. 

31/07/2014 

Louisa Clare, 

Member 

Services 

Officer 

SHDC 

Information 

Governance 

13/14 

15 High 

The document retention policy is 

dated 2005 and there is no evidence 

that it has been reviewed since this 

date. 

In the 8 years since the policy was 

created the documents produced by 

service areas  are likely to have 

changed and some services are now 

run by CPBS. 

In the absence of an up to date and 

comprehensive policy, there is a risk 

that information is not retained for 

an appropriate period of time. 

15.1 

  

This will be checked and updated. 

Due to the links with Compass Point, 

we will co- ordinate with Karen 

Rippen from CPBS to complete the 

recommendations. 

01/08/2014 

Not due   

Louisa Clare, 

Member 

Services 

Officer 

SHDC 

Information 

Governance 

13/14 

16 Medium 

The majority of officers we 

interviewed did not know who was 

responsible for checking compliance 

with document retention periods in 

their department or when / if checks 

are completed. 

If responsibility is not clear, 

information may not be retained for 

the correct period of time and the 

council may face criticism  when it 

has to respond to subject access or 

FOI requests. 

16.1 

  We will update our policies and 

ensure that each team has a 

nominated champion. We will 

confirm that these members of staff 

understand their roles and this will be 

refreshed through the use of 

reminder emails. 

01/08/2014 

Not due   

Louisa Clare, 

Member 

Services 

Officer 

P
age 69



SHDC 

Performance 

Management 

2012/13 

2 Medium 

Review of quarter 2 reports to 

Performance Monitoring Panel 

(PMP) and Cabinet identified issues 

to be addressed: 

- management comments were 

missing from the Cabinet report. 

(These were shown in P+ and the 

issue may have arisen when the 

reports were prepared for 

committee). 

- some performance indicators and 

projects listed show the symbol for 

'data missing' or 'no update 

received'. In a small number of 

cases, there was no explanation for 

this. 

The Cabinet report included much 

more data than the PMP report. We 

understand that this was down to 

the ongoing improvement of 

reports. 

2.1 Implemented 

Meetings are planned with the 

service areas to review the projects 

and performance indicators to 

rationalise the information reported. 

On-going training will address the 

issues with 'missing data'. 

31/05/2013 

The Performance Plus system has 

been discontinued and replaced 

with a new workbook based system.  

The reports to PMP and Cabinet 

have been modified to take into 

account these recommendations.  

This recommendation can be closed 

N/A 
Samantha 

Dancer 

SHDC 

Procurement 

2013/14 
3 High 

The SHDC contract register available 

through the Procurement 

Lincolnshire website is dated July 

2013.  It includes contracts which 

have expired and does not include 

more recent contracts awarded. This 

register also differs from the one 

held by SHDC up to the same date. 

The register is a key tool to assist 

management in monitoring key 

contracts and threfore needs to be 

complete and up to date. 

3.1 

  A  system has been introduced so 

that Member Services advise the 

Performance Team of any new 

contracts.  Procurement Lincolnshire 

have also recently identified contracts 

missing from the register.  These will 

be added. 

In addition the performance partners 

will ask key officers at their monthly 

meetings if there are any changes to 

their contract register. 

30/06/2014 

Not due 

30/06/2014 
Samantha 

Dancer 

SHDC 

Procurement 

2013/14 
4 Medium 

During the audit it was necessary to 

view contract documentation.  

Whilst were were able to find the 

information we needed, it was not 

easy to find the contracts in 

question because the contract 

register does not always list the 

contract number used for filing 

purposes. 

4.1 

  Key officers will be asked to supply 

copies of missing contracts/SLA's.  If 

they are not available then it will be 

the officer's responsibility to contact 

the supplier to request a copy.  They 

will be reminded that copies of all 

new contracts should be sent to the 

Performance Team. 

The aim is to have scanned copies of 

the contracts/SLAs available through 

a hyperlink from the contract 

register. 

30/06/2014 

Not due 

30/06/2014 
Samantha 

Dancer 

SHDC 

Procurement 

2013/14 5 Medium 

Officers did not always hold copies 

of tenders received when 

consultants had been involved in the 

procurement process. 

5.1 

  Key officers will be reminded of the 

requirement to keep copies of the 

tender documents which will link with 

the action at 4. 

30/06/2014 

Not due 

30/06/2014 

Samantha 

Dancer 

P
age 70



SHDC 

Procurement 

2013/14 
1 High 

Our review of top suppliers by 

payment value found that in four 

out of the ten we sampled there 

were no tendering 

arrangements/contracts in place. 

Where this is the case, procurement 

arrangements have not followed 

contract regulations, with the risk 

that the Council cannot demonstrate 

transparency and fairness in supplier 

selection or that value for money 

has been achieved. 

We note that Procurement 

Lincolnshire and SHDC are currently 

undertaking reviews which should 

address some of the contracts in our 

sample. 

1.1 
Not 

Implemented 

A strategic commissioning group has  

been established across Breckland 

and SHDC. As part of this, 

Procurement Lincolnshire have been 

asked to undertake a headline 

category spend analysis and provide 

recommendations on procurement 

options against items which can be 

easily and quickly procured. 31/03/2014 

Procurement Lincolnshire are undertaking a 

further category spend analysis and will in due 

course report on the issue. 

31/08/2014 
Dale 

Robinson 

SHDC HR 

strategy 

& policies 

2013/14 

3 Medium 

Performance statistics supplied by 

CPBS to SHDC for inclusion SHINE 

are not independently validated by 

the Joint Performance Team. 

3.1 

  Accuracy and quality of performance 

data is a key requirement within any 

performance system if poor decisions 

are not to be made. 

We are currently reviewing the 

performance indicator/ measures 

requirements of the Council and will 

include this requirement for suitable 

validation and data quality assurance 

checks within our performance 

management system review. 

30/09/2014 

Not due 

30/09/2014 

Dale 

Robinson - 

Interim 

Business 

Development 

Manager 

SHDC Council 

Tax 

& Housing 

Benefit 

2013/14 
1 Medium 

Our review of 5 overpayments 

written off at ELDC found that 2 

(value £441.60) had not been 

included in the retrospective report 

to the S151 Officer as per their 

procedures. 

1.1 Implemented 

A manual check will be introduced 

between the CDS report and 

individual write off papers prior to 

approval by S151 Officer. 

This check will be evidenced. 
30/04/2014 

Manual check introduced for quarter 4 write off's 

so that check carried out to ensure that system 

reports matched Section 151 report. ELDC process 

revised for 2014 so that write offs only actioned 

after Official approval. This brings the process in 

line with SHDC. 

N/A 

Mark 

Woolerton - 

Team Leader 

Recovery 

SHDC Council 

Tax 

& Housing 

Benefit 

2013/14 

3 Medium 

The subsidy testing carried out by 

Internal Audit, on behalf of External 

Audit, found similar classification 

issues with council housing and non-

council housing claims that had been 

found in the previous year.  We 

were unable to find any evidence 

that Benefits staff have been 

informed of this  and reminded of 

differences in the two types of 

claims. 

Ensuring claims are classified 

correctly for subsidy purposes will 

mean that the subsidy claim is 

correct and that further testing of 

claims by the Benefits teams will be 

minimised. 

3.1 Implemented 

A reminder was issued to staff in 

September 2012. 

A reminder to staff, with a list of such 

claims, will be included in the 

Benefits Bulletin along with a link to 

the list of current properties. 

31/03/2014 

20.03.14 A further reminder has been issued to 

staff via the benefits weekly bulletin. Further 

training for the team is planned for April 2014 

The QA team are ensuring checks are undertaken 

as part of their audit programme.KR 

N/A 

Sonia Limm - 

Team Leader, 

Benefits 

P
age 71



SHDC Council 

Tax 

& Housing 

Benefit 

2013/14 

3 Medium 

The subsidy testing carried out by 

Internal Audit, on behalf of External 

Audit, found similar classification 

issues with council housing and non-

council housing claims that had been 

found in the previous year.  We 

were unable to find any evidence 

that Benefits staff have been 

informed of this  and reminded of 

differences in the two types of 

claims. 

Ensuring claims are classified 

correctly for subsidy purposes will 

mean that the subsidy claim is 

correct and that further testing of 

claims by the Benefits teams will be 

minimised. 

3.2 

  

A quarterly check of all such cases will 

be introduced as part of the quality 

assurance process. 

30/06/2014 

Not due 

30/06/2014 

Amie 

Househam - 

Operations 

Support 

Team Leader 

SHDC Welfare 

Reform 

2013/14 

1 High 

Details and outcomes of 

Discretionary Housing Payment 

applications are recorded on a 

spreadsheet by the Benefit 

Specialists. This spreadsheet is used 

as a management tool to calculate 

expenditure and assist with 

forecasting. 

We found that we could not 

reconcile this spreadsheet to the 

Academy system: 

- Incorrect dates had been input on 

the spreadsheet 

- Claims had been 

cancelled/adjusted which were not 

reflected in the spreadsheet 

- Successful claims on the 

spreadsheet did not appear on 

Academy 

It is important that accurate data is 

provided to management for 

budgetary control.  We found that 

DHP’s do not currently have their 

own budget code; payments are 

made from the Rent Allowance cost 

code. A separate budget code would 

enable clear budget monitoring and 

clear reconciliation between 

Academy and Ledger. 

1.2 

  

A full reconciliation will be 

undertaken as part of the subsidy 

work. 

Monitoring of DHP’s has commenced 

and will continue on a monthly basis 

30/06/2014 

Not due 

30/06/2014 
Benefits 

Team Leader 

P
age 72



SHDC Welfare 

Reform 

2013/14 

2 Medium 

Although we found that the benefit 

cap had been applied correctly, 

there were occasions when the Atlas 

reports from the DWP were not 

processed for up to 2 weeks. 

As the benefit cap is applied from 

the Monday following the date the 

local authority decision is made, the 

delays in processing will lead to 

additional benefit being paid to the 

claimant for that period. Although 

the sum of overpayment is not 

significant, claimants are still 

receiving benefit they are no longer 

entitled to. 

2.1 

  

Agreed - A communication has been 

issued to the team and the Team 

Leader will ensure the reports are 

dealt with promptly. 

02/04/2014 

Requires review 

02/04/2014 
Benefits 

Team Leader 

SHDC Welfare 

Reform 

2013/14 

3 Medium 

Performance and Improvement 

Agents carry out quality checks on a 

sample of claims on  a daily basis. On 

a 4 weekly basis a full  report is run 

of all claims and a random sample of 

42 claims are reviewed in detail. 

As the samples are randomly 

selected across Housing Benefits and 

Council Tax support there is no 

guarantee that a relative number of 

Council Tax Support claims will be 

picked up. 

It is important that a clear number 

of CTS claims are reviewed regularly 

to provide assurance that the 

correct reductions are being applied. 

3.1 

  

Agreed - a sample of CTS claims will 

be checked quarterly. 
30/06/2014 

Not due 

30/06/2014 

Operations 

Support 

Team 

Leader. 

SHDC Welfare 

Reform 

2013/14 

4 Medium 

Council Tax Support reconciliation is 

carried out on a daily basis. We 

found that for both Councils the 

majority of imbalances that have 

arisen since August 2013 have not 

yet been resolved. The main reason 

for this appears to be due to time 

constraints. 

It is important that imbalances are 

reviewed regularly so that any 

problems can be identified, reported 

and resolved promptly. 

4.1 Implemented 

Agreed – A discussion with staff will 

identify the reasons for delays in 

reviewing imbalances and 

allimbalances will be cleared by 30 

April. 

There will be a review of Academy 

Efficiency functionality for automated 

reconciliation. This will identify any 

imbalances throughout the day and 

lead to timely reviews. 

30/04/2014 

Reconcillations completed for the 30 April. 

Reconcillation are being maintained on a regular 

basis to keep up to date. The team are still 

reviewing automated reconcillation but as these 

are now up to date & being maintained action 

complete. 

N/A 

Recovery & 

Support 

Supervisor 

 

P
age 73



APPENDIX E 
 

Internal Audit Plan and Schedule 2014/15 
 

 
Area  
 

 
Days  

 
Indicative Scope 

 
Planned 
Start Date 

 
Actual 
Start Date 

 
Final 
Report 
Issued 

 
Status / Assurance 
Level Given 

Critical Service Activities       

Chief Executive       

Key Officer Groups         10 To provide assurance on 
ability to deliver successful 
results / outcomes. 
 
Review governance 
arrangements – project 
management and decision 
making. 
 

Quarter 3   There are close 
linkages between 
this review and the 
delivery of savings 
targets audit so they 
will be completed at 
the same time. 

       

Director of Commissioning       

Housing Revenue Account         10 Assurance over the 
effectiveness of long term 
strategy and effective use of 
income. 
 

Quarter 3   Changes to 
Business Plan – 
agreed to defer to 
Q3 

CSU         10 Review of performance and 
delivery and gateway 
reviews of business case / 
implementation if transfer to 
CPBS approved by the 
Council. 
 

Quarter 2   Start date depends 
on Council progress 
in this area 

Sub total 
 
 

         30 
 

     

Due Diligence       

P
age 74



 
Area  
 

 
Days  

 
Indicative Scope 

 
Planned 
Start Date 

 
Actual 
Start Date 

 
Final 
Report 
Issued 

 
Status / Assurance 
Level Given 

  
 

     

       

Finance Systems 

• Cash receipting (CR) 

• Budget preparation (BP)  

• Medium Term Financial 
Plan (MTFP) 

• Payroll (P) 
 

 
CR-9 

BP/MTFP  
 
 
 

16 
 

 

To ensure the Council’s 
financial control environment 
is robust and operating 
effectively. 
 
Areas selected from risk 
assessment, last audit, 
changes, External Audit 
liaison and assurance map. 

 
 
 

CR 
August 14 
 
BP / MTFP 
Q3 
 
P 
Q3 
October 

  This will be 
delivered in 
conjunction with 
ELDC internal audit. 
 
SHDC auditors 
Payroll 
Cash Receipting 
 
ELDC auditors 
BP/MTFP 
Cash Receipting 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Key Control Testing of 
Financial systems 

14 To undertake testing on key 
controls within finance 
systems for Head of Audit 
assurance 

 

Quarter 4   This will be 
delivered in 
conjunction with 
ELDC internal audit. 
 
SHDC 
Creditors/Property/ 
Housing benefits 
 
ELDC 
Debtors, Council 

P
age 75



 
Area  
 

 
Days  

 
Indicative Scope 

 
Planned 
Start Date 

 
Actual 
Start Date 

 
Final 
Report 
Issued 

 
Status / Assurance 
Level Given 

Tax, NNDR, Bank 
Reconciliation 
 
 

Health & Safety            8 To ensure that the Council 
has effective health and 
safety arrangements in place 
that comply with relevant 
legislation and regulations 

 

Quarter 4   This audit will be 
delivered by Audit 
Lincolnshire Health 
and Safety 
specialists. 

Recruitment & Retention              9 To review how the Council is 
addressing risks identified 
around staff recruitment and 
retention staff 

 

Quarter 1 15th  May 
2014 

 Scope agreed. 
 
Fieldwork stage. 

Insurance          6 To ensure that the Council 
has effective arrangements 
in place to manage its 
insurable risks 

 

Quarter 4   This audit will be 
delivered by Audit 
Lincolnshire 
Insurance 
Specialists. 
 
 
 
 

Delivery of Savings Targets         8 To confirm the delivery of 
savings targets as approved 
in the budget and review the 
impact on service delivery / 
delivery models 
 

Quarter 3   There are close 
linkages between 
this review and the 
KOG review above 
so will be completed 
at the same time. 
 

CPBS        10 Undertake a review of the 
governance, risk and internal 

Quarter 2   Detailed scope 
under discussion 

P
age 76



 
Area  
 

 
Days  

 
Indicative Scope 

 
Planned 
Start Date 

 
Actual 
Start Date 

 
Final 
Report 
Issued 

 
Status / Assurance 
Level Given 

control regime of the 
Company 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Contract Management      10 To provide assurance that 
key contracts are managed 
effectively and monitored to 
confirm they are delivering 
as agreed 

 

Quarter 3 
 
 

  Current Council 
review of strategic 
contract 
management and 
procurement first 
quarter; agreed to 
defer to Q3 until 
results known 
/implemented 
 

Partnerships / Collaborative 
working  

       10 
 
 

Assurance on the 
effectiveness of the 
Council's partnership / 
collaborative working 
arrangements and how 
collaborative working 
supports delivery of the 
Council's priorities and 
tackling the 'big issues' 
facing the Council.  
Transformation programme 
– actions following the peer 
review 
 

Quarter 3    

P
age 77



 
Area  
 

 
Days  

 
Indicative Scope 

 
Planned 
Start Date 

 
Actual 
Start Date 

 
Final 
Report 
Issued 

 
Status / Assurance 
Level Given 

 
 
 
 

Information Governance          5 Follow up review to confirm 
management actions from 
2013/14 audit have been 
implemented and review 
effectiveness of data 
security arrangements 
 

Quarter 3   Quarter 3 to allow 
time to embed 
recommendations 
 

Sub Total          105      

Benefits Subsidy claim 
 
 

          25 Testing to support the 
external audit of the subsidy 
claim 
 

Quarter 2/3 
 
June/ July  
2014 

  Awaiting data. 

Sub Total            25      

Strategic Risk            0      

       

Sub Total            0      

 
 

      

Emerging Risks       

Emerging risk contingency           15 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

To audit any significant 
emerging risks arising in the 
year. 

   Scope / dates to be 
agreed 

Sub Total            15      

Other relevant Areas       

P
age 78



 
Area  
 

 
Days  

 
Indicative Scope 

 
Planned 
Start Date 

 
Actual 
Start Date 

 
Final 
Report 
Issued 

 
Status / Assurance 
Level Given 

Combined Assurance            10 Co-ordinating and updating 
assurances on the Council’s 
assurance map with service 
managers.   
 
 

December 
2014 

   

Sub Total            10      

ICT Audit.       

ICT Audit 

• Mobile Devices 

• IT security 

           20 Identifying the assurances 
available on the Councils 
ICT Management 
arrangements – 
Infrastructure – applications.  
Based on this information, 
we will undertake an ICT 
audit e.g. of a critical 
application or IT security. 

   Working in 
conjunction with 
ELDC internal audit 
on certain aspects.  
 
Scope and start 
dates to be agreed. 

Sub Total           20      

Non-Audit       

Advice / liaison           6      

Annual Report           1      

Audit Committee            6      

Sub Total          13      

Total Audit Plan for 2014/15          218      

 
 
 
 
 

P
age 79



T
his page is intentionally left blank



SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
Report of: Assistant Director Finance (S151) 
 
To:    Governance and Audit Committee – 26 June 2014 
 
(Author:  Mark Finch, Assistant Director Finance (S151)) 
 
Subject: Draft Annual Governance Statement 2013-14 
 
Purpose: To seek approval for the Annual Governance Statement prior to submission to 

audit. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1.0 BACKGROUND 
 
1.1 Under the Council’s constitution this committee is responsible for overseeing the Council’s 

work around corporate governance. Part of that remit covers the approval of the Annual 
Governance Statement. 

 
1.2 Councils have a responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of their governance 

arrangements, with the review informing the Annual Governance Statement. The review of 
effectiveness is informed by the work of the executive managers within the authority who 
have responsibility for the development and maintenance of the governance environment, 
the Head of Audit and Risk Management’s annual report (which is reported separately to 
this Committee), and also by comments made by the external auditors and other review 
agencies and inspectorates. 

 
1.3 The Annual Governance Statement explains how South Holland District Council has 

complied with the code and also meets the requirements of regulation 4(2) of the Accounts 
and Audit Regulations 2003 as amended by the Accounts and Audit (Amendment) 
(England) Regulations 2011 in relation to the publication of a statement on internal control. 

 
1.4 Earlier on the Agenda the committee received the Internal Audit Annual Report from the 

Head of Audit & Risk Management. This commented on the effectiveness of the Council’s 
arrangements for governance, risk management and control arrangements. Findings from 
that report will be reflected in the Annual Governance Statement prior to finalisation of the 
Statement. 

 
1.5 Management team have regularly reviewed governance arrangements throughout the year, 

including risk management arrangements, service manager assurance statements, as well 
as finance reports. The Annual Governance Statement draws on this work as well as the 
work of auditors. 

 
1.6 Committee members are requested to review the draft Annual Governance Statement 

(appendix A), to ensure that it reflects the reports they have considered over the past year, 
and that it supports their general understanding of the authority’s governance 
arrangements. 

Recommendations:  

 

a) It is recommended that the Committee approves the Annual Governance 
Statement. 

 

Page 81

Agenda Item 6.



1.7 Once approved by the committee, the statement will be presented to the Leader and Chief 
Executive for formal sign off and submission to external audit, along with the statements of 
accounts. 

 
2.0 OPTIONS 
 
2.1 To approve the Annual Governance Statement 
 
2.2 Make changes to the Annual Governance Statement 

 
3.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
3.1 To meet corporate governance best practice and statutory reporting requirements. 

 
4.0 EXPECTED BENEFITS AND TIMELINES 
 
4.1 To meet corporate governance best practice and statutory reporting requirements. 
 
5.0 IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.1 Carbon Footprint & Environmental Issues 
 
5.1.1 Carbon Footprint and Environmental issues have been considered and in the opinion of the 

report writer, there are none. 
 
5.2 Constitution & Legal 
 
5.2.1 Accounts and Audit Regulations 2011 
 
5.3 Contracts 
 
5.3.1 Contracts issues have been considered and in the opinion of the report writer, there are 

none. 
 
5.4 Crime and Disorder  
 
5.4.1 Crime and Disorder issues have been considered and in the opinion of the report writer, 

there are none. 
 
5.5 Equality and Diversity & Human Rights 
 
5.5.1 Equality and Diversity and Human Rights issues have been considered and in the opinion 

of the report writer, there are none. 
 
5.6 Financial  
 
5.6.1 Financial issues have been considered and in the opinion of the report writer, there are 

none. 
 
5.7 Risk Management  
 
5.7.1 Risks are included in the Annual Governance Statement. 
 

Page 82



5.8 Staffing 
 
5.8.1 Staffing issues have been considered and in the opinion of the report writer, there are none. 
  
5.9 Stakeholders / Consultation 
 
5.9.1 Stakeholder/Consultation issues have been considered and in the opinion of the report 

writer, there are none. 
 
6.0 WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED 
 
6.1 Not applicable. 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 
Background papers:- None 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 
Lead Contact Officer 
Name/Post: Mark Finch – Assistant Director Finance 
Telephone Number: 01775 761161 
Email: mark.finch@breckland-sholland.gov.uk 
 
Appendices attached to this report:  
Appendix A – Draft Annual Governance Statement 2013-14 

Page 83



This page is intentionally left blank



 

  

APPENDIX A 
 
South Holland District Council 
ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 
 
Scope of responsibilities 

South Holland District Council is responsible for ensuring that its business is conducted in accordance 
with the law and proper standards, that public money is safeguarded and properly accounted for, used 
economically, efficiently and effectively.  The Council also has a duty under the Local Government Act 
1999 to make arrangements to secure continuous improvement in the way in which its functions are 
exercised, having regard to a combination of economy, efficiency and effectiveness.   

In discharging this overall responsibility, the Council is also responsible for ensuring that there is a 
sound system of governance which facilitates the effective exercise of the Council’s functions and 
which includes arrangements for the management of risk.  

To this effect South Holland District Council has approved and adopted a code of corporate 
governance, which is consistent with the principles of the CIPFA/SOLACE Framework Delivering 
Good Governance in Local Government. A copy of the code is available on our website at 
www.sholland.gov.uk 

This statement explains how South Holland District Council has complied with the code and also 
meets the requirements of the Accounts and Audit Regulations (England) 2011.   
 
The purpose of the Governance Framework 

The governance framework comprises the systems and processes, and cultures and values, for the 
direction and control of the Authority and its activities through which it accounts to, engages with and 
leads the community. Our governance framework enables us to monitor the achievement of our 
strategic objectives and to consider whether those objectives have led to the delivery of appropriate, 
cost-effective services. 

The system of internal control is a significant part of that framework and is designed to manage risk to 
a reasonable level. It cannot eliminate all risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives and 
can only provide reasonable (not absolute) assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control 
is based on an ongoing process designed to identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement of our 
policies, aims and objectives. Through it we evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised and 
the impact should they be realised, to enable us to manage them efficiently, effectively and 
economically. 

The governance framework has been in place at the Authority for the year ended March 2014 and up 
to the date of approval of the Statement of Accounts. 
 
The governance framework 
 
Strategic leadership - Our corporate plan covering the period 2011 to 2015 sets out our high level 
plans for delivering our longer term vision for South Holland to be a thriving, living, working, rural 
community. It explains the context of the area of South Holland, the challenges we face, and how the 
views of residents have influenced our priorities for action. The corporate plan is about what the 
Council plans to achieve over the four year period, and sets out the Council’s corporate values and 
behaviours and identifies the five priority areas.  
 

Page 85



 

  

Partnership working - The Council’s financial regulations set out the principles of effective 
management of resources when working in partnership, including the setting of clear objectives and 
management of financial and delivery risks. This work is strengthened by our involvement in the 
Greater Lincolnshire Risk Forum, of which we are a member.  

The Council has an arrangement with Breckland Council which shares a management structure and 
some services.  Both authorities continue to operate independently, serving the needs of their own 
communities.  There is Memorandum of Understanding in place which sets out the governance 
arrangements. Despite the commitment to sharing a management team the two councils continue to 
exercise independent democratically accountable local government in their respective areas, each 
having its own governance arrangements.   
 

Companies - Compass Point Business Services (East Coast) Ltd. (CPBS) was set up by South 
Holland and East Lindsey District Councils in August 2010 to deliver human resources, customer 
services, ICT, revenues and benefits, and financial services to the two authorities. South Holland 
District Council owns a 37% stake in the company with the remaining share being owned by East 
Lindsey District Council. Each authority has equal voting rights.   
The CPBS board of directors includes councillors and chief officers of both authorities. The company 
has regularly reported its progress on performance of services to the client officer, with a quarterly 
shareholder performance reported to Scrutiny. The company’s business plan is approved annually by 
council. The ongoing governance arrangements are set out in the Service Level Agreements (SLA), 
and a Management Agreement is in place that sets out the partnership arrangements, principles and 
parameters.  

The Council is the sole shareholder of South Holland Local Housing Community Interest Company. 
The board of directors is responsible for preparing the Director’s report, financial statements and 
governance arrangements for the company.  

The Council is the sole shareholder of the Red Lion Quarter Community Interest Company, with two 
councillors on the board of directors. Action has been taken to dissolve the company as it as remained 
dormant throughout the year. 
 
Quality of service - Our annual business planning processes are part of our integrated planning 
framework which ensures that service planning and related resource management flow from the 
Council’s Corporate Plan. We measure the overall effectiveness of our service delivery through the 
Council’s performance management framework. Quarterly service and financial performance is 
reported formally to Cabinet.   

All performance is subject to detailed review and challenge by the Performance Monitoring Panel who 
report on areas of concern to the Cabinet. The Council has reviewed its basket of corporate 
performance indicators in light of its priorities and national changes to local authority performance 
reporting, and formally reports on a quarterly basis to the Performance Monitoring Panel and Cabinet. 
 
Transparency - As a Council we want to be publicly accountable and present our work with openness 
and transparency. As such, any expenditure over £500 (including VAT) with external suppliers has 
been made available online in a monthly report, as part of a move to make this information more easily 
accessible. These reports are published approximately 10 working days after the end of each calendar 
month. The authority also reports on the pay and benefits for senior officers as well as its Pay Policy 
and contracts register.  
 
 

Page 86



 

  

Functions and roles 
 
Effective leadership - The Constitution documents roles and responsibilities for the Council and its 
standing committees. All working groups have clear terms of reference for their work in supporting 
policy development and progress monitoring. Councillors’ roles and responsibilities are defined in both 
generic and specific job descriptions that have been tested through consultation and based on a 
recommended model with some additional local interpretation. A clear Officer/Member delegation 
framework exists to provide clarity on the powers entrusted in those appointed to make decisions on 
behalf of the Council. 

The Council has adopted a standard form of committee report which seeks to ensure that all matters 
coming to Councillors for decision have first received consideration in respect of all appropriate and 
necessary, legal, financial and professional matters, as well as risk. This has been expanded to 
include coverage of technical matters such as carbon footprint. The Council updates and publishes a 
Key Decision Plan. This is a record of all key decisions the Executive expects to make in the next 
twelve months.  

  
Working relationships - The Constitution sets out the Scheme of Delegation to Officers including the 
conditions of delegation. 

All staff have conditions of employment and job descriptions that set out their roles and 
responsibilities. There is also a competency framework. The framework defines the competencies 
required of each post in the Council so that individuals can be assessed against them to identify 
suitability for the posts, areas of strength and areas for further development.  Competencies can be 
used to measure how well we do things and are essential to the performance management process. 
The competencies provide consistent standards across the organisation and help to identify the types 
of behaviour the Council wishes to promote, develop and engender.     
 
Conduct and behaviour 
 
Standards of conduct - After the 1st July 2012, the new arrangements were implemented for dealing 
with complaints against councillors, in line with the Localism Act 2011. The Act gave Council's the 
freedom to adopt their own local Code of Conduct and South Holland District Council chose to adopt a 
Code based on the LGA template code (available on the Council website). The Council set and 
agreed it's arrangements for dealing with complaints against Councillors and these are now in place 
(further details of the arrangements are available on the Council's website). The Council also 
appointed an Independent Person, a new role defined in the Localism Act 2011. Under the new 
arrangements, the Monitoring Officer considers complaints in the first instance and consults with the 
Independent Person where necessary. Although the Standards Committee was dissolved as permitted 
under the Localism Act 2011, a Standards Panel has been established to consider complaints that 
have been investigated. All arrangements for Standards will be reviewed as the new system is 
embedded 
 
The Council also has an Employee Code of Conduct and there are a number of specific policies set 
out on the Council's intranet sub site "working here" (eg on bullying, sickness etc). 
 
Financial and risk management - The Assistant Director Finance is designated the responsible 
officer for the administration of the Council’s financial affairs under S151 of the Local Government Act 
1972. This includes ensuring the lawfulness and financial prudence of decision making; providing 
advice, particularly on financial impropriety, publicity and budget issues, giving financial information; 
and acting as the Council money laundering reporting officer. The Section 151 Officer is specifically 

Page 87



 

  

responsible for the proper discharge of financial arrangements and must advise the Council where any 
proposal might be unlawful or where expenditure is likely to exceed resources, and to ensure that the 
authority’s financial management arrangements conform to the governance requirements as set out in 
the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy statement on the Role of the Chief 
Financial Officer.  

The Council operates a strong financial management framework to ensure the lawful and best 
economic use of the Council’s assets. Financial regulations are supported by effective financial 
procedures underpinned by the work of internal and external audit. Financial regulations and contract 
procedure rules are regularly reviewed to ensure they remain effective in supporting sound internal 
control.    
 
Legal and regulatory compliance - Compliance with established policies, procedures, laws and 
regulations is ensured by the requirements of the constitution to give the Chief Executive, the 
Monitoring Officer (Assistant Director Democratic Services) and the Chief Finance Officer (Assistant 
Director Finance) the opportunity to comment on every report submitted to a decision making body. 
The Monitoring Officer has a legal duty to ensure the lawfulness and fairness of decision making. 
Council made interim appointments for the role of Chief Executive through the year, with a permanent 
appointment starting in May 2014. 
A complete review of the constitution has been carried out to ensure that it remains relevant effective. 
Formal adoption of the revised constitution is expected in 2014. A revised Local Code of Corporate 
Governance has been produced following updated best practice guidance from CIPFA and Solace on 
‘Delivering good governance in local government’. 
 
Councillor and officer development - The Council is committed to the development of councillors 
and staff at all levels of the organisation. It has maintained its Investors in People accreditation.  

The Council has adopted a Councillor Development Policy and Strategy and delivers a comprehensive 
training programme to ensure that councillors have the opportunity to develop the skills to serve their 
communities. In March 2010 the Council was accredited with the Member Development Charter, and 
is seeking to renew this in 2014.    
 
Community engagement - The Council is committed to listening to and involving the community and 
consistently demonstrates that it does. Our consultation processes provide useful feedback on 
services, public perceptions and quality of life; we provide guidance on good practice and we profile 
respondents to better understand equalities implications. The Housing Service employs a tenant 
engagement officer to work closely with our tenants, some of whom are also our most vulnerable, and 
understand their specific needs. Our community engagement strategy provides a robust strategic 
framework for addressing the most significant barriers to engagement in South Holland, and a 
programme of action for improving information provision, consultation and empowerment.  This is 
complemented by our web strategy and on-line capability.  

Organisational values 

The Council has adopted a set of organisational values and behaviours:- 

We value our citizens. We will conduct our business in an open and accountable way. 
We value our customers. We will always listen and treat them courteously and fairly. We will 
effectively deal with their enquiries, service requests, suggestions and complaints. 
We value our staff and elected members. We will enable them to do their jobs well.  
We value honesty and integrity. We will always tell the truth and our actions will be consistent with 
these values. 
We value the environment in which we live. We will act responsibly towards its future. 

Page 88



 

  

We value giving value for money. We will balance the cost, standard and customer view of the 
services we provide. 

The complaints procedure ensures customers get their needs met in a fast, courteous, fair and 
consistent manner and a resolution is achieved as quickly as possible. Complaints are taken very 
seriously and the Council learns from issues raised to help improve services. The complaint procedure 
was reviewed and simplified during the previous reporting period and a new process implemented 
from April 2013. 
 
Scrutiny and managing risk 
 
Scrutiny - The Constitution sets out how the Council operates and the process for policy and decision 
making.  Full Council has overall responsibility for the Constitution, Scheme of Delegation, Budget and 
Policy Framework.  There are two scrutiny committees the Performance Monitoring Panel and the 
Performance Development Panel. The panels are supported by designated Scrutiny Officer resource. 
 
Risk Management - The Council’s risk management arrangements are embedded in its Corporate 
Risk Management Strategy and risk registers.   
Risk management remains an integral part of the Council’s day to day thinking. All Member decisions 
are supported by a commentary on the risks involved in taking the decision (or not taking the decision) 
with this developing greater Member appreciation of risk, not least through reports into the 
Governance and Audit Committee.  
 
Legal powers - The Council understands its legal powers and limitations, and seeks to ensure that it 
acts lawfully at all times. The Monitoring Officer is responsible for advising the Council if any proposal, 
decision or omission is likely to give rise to unlawfulness or maladministration. 
 
Capacity and capability 
 
Skills and resources - There is a strong working relationship between Councillors and staff, and the 
Council aims to ensure that they have the skills, resources and support needed to perform effectively 
in their roles. The Council has an embedded induction process. 
 
Development and performance - The Council provides a full range of development opportunities for 
Councillors. Staff performance is managed using a new performance development framework. The 
Performance Development Review (PDR) process improves communications and ensures employees 
have clear objectives and an understanding of how they contribute to the corporate priorities and 
goals.  All Council employees have an annual Performance Development Review which are followed 
up and monitored by the reviewer and reviewee throughout the year via informal progress discussions.  
 
Review of effectiveness  

The Council has responsibility for conducting, at least annually, a review of the effectiveness of its 
governance framework including the system of internal control. The review of effectiveness is informed 
by the work of the executive managers within the authority who have responsibility for the 
development and maintenance of the governance environment, the Head of Internal Audit’s annual 
report, and also by comments made by the external auditors and other review agencies and 
inspectorates.  

Page 89



 

  

The Governance and Audit Committee has a responsibility to advise on the effectiveness of our 
governance arrangements. It has an important role as the designated audit committee for the Council 
and considers the findings of internal and external audit. It ensures that audit recommendations are 
implemented and considers the effectiveness of our arrangements for securing internal control. It 
challenges the authority’s performance against key performance indicators and assesses key 
corporate risks on an exceptions basis to ensure that sufficient mitigating action is taken to manage 
corporate risk.   
 
The S151 Officer has provided the Internal Audit service through a contract with Lincolnshire County 
Council which monitors the effectiveness of the control environment and reports specific 
recommendations to the senior management and the Governance and Audit Committee. An annual 
internal audit report and opinion is also produced for the Governance and Audit Committee which 
comments on the overall effectiveness of our control environment. Adequacy of internal controls is 
scored as either a full, substantial, limited or no assurance by internal audit. 
 
From the work undertaken by Internal Audit during the year the Head of Internal Audit and Risk 
Management has provided an opinion on the effectiveness of South Holland District Council’s 
arrangements for governance, risk management and control arrangements. Financial control and risk 
management are deemed to be ‘Performing Well’ with governance and internal control ‘Performing 
Adequately – some improvements required’. Some issues have been brought to the attention of the 
Governance & Audit Committee. These items have been highlighted in the next section. All are subject 
to action plans to improve the control environment.  
 
The Governance and Audit Committee ensures the effective implementation of recommendations from 
our internal and external auditors and considers the effectiveness of our internal control environment.  
 
Significant governance issues 
The work of Internal Audit is highlighted in the Internal Audit Annual Report. The report has raised 
some concerns on service delivery arrangements, management of risks and operation of controls and 
has only been able to provide ‘limited assurance’ for some of our controls. The report reflected on the 
internal audit reviews conducted during the year and identified some areas for improvement: 

• Add any items raised in Internal Auditor’s Report.  
 
The authority is involved with a planning complaint that had been referred to the Local Government 
Ombudsman. It is a complex issue which has been considered by Council at a number of meetings, 
the most recent on 15 May 2013. The Council has accepted the Ombudsman’s findings and approved 
an alternative compensation payment.  The other party initiated judicial review proceedings against 
the council which was not upheld by the court. Consequently the other party submitted leave to appeal 
which the court is considering.   

 

The ongoing levels of reduction in public expenditure, combined with major changes in the funding of 
local government present major governance challenges to the Council along with most other local 
authorities. While South Holland has a balanced budget in the coming financial year, it will have to 
implement a transformation programme to address budget shortfalls over the medium term. A 
combination of growth (to generate income) and efficiency measures are planned, and will go through 
appropriate scrutiny and formal approval before being committed in the budget and medium term 
financial plan. 
 
  

Page 90



 

  

Certification 

We are satisfied that appropriate arrangements are in place to address improvements identified in our 
review of compliance. Progress on these improvements and on addressing mitigating risks will be 
monitored by Corporate Management Team and Governance and Audit Committee through the year. 
 
 
 
 
 
Signed:III.IIIIIIIII                        IIIIIIIIIIIII.. 
 
                 (Leader)       (Chief Executive) 
 
 
XX XXX 2014 

Page 91



This page is intentionally left blank



SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
Report of: Assistant Director Finance  (S151) 
 
To:    Governance and Audit Committee – 26 June 2014 
 
(Author:  Mark Finch, Assistant Director Finance (S151)) 
 
Subject: Pre-audit 2013-14 Financial Statements  
 
Purpose: To present the pre-audit 2013-14 Financial Statements for members’ 

consideration, prior to formal approval by the Assistant Director Finance. 
 

 
Recommendation:  
 
1) That, as part of its governance role, the Committee considers that pre-audit 2013-14 

Financial Statements. 
 

 
1.0 BACKGROUND 
 
1.1 The Accounts and Audit regulations 2011 require that 

• The Responsible Financial Officer signs the un-audited statement of accounts no later 
than 30 June each year; and 

• The statement of accounts be considered and approved by a committee of the Council 
no later than 30 September each year.  

 
To continue the Council’s good practice, this report presents the pre-audit financial 
statements to the Committee to enable comments and challenge from members, and to 
highlight any key areas. 

 
1.2 The Financial Statements’ production process is now almost complete, and shown in 

Appendix A is the pre-audit version of the 2013-14 Statements (this includes the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, the Movement in Reserves Statement, 
Cash Flow Statement  and Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2014). 

 
1.3 Whilst the attached Accounts are complete, checks to ensure that they comply with 

disclosure requirements will continue up the 30 June statutory deadline, before the 
Accounts are signed by the Section 151 Officer and then passed for Audit. Any significant 
changes will be reported verbally to the Committee on the 26 June. 

. 
1.4 The significant items to bring to members attention this year are; 

 
Introduction of Business Rates Retention and new accounting requirements 
The way in which National Non-Domestic Rates (NNDR) income is collected and distributed 
changed from 1 April 2013.  Prior to this date, NNDR income was collected by the Council 
and paid over to the Government, who then redistribute sums back to local authorities in 
the form of NNDR grant.  From 1 April 2013 a new Business Rates Retention scheme came 
into force whereby local authorities retain a share (South Holland 40% and Lincolnshire 
County Council 10%) of the NNDR income collected and pay the remaining 50% to central 
Government.   

 

Page 93

Agenda Item 7.



The differences resulting from the retained business rates scheme from 2012-13 to 2013-
14 show in various places within the accounts, the main differences are included in the 
Collection Fund, taxation and non-specific grant income and expenditure (Note 11) and 
unusable reserves – collection fund adjustment account (Note 24). 
 
Defined Benefit Pension Schemes 
The adoption of the amended Accounting Standard IAS 19 ‘Employee Benefits’ has 
resulted in re-classifications of costs/information which is essentially a re-organisation of 
existing information, but the disclosure note (Note 39) has a different look to previous 
years.  
 
The pension liability for the Council at 31 March 2014 is £27.710m (£25.176m at 31 March 
2013)  

 
Resources available  
At the 31 March 2014, the Council has the following usable reserves available to finance 
future capital and revenue expenditure. 

 

Reserve 31 March 
2014 
£’000 

31 March 
2013 
£’000 

General Fund Working Balance 2,034 2,034 

General Fund Earmarked Reserves 7,883 5,009 

Housing Revenue Account Working Balance 6,835 5,213 

Housing Revenue Account Earmarked Reserves 200 200 

Capital Receipts Reserve 1,410 1,419 

Capital Grants Unapplied 1,612 1,643 

Total Usable Reserves 19,974 15,518 

   

Capital Grants Receipts in Advance 633 658 

   

 

1.5 As part of the closedown process, members and certain officers are required to complete 

Related Party Transaction disclosure returns. During 2012-13 there were delays in 
obtaining all disclosure forms and at its meeting in September KPMG recommended ‘that 
the Governance & Audit Committee monitors the process in future years and follows up any 
individual cases of non-return of declarations’. At the date of this report 1 return were still 
outstanding.  

 
2.0 OPTIONS 
 
2.1 Note the report and the pre-audit financial statements (Appendix A). 

 
3.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION(S) 
 
3.1 The report and appendix are for information and consultation, no approvals are required at 

this stage 
 

4.0 EXPECTED BENEFITS 
 
4.1 To enable comments and challenge from the committee members and to highlight any key 

areas of note. 
 
 

Page 94



5.0 IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.1 Carbon Footprint / Environmental Issues 
 
5.1.1 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications. 
 
5.2 Constitution & Legal 
 
5.2.1 Accounts and Audit regulations 2011 
 
5.3 Contracts 
 
5.3.1 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications. 
 
5.4 Corporate Priorities 
 
5.4.1 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications. 
 
5.5 Crime and Disorder  
 
5.5.1 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications. 
 
5.6 Equality and Diversity / Human Rights 
 
5.6.1 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications. 
 
5.7 Financial  
 
5.7.1 This appendix is of a financial nature and therefore finance is included. 
 
5.8 Risk Management  
 
5.8.1 Risks are included in the financial statements as required. 
 
5.9 Staffing 
 
5.9.1 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications. 
  
5.10 Stakeholders / Consultation / Timescales 
 
5.10.1 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications. 
  
6.0 WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED 
 
6.1 n/a 
 

Background papers: - None 

 

Lead Contact Officer 
Name and Post: Mark Finch, Assistant Director Finance (S151) 
Telephone Number: 01775 761161 
Email: mark.finch@breckland-sholland.gov.uk 
 

Page 95



Director / Officer who will be attending the Meeting: Mark Finch, Assistant Director Finance 
(S151) 
 
Key Decision: No 
 
Exempt Decision: No 
 
Appendices attached to this report: 
Appendix A – Pre-audit Financial Statements 2013-14  
(This appendix will be circulated in due course.) 

Page 96



SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
Report of: Assistant Director Finance (S151) 
 
To:    Governance and Audit 26 June 2014 
 
(Author:  Sean Howsam – Finance Manager – Treasury (CPBS)) 
 
Subject: Annual Treasury Management Review 2013/14 
 
Purpose: To provide pre-decision scrutiny to the Annual Treasury Management Review 

2013-14 being proposed 
 

 
Recommendation:  
 
1) That the Governance and Audit Committee scrutinise the Annual Treasury Management 

Review 2013/14 and make any comments for consideration by Council when they consider 
this document at their meeting on 23 July 2014.  

 

 
1.0 BACKGROUND 
 
1.1 This Council is required by regulations issued under the Local Government Act 2003 to 

produce an annual treasury management review of activities and the actual prudential and 
treasury indicators for 2013/14. This report meets the requirements of both the CIPFA Code 
of Practice on Treasury Management (the Code) and the CIPFA Prudential Code for 
Capital Finance in Local Authorities (the Prudential Code). 

 
During 2013/14 the minimum reporting requirements were that the full Council should 
receive the following reports: 

• an annual treasury strategy in advance of the year (Council 27/02/2013); 

• a mid year (minimum) treasury update report (submitted to Governance and Audit 
30/01/2014); 

• an annual review following the end of the year describing the activity compared to 
the strategy (this report). 

1.2 The regulatory environment places responsibility on members for the review and scrutiny of 
treasury management policy and activities.  This report is therefore important in that 
respect, as it provides details of the outturn position for treasury activities and highlights 
compliance with the Council’s policies previously approved by members. 

 
1.3 This Council also confirms that it has complied with the requirement under the Code to give 

prior scrutiny to treasury management reports by the Governance and Audit Committee 
before they were reported to the full Council.  Member training on treasury management 
issues was undertaken during the year on 30/01/2014 in order to support members’ 
scrutiny role. 

 
1.4 The Treasury Management function is administered by Compass Point Business Services 

on behalf of the Council. 
 
 
 
 

Page 97

Agenda Item 8.



2.0 INTRODUCTION 
 
2.1 This report summarises the following:-  
 

• Capital activity during the year; 

• Impact of this activity on the Council’s underlying indebtedness (the Capital 
Financing Requirement); 

• The actual prudential and treasury indicators; 

• Overall treasury position identifying how the Council has borrowed in relation to this 
indebtedness, and the impact on investment balances; 

• Summary of interest rate movements in the year; 

• Detailed debt activity; and 

• Detailed investment activity. 

 
3.0 THE COUNCIL’S CAPITAL EXPENDITURE AND FINANCING 2013/14 
 
3.1 The Council undertakes capital expenditure on long-term assets.  These activities may 

either be: 
 

• financed immediately through the application of capital or revenue resources (capital 
receipts, capital grants, revenue contributions etc.), which has no resultant impact 
on the Council’s borrowing need; or 

• if insufficient financing is available, or a decision is taken not to apply resources, the 
capital expenditure will give rise to a borrowing need. 

 
3.2 The actual capital expenditure forms one of the required prudential indicators.  The 

following tables show the actual capital expenditure and how this was financed. 
  

£m General Fund 
2012/13 
Actual 

2013/14 
Estimate 

2013/14 
Actual 

Capital expenditure 1,429 2,457 1,336 

Financed in year (1,429) (2,457) (1,336) 

Unfinanced capital expenditure - - - 

 
 

£m Housing Revenue Account 
(HRA) 

2012/13 
Actual 

2013/14 
Estimate 

2013/14 
Actual 

Capital expenditure 3,422 7,809 5,396 

Financed in year (3,422) (7,809) (5,396) 

Unfinanced capital expenditure - - - 

 
 
 

Page 98



4.0 THE COUNCIL’S OVERALL BORROWING NEED 
 
4.1 The Council’s underlying need to borrow for capital expenditure is termed the Capital 

Financing Requirement (CFR).  This figure is a gauge of the Council’s indebtedness. The 
CFR results from the capital activity of the Council and resources used to pay for the capital 
spend.  It represents the 2013/14 unfinanced capital expenditure (see above table), and 
prior years’ net or unfinanced capital expenditure which has not yet been paid for by 
revenue or other resources. 

 
4.2 Part of the Council’s treasury activities is to address the funding requirements for this 

borrowing need.  Depending on the capital expenditure programme, the treasury service 
organises the Council’s cash position to ensure that sufficient cash is available to meet the 
capital plans and cash flow requirements.  This may be sourced through borrowing from 
external bodies (such as the Government, through the Public Works Loan Board [PWLB] or 
the money markets), or utilising temporary cash resources within the Council. 

 
4.3 Reducing the CFR – the Council’s (non HRA) underlying borrowing need (CFR) is not 

allowed to rise indefinitely.  Statutory controls are in place to ensure that capital assets are 
broadly charged to revenue over the life of the asset.  The Council is required to make an 
annual revenue charge, called the Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP), to reduce the CFR.  
This is effectively a repayment of the non-HRA borrowing need (there is no statutory 
requirement to reduce the HRA CFR). This differs from the treasury management 
arrangements which ensure that cash is available to meet capital commitments.  External 
debt can also be borrowed or repaid at any time, but this does not change the CFR. 

 
The total CFR can also be reduced by: 

• the application of additional capital financing resources (such as unapplied capital 
receipts); or  

• charging more than the statutory revenue charge (MRP) each year through a 
Voluntary Revenue Provision (VRP).  

4.4 The Council’s 2013/14 MRP Policy as required by Communities and Local Government 
(CLG) guidance was approved as part of the Treasury Management Strategy Report for 
2013/14 on 27/02/2013. 

 
4.5 The Council’s CFR for the year is shown below, and represents a key prudential indicator: 
 

CFR (£m): General Fund 
31 March  
2013  
Actual 

31 March 
 2014  
Budget 

31 March 
 2014  
Actual 

Opening Balance  1,124 945 945 

Add unfinanced capital expenditure (as 
above) 

- - - 

Less MRP (179) (205) (205) 

Closing Balance 945 740 740 

 
 

 
 

Page 99



CFR (£m): HRA 
31 March  
2013  
Actual 

31 March 
 2014  
Budget 

31 March 
 2014  
Actual 

Opening Balance  70,254 69,960 69,960 

Add unfinanced capital expenditure (as 
above) 

- - - 

Less MRP and Revaluation losses on 
HRA non-dwellings 

(294) (63) (309) 

Closing Balance 69,960 69,897 69,651 

 
 Borrowing activity is constrained by prudential indicators for net borrowing and the CFR, 

and by the authorised limit. 
 
4.6 Gross borrowing and the CFR - in order to ensure that borrowing levels are prudent over 

the medium term and only for a capital purpose, the Council should ensure that its gross 
external borrowing does not, except in the short term, exceed the total of the CFR in the 
preceding year (2013/14) plus the estimates of any additional CFR for the current (2014/15) 
and next two financial years.  This essentially means that the Council is not borrowing to 
support revenue expenditure.  This indicator allows the Council some flexibility to borrow in 
advance of its immediate capital needs in 2013/14.  The table below highlights the 
Council’s gross borrowing position against the CFR.  The Council has complied with this 
prudential indicator. 

 

 
31 March 2013  

Actual 
31 March 2014  

Budget 
31 March 2014  

Actual 

Gross Borrowing Position  £67.465m £67.459m £67.459m 

CFR £70.905m £70.637m £70.391m 

 
4.7 The authorised limit is the “affordable borrowing limit” required by s3 of the Local 

Government Act 2003.  Once this has been set, the Council does not have the power to 
borrow above this level.  The following table demonstrates that during 2013/14 the Council 
has maintained gross borrowing within its authorised limit.  
 
The operational boundary is the expected borrowing position of the Council during the year.  
Periods where the actual position is either below or over the boundary is acceptable subject 
to the authorised limit not being breached. 
 
Actual financing costs as a proportion of net revenue stream - this indicator identifies the 
trend in the cost of capital (borrowing and other long term obligation costs net of investment 
income) against the net revenue stream. 

 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 100



 2013/14 

Authorised limit £74.456m 
Maximum gross borrowing position £67.465m 

Operational boundary £72.456m 

Average gross borrowing position £67.462m 

Financing costs as a proportion of net revenue stream – Non HRA 
                                                                                          HRA 

0.95% 
25.08% 

 
5.0 TREASURY POSITION AS AT 31 MARCH 2014 

 
5.1 The Council’s debt and investment position is organised by the treasury management 

service in order to ensure adequate liquidity for revenue and capital activities, security for 
investments and to manage risks within all treasury management activities. Procedures and 
controls to achieve these objectives are well established both through member reporting 
and through officer activity detailed in the Council’s Treasury Management Practices. At the 
beginning and the end of 2013/14 the Council’s treasury position including accrued interest 
was as follows: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
31/3/13 
Principal 
£’000 

Rate/ 
Return 

% 

Average 
Life  
 

31/3/14 
Principal 
£’000 

Rate/ 
Return 

% 

Average 
Life 
 

Fixed rate funding 
    Salix loan 
    PWLB 
    Leases 

 
       10 
67,456 
     284 

 
0.00 
3.48 
n/a 

 
1 year 
49years 

 
        3 
67,456 
      34 

 
0.00 
3.48 
n/a 

 
<1 year 
48 years 

Total debt 67,750 3.48 49 years 67,493 3.48 48 years 

  CFR 70,905   70,391   

  Over/(under) borrowing   3,155     2,898   

Cash and investments:  

  short term (7,000) 1.66 101 days (10,100) 0.87 67 days 

  call and bank accounts (4,899) 0.46 1 day  (7,612) 0.50 1 day 

Total cash and 
investments 

(11,899) 1.20 60 days (17,712) 0.66 38 days 

Net debt  55,851    49,781   

Page 101



5.2 Investments held at 31 March 2014 were as follows: 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
5.3 As at 31 March 2014 the maturity structure of the investment portfolio was all under one 

year. The whole of the borrowing is due for repayment on 28 March 2062 with the 
exception of the Salix loan which matures within the next financial year. 

  
5.4 All borrowing is at fixed rates and cash/investment holdings are split £10.1m fixed and 

£7.612m variable. 
 
 
6.0 THE STRATEGY FOR 2013/14 
 
6.1 The expectation for interest rates within the strategy for 2013/14 anticipated low but rising 

Bank Rate (starting in quarter 1 of 2015), and gradual rises in medium and longer term 
fixed borrowing rates during 2013/14.  Variable, or short-term rates, were expected to be 
the cheaper form of borrowing over the period.  Continued uncertainty in the aftermath of 
the 2008 financial crisis promoted a cautious approach, whereby investments would 
continue to be dominated by low counterparty risk considerations, resulting in relatively low 
returns compared to borrowing rates. 

 
6.2 In this scenario, the treasury strategy was to postpone borrowing to avoid the cost of 

holding higher levels of investments and to reduce counterparty risk.  
 
6.3 The actual movement in gilt yields meant that PWLB rates were on a sharply rising trend 

during 2013 as markets anticipated the start of tapering of asset purchases by the Fed.  
This duly started in December 2013 and the US FOMC (the Fed.), adopted a future course 
of monthly reductions of $10bn (from a starting position of $85bn), meaning that asset 
purchases were likely to stop by the end of 2014.  However, volatility set in during the first 
quarter of 2014 as fears around emerging markets, various vulnerabilities in the Chinese 
economy, the increasing danger for the Eurozone to drop into a deflationary spiral, and the 
situation in the Ukraine, caused rates to dip down, reflecting a flight to quality into UK gilts. 

 
 
 
 
 

 
Financial Institution 

Amount 
£’000 

Start  
Date 

Maturity  
Date 

Rate/ 
Return 

% 

National Westminster Bank (Instant 
Access) 

2,655 n/a n/a 0.50 

Svenska Handelsbanken 4,957 n/a n/a 0.50 

Lloyds Bank 1,800 03/04/13 02/04/14 1.10 

Lloyds Bank 1,700 11/04/13 10/04/14 1.10 

Nationwide Building Society 3,100 15/01/14 15/04/14 0.47 

Goldman Sachs IB 2,500 14/02/14 11/08/14 0.73 

Lloyds Bank 1,000 10/01/14 09/01/15 0.95 

TOTAL 17,712    

Page 102



7.0 THE ECONOMY AND INTEREST RATES 
 
7.1 The original expectation for 2013/14 was that Bank Rate would not rise during the year and 

for it only to start gently rising from quarter 1 2015.  This forecast rise has now been 
pushed back to a start in quarter 3 2015.  Economic growth (GDP) in the UK was virtually 
flat during 2012/13 but surged strongly during the year.  Consequently there was no 
additional quantitative easing during 2013/14 and Bank Rate ended the year unchanged at 
0.5% for the fifth successive year.  While Consumer Price Index (CPI) inflation had 
remained stubbornly high and substantially above the 2% target during 2012, by January 
2014 it had, at last, fallen below the target rate to 1.9% and then fell further to 1.7% in 
February.  It is also expected to remain slightly below the target rate for most of the two 
years ahead. 

 
7.2 Gilt yields were on a sharply rising trend during 2013 but volatility returned in the first 

quarter of 2014 as various fears sparked a flight to quality (see paragraph 6.)  The Funding 
for Lending Scheme, announced in July 2012, resulted in a flood of cheap credit being 
made available to banks which then resulted in money market investment rates falling 
drastically in the second half of that year and continuing into 2013/14.  That part of the 
Scheme which supported the provision of credit for mortgages was terminated in the first 
quarter of 2014 as concerns rose over resurging house prices.  

 
7.3 The UK coalition Government maintained its tight fiscal policy stance but recent strong 

economic growth has led to a cumulative (in the Autumn Statement and the March Budget) 
reduction in the forecasts for total borrowing of £97bn over the next five years, culminating 
in a £5bn surplus in 2018/19. 

 
7.4 The EU sovereign debt crisis subsided during the year and confidence in the ability of the 

Eurozone to remain intact increased substantially.  Perceptions of counterparty risk 
improved after the European Central Bank (ECB) statement in July 2012 that it would do 
“whatever it takes” to support struggling Eurozone countries; this led to a return of 
confidence in its banking system which has continued into 2013/14 and led to a move away 
from only very short term investing.  However, this is not to say that the problems of the 
Eurozone, or its banks, have ended as the zone faces the likelihood of weak growth over 
the next few years at a time when the total size of government debt for some nations is 
likely to continue rising.  Upcoming stress tests of Eurozone banks could also reveal some 
areas of concern. 

 
8.0 BORROWING RATES IN 2013/14 
 
8.1 PWLB borrowing rates - the following graph shows PWLB certainty maturity rates for a 

selection of maturity periods throughout the financial year. 
 

Page 103



 
 
 

9.0 BORROWING OUTTURN FOR 2013/14 
 
9.1 Due to investment concerns, both counterparty risk and low investment returns, no new 

borrowing was undertaken during the year. 
 
9.2 The table in paragraph 5.1 provides a summary of borrowing as at 31 March 2014. 
 
10.0 INVESTMENT RATES IN 2013/14 
 
10.1 Bank Rate remained at its historic low of 0.5% throughout the year; it has now remained 

unchanged for five years.  Market expectations as to the timing of the start of monetary 
tightening ended up almost unchanged at around the end of 2014 / start of 2015.  The 
Funding for Lending Scheme resulted in deposit rates remaining depressed during the 
whole of the year, although the part of the scheme supporting provision of credit for 
mortgages came to an end in the first quarter of 2014. 

Page 104



 

 
 
 
11.0 INVESTMENT OUTTURN FOR 2013/14 
 
11.1 Investment Policy – the Council’s investment policy is governed by the CLG guidance, 

which has been implemented in the annual investment strategy approved by the Council on 
27 February 2013.  This policy sets out the approach for choosing investment 
counterparties, and is based on credit ratings provided by the three main credit rating 
agencies supplemented by additional market data (such as rating outlooks, credit default 
swaps, bank share prices etc).  

 
11.2 The investment activity during the year generally conformed to the approved strategy, and 

the Council had no liquidity difficulties. 
 
11.3 Resources - the Council’s cash balances comprise revenue and capital resources and cash 

flow monies.  The Council’s core cash resources comprised as follows: 
  

Balance Sheet Resources (£m) 31 March 2013 31 March 2014 

Balances 8,890 10,481 

Earmarked reserves 5,209 8,083 

Usable capital receipts 1,419 1,410 

Total 15,518 19,974 

 
11.4 Investments held by the Council - the Council maintained an average balance of £21.8m of 

internally managed funds.  The internally managed funds earned an average rate of return 
of 0.655%.  The comparable performance indicator is the average 3 Month LIBID rate, 
which was 0.39%. 

 
11.5 Actual investment interest earned during 2013/14 was £142,888 against an original budget 

of £62,500. 

Page 105



12.0 OPTIONS 
 
12.1 There are no alternative options presented 
 
13.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION(S) 
 
13.1 To comply with the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy’s Code of 

Practice on Treasury Management 2011.  
 
14.0 EXPECTED BENEFITS 
 
14.1 The report provides Members with a summary of the economy, the effect it has had on 

financial markets and the treasury activity during 2013/14. The report requires scrutiny prior 
to submitting to Council for approval.  

    
15.0 IMPLICATIONS 
 
15.1 Carbon Footprint / Environmental Issues 
 
15.1.1 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications. 
 
15.2 Constitution & Legal 
 
15.2.1 This Council is required by regulations issued under the Local Government Act 2003 to 

produce an annual treasury management review of activities and the actual prudential and 
treasury indicators for 2013/14. This report meets the requirements of both the CIPFA Code 
of Practice on Treasury Management and the CIPFA Prudential Code for Capital Finance in 
Local Authorities.  

 

15.2.2 The report has no implications which would affect the constitution and does not therefore 
warrant a further change in the constitution. 

 
15.3 Contracts 
 
15.3.1 Contract implications have been considered, and in the opinion of the report writer, there 

are none. 
 
15.4 Corporate Priorities 
 
15.4.1 Corporate priorities have been considered, and in the opinion of the report writer, there are 

no implications.  
 
15.5 Crime and Disorder  
 
15.5.1 Crime and disorder implications have been considered, and in the opinion of the report 

writer, there are none. 
 
15.6 Equality and Diversity and Human Rights 
 
15.6.1 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications. 
 
15.7 Financial  
 
15.7.1 This annual treasury management review provides details of the treasury activity for the 

2013/14 financial year.   

Page 106



15.8 Risk Management  
 

15.8.1 The Council’s priority is the security of its investments.  
 
15.9 Staffing 
 
15.9.1 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications. 
  
15.10 Stakeholders / Consultation / Timescales 
 
15.10.1 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications 
  
16.0 WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED 
 
16.1 None 
 
17.0 ACRONYMS  
 
17.1 CPBS – Compass Point Business Services 
17.2 CIPFA – Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy 
17.3 HRA – Housing Revenue Account 
17.4 CFR – Capital Financing Requirement 
17.5 PWLB – Public Works Loan Board 
17.6 MRP – Minimum Revenue Provision 
17.7 VRP – Voluntary Revenue Provision 
17.8 DCLG – Department for Communities and Local Government 
17.9 FOMC – Federal Open Market Committee (Fed.) 
17.10 GDP – Gross Domestic Product 
17.11 CPI – Consumer Price Index 
17.12 ECB – European Central Bank 
 

Background papers:- (a) SHDC Treasury Management Strategy Statement 2013/14 

    (b) Capita’s Annual Treasury Management Review 2013/14 Template 

Lead Contact Officer 
Name and Post: Sean Howsam – Finance Manager Treasury (CPBS) 
Telephone Number: 01507 613248 
Email: sean.howsam@cpbs.com 
 
Director / Officer who will be attending the Meeting:  
Mark Finch (Assistant Director Finance (S151) 
 
Key Decision: No  
 
Exempt Decision: No  
 
Appendices attached to this report:  None 
 

Page 107



This page is intentionally left blank



SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
Report of: The Assistant Director Finance (S151) 
 
To:    Governance and Audit Committee – 26 June 2014  
 
(Author:  Mark Finch – Assistant Director Finance (S151)) 
 
Subject: Local Code of Corporate Governance 
 
Purpose: To adopt a Local Code of Corporate Governance 
 

 
Recommendation:  
 

a) That the Committee adopts the revised Local Code of Governance. 
 

 
1.0 BACKGROUND 
 
1.1 The Council is responsible for ensuring that its business is conducted in accordance with 

the law and proper standards, and that public money is safeguarded and properly 
accounted for. To this end members and senior officers are responsible for ensuring that 
proper arrangements exist for the governance of the Council's affairs and stewardship of its 
resources 

 
1.2 The Council has prepared a Local Code of Corporate Governance which is consistent with 

the revised CIPFA/SOLACE guidance 'Delivering Good Governance in Local Government'. 
The code demonstrates the ways in which the Council will achieve good corporate 
governance. 

 
1.3 South Holland’s proposed local code is set out in Appendix A. This has been revised to 

reflect changes to the guidance as well as changes to the way the authority operates. This 
Committee is requested to review the document to ensure that Members are satisfied that 
the document accurately reflects the Council’s governance arrangements in meeting the 
core principles set out in the guidance: 

 

• Core Principle 1 - Focusing on the purpose of the authority and on outcomes for the 
community and creating and implementing a vision for the local area 

• Core Principle 2 – Members and officer working together to achieve a common 
purpose with clearly defined functions and roles 

• Core Principle 3 – Promoting values for the Council and demonstrating the values of 
good governance through upholding high standards of conduct and behaviour 

• Core Principle 4 – Taking informed and transparent decisions which are subject to 
effective scrutiny and managing risk 

• Core Principle 5 – Developing the capacity and capability of members and officers 
to be effective 

• Core Principle 6 – Engaging with local people and other stakeholders to ensure 
robust public accountability 

 
2.0 OPTIONS 
 
2.1 To approve the local code. 
 
2.2 To approve the local code with amendments. 

Page 109

Agenda Item 9.



3.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION 
 
3.1 To meet corporate governance best practice. 

 
4.0 EXPECTED BENEFITS 
 
4.1 The Local Code of Governance brings all governance practices together into one document 

and makes them open and explicit.  
 
5.0 IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.1 Carbon Footprint / Environmental Issues 
 
5.1.1 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications. 
 
5.2 Constitution & Legal 
 
5.2.1 This report has been written in line with the Constitution. 
 
5.3 Contracts 
 
5.3.1 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications. 
 
5.4 Corporate Priorities 
 
5.4.1 Robust governance arrangements are an essential element of the delivery of all corporate 

priorities 
 
5.5 Crime and Disorder  
 
5.5.1 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications. 
 
5.6 Equality and Diversity / Human Rights 
 
5.6.1 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications. 
 
5.7 Financial  
 
5.7.1 Effective corporate governance arrangements ensure that public money is safeguarded, 

properly accounted for and used economically, efficiently and effectively. 
 
5.8 Risk Management  
 
5.8.1 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications. 
 
5.9 Staffing 
 
5.9.1 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications.  
 
5.10 Stakeholders / Consultation / Timescales 
 
5.10.1 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications. 
 
  
 

Page 110



6.0 WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED 
 
6.1 All wards/communities are affected. 
 
7.0 ACRONYMS  
 
7.1 CIPFA – Chartered Institute for Public Finance and Accountancy 
 

Background papers:- None 

 
Lead Contact Officer 
Name and Post: Mark Finch 
Telephone Number: 01775 761161 
Email: mark.finch@breckland-sholland.gov.uk 
 
Director / Officer who will be attending the Meeting:  
Mark Finch – Assistant Director Finance (S151) 
 
Appendices attached to this report:  
Appendix A – Local Code of Governance 
 
 

Page 111



This page is intentionally left blank



 

APPENDIX A 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

South Holland District Council 
 

Local Code of Corporate Governance 
 

2014/15 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 113



 

 
 
 
 
 

Local Code of Corporate Governance 
 
 
Introduction  
 
Corporate Governance is a term used to describe the way that organisations direct 
and control what they do.  For local authorities, it includes the systems, policies and 
processes, as well as the culture and values that underpin a Council’s arrangements 
for effective:  
 

• Leadership  

• Management  

• Performance  

• Delivery of positive customer outcomes  

• Community engagement  

• Stewardship of public money  
 
Good Corporate Governance  
 
South Holland District Council is committed to achieving good corporate governance 
and this Local Code describes how the Council intends to achieve this in an open 
and explicit way.   
 
In developing this code, the Council has considered best practice and guidance, 
particularly the CIPFA/SOLACE framework “Delivering Good Governance in Local 
Government”.   
 
The code is based on the following six core principles:  
 
1. Creating and implementing a vision – good corporate governance means 

focusing on the purpose of the Council and on outcomes for the community and 
creating and implementing a vision for the local area.  

 
2. Roles and responsibilities of members and officers – good corporate 

governance means members and officers working together to achieve a common 
purpose with clearly defined functions and roles.   

 
3. Standards of conduct and behaviour – good corporate governance means 

promoting values for the Council and by upholding high standards of conduct and 
behaviour.  

 
4. Decision making, scrutiny and risk management – good governance means 

taking informed and transparent decisions that are effectively scrutinised and 
managing risk.  

 
5. Developing capacity and capability of members and officers – good 

governance means developing the capacity and capability of members and 
officers to be effective.   

 

Page 114



 

6. Engaging with local people and stakeholders – good governance means 
engaging with local people and other stakeholders to ensure robust public 
accountability.   

 
The following details how the Council meets these core principles.   

Page 115



 
Core Principle 1 - Focusing on the purpose of the authority and on outcomes for the community and creating and 
implementing a vision for the local area 
 

Supporting Principle Description of Governance Mechanisms 

1) Exercising strategic 

leadership by developing and 

clearly communicating the 

authority’s purpose and vision 

and its intended outcome for 

citizens and service users 

 

� The Council has developed and promoted its purpose and vision in the Corporate Plan 2011-2015.  This plan sets out the 

Council’s corporate values and behaviours and identifies the four priority areas.    

� The Council has developed and maintains proper financial management arrangements.  This includes approving a balanced 

budget and publishing an annual Statement of Accounts which give electors, local taxpayers, Members of the Council, employees 

and other interested parties clear information about the Council’s finances.  

� Corporate Performance is reported to Cabinet on a quarterly basis.  The report consists of the Council’s key indicators and 

projects.  Monitoring the performance of these indicators and projects helps the Council to ensure that priorities set in the 

Corporate Plan are achieved and that areas of under performance are addressed.  Financial Performance is also reported on a 

quarterly basis.   

� The Performance Management framework sets out the way in which the Council monitors the progress of service delivery.  Each 

department produces a service plan which includes performance indicators, projects to be delivered during the year and risks 

which are regularly monitored via the performance management process.  Performance is reported to the Corporate Management 

Team and Executive Members on a monthly basis and to the Performance Monitoring Panel (Scrutiny) on a quarterly basis.    

� Views of service users have been sought with regard to shaping future service provision.  The Council received regular customer 

feedback through the website and via customer care.   

� The Budget and Medium Term Plan set out the Council’s long term budget planning.  It outlines what the Council plans to deliver 

for residents and includes issues such as our plans for helping residents cope with economic hardship, setting the levels of Council 

Tax and how we plan to manage financial risks.  The Council also has a Capital Strategy which explains how the Council  seeks to 

ensure that in the medium term, the Capital Programme delivers the Council’s priorities 

The Council has an arrangement with Breckland Council which shares a management structure and some services.  Both authorities 

continue to operate independently, serving the needs of their own communities.  There is Memorandum of Agreement in place which 

sets out the governance arrangements. 

Compass Point Business Services (East Coast) Ltd. (CPBS) was set up by South Holland and East Lindsey District Councils in 

2) Ensuring that users receive 

a high quality of service 

whether directly, or in 

partnership, or by 

commissioning  

 

3) Ensuring that the authority 

makes best use of resources 

and that tax payers and 

service users receive 

excellent value for money  

P
age 116



 
August 2010 to deliver human resources, customer services, ICT, revenues and benefits, and financial services to the two authorities. 

South Holland District Council owns a 37% stake in the company with the remaining share being owned by East Lindsey District 

Council. Each authority has equal voting rights.   

The CPBS board of directors includes councillors and chief officers of both authorities. The company has regularly reported its 

progress on performance of services to the client officer, with a quarterly shareholder performance reported to Scrutiny. The 

company’s business plan is approved annually by council. The ongoing governance arrangements are set out in the Service Level 

Agreements (SLA), and a Management Agreement is in place that sets out the partnership arrangements, principles and parameters.   

P
age 117



 
Core Principle 2 – Members and officer working together to achieve a common purpose with clearly defined functions and 
roles  

 

Supporting Principle Description of Governance Mechanisms 

1) Ensuring effective 

leadership throughout the 

authority and being clear 

about executive and non-

executive functions and of the 

roles and responsibilities of 

the scrutiny function 

� The Constitution sets out:  

� How the Council operates including defining the roles and responsibilities of the executive, members and officers  

� How decisions are made and the procedures which are to be followed to ensure that these are efficient, transparent and 

accountable to local people  

� How the Council manages its financial affairs including financial regulations and procurement rules 

� Clearly documented protocols governing the working relationships between members and officers  

� Elected a Leader of the Council and nominated a Cabinet made up of Cabinet Members with defined executive responsibilities.  

� Appointed a Policy Development Panel and Performance Monitoring Panel that hold Council to Account as part of Overview and 

Scrutiny arrangements.   The panels set their own work programmes and make a difference by challenging and scrutinising 

decisions, monitoring performance and taking an in depth look at how services are provided, as well as being a ‘critical friend’ 

when challenging decision makers.  

� The Governance and Audit Committee oversees the work of the Internal and External Audit functions of the Council and provides 

independent assurance of the effectiveness of governance arrangements, risk management, internal controls and financial 

management processes.  The Governance and Audit Committee has seven members.  Membership of the Committee is decided 

annually by the Council. 

� Appointed a Chief Executive to be responsible and accountable for all aspects of operational management (the Head of Paid 

Service).  

� Appointed nominated Senior Officers are responsible for proper administration of the Council’s financial affairs (Section 151 Officer 

– known as Assistant Director Finance) and for ensuring the Council acts in accordance with the law (Monitoring Officer – known 

as Assistant Director Democratic Services).   

� Established an effective Corporate Management Team including the Chief Executive and two Executive Directors, Assistant 

Director Commissioning, Assistant Director Finance, and Assistant Director Democratic Services.      

� Developed and agreed a Code of Conduct for Members and Officers to ensure that high standards of conduct are maintained.   

2) Ensuring that a 

constructive working 

relationship exists between 

elected members and officers 

and that the responsibilities of 

authority members and 

officers are carried out to a 

high standard  

3) Ensuring relationships 

between the authority , its 

partners and the public are 

clear so that each knows 

what to expect of the other 

P
age 118



 
Core Principle 3 – Promoting values for the Council and demonstrating the values of good governance through upholding 
high standards of conduct and behaviour  

 

Supporting Principle Description of Governance Mechanisms 

1) Ensuring authority 

members and officer exercise 

leadership by behaving in 

ways that exemplify high 

standards of conduct and 

effective governance  

 

� The Council has developed and promotes a culture of behaviour based on shared values, high ethical principles and good conduct 

by having:  

� An effective internal audit function which reports regularly to Audit Committee  

� A code of conduct for Members  

� A code of conduct for Officers 

� A Counter Fraud Strategy 

� A Whistle Blowing Policy  

� Financial Procedures that address Money Laundering 

� A Register of Interests for Members  

� A Register of Hospitality is held the Member Services Department 

� The Council is committed to developing its Councillors.  The Council has a Councillor Development Policy and Strategy.  A 

comprehensive training programme exists for members.  All new Members receive an induction following elections.    

� The Council has achieved the Investors in People Bronze accreditation  

� The Council has an established approach to dealing with corporate compliments, complaints and feedback.  This includes dealing 

with complaints about services, a member of staff or Councillors.   

2) Ensuring that 

organisational values are put 

into practice and are effective  

 
 
 
 
 

P
age 119



 
Core Principle 4 – Taking informed and transparent decisions which are subject to effective scrutiny and managing risk  

 

Supporting Principle Description of Governance Mechanisms 

1) Being rigorous and 

transparent about how 

decisions are taken and 

listening and acting on the 

outcome of constructive 

scrutiny 

 

The Council has effective arrangements in place to ensure decision making is effective and transparent:  

� Agendas, minutes and decisions are published on the Council’s website.     

� The Council has a Key Decision Plan which is a record of all key decisions the Executive expects to make in the next twelve 

months and is updated and published.  The purpose of the Key Decision Plan is to give advance notice of the key decisions that 

the Council is likely to make in the future. 

� The Council has an Exempt Decision Plan which shows the exempt decisions the Executive is likely to make in the next 12 

months. 

� Arrangements for Overview and Scrutiny.  The Policy Development Panel and Performance Monitoring Panel and its Task Groups 

support the work of the Cabinet and the Council as a whole.  They allow citizens to have a greater say in Council matters by 

examining matters of local concern.  The Panels set their own work programmes from the Forward Plan Key Decision Planner or 

by members requesting that the Panels scrutinise a certain issue.  These lead to reports and recommendations which advise the 

Cabinet and the Council as a whole on its policies, budget and service delivery.  The Performance Monitoring Panel can ‘call-in’ a 

decision which has been made by the Executive but not yet implemented and may recommend that the decision be reconsidered. 

� The Council has a Councillor Call for Action (CCfA) protocol. This enables a councillor to refer a matter the Overview & Scrutiny as 

an instrument of last resort, if all other attempts to resolve an issue have been unsuccessful. Residents may approach ward 

councillors and ask them to use the CCfA mechanism to resolve an outstanding matter. 

� An effective internal audit function which reports regularly to the Governance and Audit Committee  

� Risk management is embedded in the culture of the authority.  The Risk Management Policy has been approved by the 

Governance and Audit Committee and is reviewed on an annual basis.  Regular risk updates are provided to the Governance and 

Audit Committee.   

� Compass Point Business Services, the Council’s back office services provider has a Fraud section whose duties include detecting 

fraudulent claims, stopping and reducing payment in fraudulent cases and calculating overpayments of benefit on the discovery of 

the true facts.  .   

2) Having good quality 

information, advice and 

support to ensure that 

services are delivered 

effectively and are what the 

community wants/needs 

 

3) Ensuring that an effective 

risk management system is in 

place  

 

4) Using legal powers to the 

full benefit of the citizens and 

communities in their area 

 

P
age 120



 
Core Principle 5 – Developing the capacity and capability of members and officers to be effective  

 

Supporting Principle Description of Governance Mechanisms 

1) Making sure that members 

and officers have the skills, 

knowledge, experience and 

resources they need to 

perform well in their roles  

 

The Council has arrangements in place to ensure that those with responsibility for governance have the necessary skills, knowledge 

and experience the need to perform well by:  

� Operating robust recruitment and selection processes.  

� Supporting ongoing personal and professional development for both Members and officers.  Specific training has been provided 

for officers on performance management and financial management.  The authority also provides a comprehensive training 

programme for managers and staff, including political awareness training, presentation skills, time management, stress in the 

workplace and appraisal training.   

� Achieving the Investors in People Bronze accreditation  

� Individual performance appraisals are completed annually.  They assess each employee’s abilities, identify any training needs 

and measure performance against individual objectives.   

� Induction programmes are carried out for new employees and Members to ensure they have access to all relevant information, 

advice and resources to enable them to perform their roles effectively.  

2) Developing the capability 

of people with governance 

responsibilities and 

evaluating their performance 

as individuals and as a group 

  

3) Encouraging new talent for 

membership of the authority 

so that best use can made of 

individuals’ skills and 

resources in balancing 

continuity and renewal  

 

 
 

 
 
 

P
age 121



 
Core Principle 6 – Engaging with local people and other stakeholders to ensure robust public accountability   

 

Supporting Principle Description of Governance Mechanisms 

1) Exercising leadership 

through a robust scrutiny 

function which effectively 

engages local people and all 

local institutional 

stakeholders, including 

partnerships, and develops 

constructive accountability 

relationships  

 

The Council has arrangements in place to seek and respond to views of stakeholders and the community, this has been achieved by:  

� Budget consultations in order to gain feedback on how customers would like services to be shaped and to learn from good and 

bad experiences they have received from the Council.   

� The customer feedback process which seeks to encourage customers to feedback compliments and areas where we could do 

better.  

� Members of the public are invited via the Council’s website to suggest issues that they wish the Scrutiny Panels to examine 

� Views of service users are sought when re-designing services or making efficiency savings that have an impact on residents or on 

the delivery of services.  Consultations take place to ensure services users who may be affected are given the opportunity to 

share their views and scrutinize proposals , before any changes are made 

� The council consults with key partners and stakeholders when it completes consultations.  Examples include: the locals council 

tax support scheme consultation and sheltered housing consultation. 

� The Council has a Key Decision Plan which is a record of all key decisions the Council and Executive expects to make in the next 

twelve months and is updated and published monthly.  The purpose of the Key Decision Plan is to give advance notice of the key 

decisions that the Council is likely to make in the future. 

� Developed an informative and user friendly website to publish and share relevant information with the community. 

� The Council has an effective human resources function, provided by Compass Point Business Services that reports regularly to 

the Corporate Management Team.  This includes development and maintenance of a wide range of employee related policies 

and procedures.  Relevant employees and Union representatives are consulted on employee related matters. 

 

2) Taking an active and 

planned approach to dialogue 

with and accountability to the 

public to ensure effective and 

appropriate service delivery 

whether directly by the 

authority, in partnership or by 

commissioning   

3) Making best use of human 

resources by taking an active 

and planned approach to 

meet responsibilities to staff   

 

P
age 122



SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
 
Report of: Interim Business Development and Transformation Manager 
 
To:    Governance and Audit Committee – 26 June 2014 
    
(Author:  James Edwards - Performance Officer) 
 
Subject: Risk Management  
 
Purpose: To update the Governance and Audit Committee on Risk Management 
 

Recommendation: 
 
1. That this report be noted.   
 

 

1. Background & Process  
 

1.1 The last risk report to The Governance and Audit Committee was in March 2014 and over 
the last 3 months, officers have continued to manage operational risks through service area 
data entry books on Shine, following the move away from the Inphase system during 2013.  
Strategic risks are managed in a similar spreadsheet also held on Shine.   

 

1.2 The strategic and operational risk registers are up to date and are reviewed formally on a 
quarterly basis.  In addition to this formal update, Officers, CMT and other stakeholders can 
add, update or propose the removal of risks, in line with business needs at any time. 

 

1.3 The updated strategic risk register includes 9 strategic risks (see Appendix A). In the past, 
this report has been by exception, but as there are just 9 in total, all low, medium and high 
risks are included and available in this report.   These cover the over-arching risks that may 
impact of the strategic direction of the council, rather than risks linked to business continuity 
or those that impact discreet service areas. 

 

1.4 The review of strategic risk is a standing item on the CMT agenda (quarterly)  
 

1.5 During Quarter 4 of 2013-14 an audit of risk management was undertaken by Audit 
Lincolnshire.  The auditors were satisfied with risk management arrangements and gave 
substantial assurance.  The findings and recommendations from the audit have been 
acknowledged and noted. 

 

1.6 Risk management arrangements are currently being reviewed as part of the transformation 
work. 

 

1.7 Risks are grouped into two categories: 
  

• Strategic - These are risks that affect the whole and long term plan of the council. These 
risks could fundamentally impact upon: 

o Our reputation 
o The organisation we are 
o The dependable, accountable delivery of public services 

 

Page 123

Agenda Item 10.



• Operational – These risks concern the day to day activities in the delivery of functions 
and services. 

 
1.8   Risks are rated using a 3 X 3 matrix through a numerical number that combines the impact 

score of the risk occurring, with the likelihood score of it happening 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1.9 Risks are then classed as High, Medium or Low risks dependant on their rating: 

• High – rating of 6 or over 

• Medium – rating between 3 and 4 

• Low – rating of 2 or under 
 
These are also identified by the following colours within our performance management data 
entry workbooks and reports: 

   

High   

Medium   

Low   

 
1.10  Ideally we would like to manage all risks down to the ‘Low’ rating and we try to achieve this 

through ‘controls’ that are put into place to reduce the likelihood of them occurring and/or the 
impact if they do happen. 

 
1.11 In addition to trying to ‘control’ risks, we have to consider the fact that they may still occur, 

therefore we need to know what we would do to ‘mitigate’ any foreseeable damage that may 
occur as a result. 

 
Risk Summary  

 
1.12 This risk summary covers two areas: 
  

1. The risk summary table shows the total number of risks by category and the percentage 
of high, medium and low risks within each category.   

 
2. The exceptions report, a detailed report to provide focus on high level risks. 

 
The risk champions may wish to feedback to the committee on any areas they feel are of 
particular concern. 

 
Risk Summary Table (last known ratings): 
 

Page 124



 The risk position at 16th June 2014 was as follows: 
 

Risk Category  Total 
Number of 
Risks  

% Low Risks % Medium Risks % High Risks 
 

Strategic  9 10% 45% 45% 

Operational  66 42% 50% 8% 

 
This tells us that: 
 

• Strategic risk are split equally between high and medium level risks 

• Operational risks are predominantly medium and low level risks  
 

  Therefore: 
 

Strategic Risk Overview:  Overall rating is Medium 
  Operational Risk Overview:  Overall rating is Medium   
   

The risk position at 18th March 2014 was as follows: 
 

Risk Category  Total 
Number of 
Risks  

% Low Risks % Medium Risks % High Risks 
 

Strategic  11 9% 36% 55% 

Operational  62 34% 56% 10% 

 
 For the Exceptions Report please see Appendix B.  

2  OPTIONS  

 
That Risk Reporting continues in this format. 
 
That Risk Reporting is continued in a different format. 

3 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION 

 
To note risks for the risk position as at 16th June 2014 
 

4 IMPLICATIONS 

 
4.1  Carbon Footprint & Environmental Issues 
 

There are no implications associated with this report.   
 
4.2   Constitution & Legal 
 

There are no implications associated with this report.   
 
 
 

Page 125



4.3 Contracts 
 

There are no implications associated with this report.   
 
4.4 Corporate Plan 

 
There are no implications associated with this report.    

 
4.5 Crime and Disorder  
 

There are no implications associated with this report.   
 
4.6 Equality and Diversity & Human Rights 
 

There are no implications associated with this report.   
 
4.7 Financial  

 
There are no implications associated with this report.   
 

4.8 Risk Management  
 

This report considers the authority’s Strategic and Operational risks.   
  
4.9 Staffing 

 
There are no implications associated with this report.   

 
4.10 Stakeholders / Consultation 

 
There are no implications associated with this report.   

 
5 WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED 
 

This section is not applicable to this report.  
  
___________________________________________________________________ 
 
Background papers:-  This section is not applicable to this report.  
___________________________________________________________________ 
 
Lead Contact Officer 
Name/Post:    James Edwards – Performance Team  
Telephone Number:  01775 764513  
Email:     jedwards2@sholland.gov.uk 
 
Director/Officer attending the meeting: James Edwards - Performance Officer 
 
Key Decision – No 
 
Appendices attached to this report:  
Appendix A - Strategic Risk Report 
Appendix B –Exceptions Report – Operational Report 
 
  

Page 126



Q4

Service Area

D
a

te
s
 A

d
d

e
d

D
a

te
s
 C

lo
s
e

d

Risk Title Description Risk Consequences
Risk 

Owner 

Inherent

Risk 

Impact

Inherent

Risk

Likelihood

Inherent 

Risk 

Rating

Current

Risk 

Impact

Current

Risk

Likelihood

Current 

Risk 

Rating

Proximity
Existing Controls (What is being 

done to avoid this)

R
is

k
 I

m
p

a
c
t

R
is

k
 L

ik
e

lih
o

o
d

R
is

k
 s

c
o

re

R
is

k
 L

e
tt

e
r

Comments

D
ir
e

c
ti
o

n
 o

f 

tr
a

v
e

l

Assistant 

Director Finance 

0
1

/0
2

/2
0

1
4

Medium Term Financial 

Strategy.

Medium term financial 

strategy demonstrates a 

lack of sustainability 

over the medium term 

as a result of central 

government funding 

reductions. An 

efficiency programme, 

reviews or income 

streams need to be 

developed and 

implemented in order to 

address future funding 

gaps.

This would result in the 

need to make cuts or 

further efficiencies 

Mark 

Finch
3 3 9 3 3 9 Ongoing

• Develop longer term 

transformation programme 

• Shared services 

• Financial planning

• Financial modelling 

• VFM/Efficiency Strategy 

• Reserves 

• Control of payroll costs  

• Lump sum payment to 

Lincolnshire County Council 

Pension Fund included in 

budget.

• Keep a watching brief on 

Central Govt measures to 

reduce impact of public sector 

pension schemes 

3 3 9 H
This risk has been reviewed and 

no changes have been identified
��������

Assistant 

Director 

Democratic 

Services 0
1

/0
2

/2
0

1
4

Failure to deliver the 

Council's Corporate 

Priorities.

Failure to deliver the 

Council’s corporate 

priorities as set out in 

the corporate plan 2011 

- 15.

Would lead to missed 

targets and failure to 

deliver objectives and 

may result in the 

Council suffering 

reputational damage 

and a failure to deliver 

priorities to residents.

Vicky 

Thomson
2 2 4 2 2 4 Ongoing

• Performance Management 

Framework

• Programme board to review 

performance against the 

corporate plan

• Regular performance reporting

• Corporate priorities reviewed 

and set against corporate plan 

2011-15

• Regular communication 

regarding performance 

communicated to all staff

• Preparation for the corporate 

plan from 2015 onwards has 

commenced. 

2 2 4 M
CMT requested that Dale 

Robinson assess this risk
��������

Assistant 

Director Finance 

0
1

/0
2

/2
0

1
4

Reduction in discount in 

second year of local 

Council Tax Support 

Scheme leads to 

reduced collection of 

Council Tax.

Introduction of local 

Council Tax Support 

Scheme leads to 

reduced collection of 

Council Tax.

•  Lower Council Tax 

receipts

• Financial impact on 

Council budget  

• A reduction in the 

Council Tax base 

(caused by changes in 

number of claimants)

Mark 

Finch
3 3 9 3 3 9 Ongoing

• Monitor collection through the 

monthly CPBS performance 

reports 

• Reserve created to help with 

potential initial pressures / 

timing pressures

• Review scheme - opportunity 

to amend on an annual basis.  

• After the first full year of 

running the new scheme there 

will be more data and statistics 

available in order to assess the 

long term impact of scheme 

changes 

2 3 6 H

The impact of this risk has been 

changed to 2 which is decrease 

from last quarter. This is due to 

the scheme being in it's second 

year and no significant impact on 

collection rates being 

experienced. 

����

South Holland District Council - Strategic Risks 2013/14

1

P
age 127



Q4

Service Area

D
a

te
s
 A

d
d

e
d

D
a

te
s
 C

lo
s
e

d

Risk Title Description Risk Consequences
Risk 

Owner 

Inherent

Risk 

Impact

Inherent

Risk

Likelihood

Inherent 

Risk 

Rating

Current

Risk 

Impact

Current

Risk

Likelihood

Current 

Risk 

Rating

Proximity
Existing Controls (What is being 

done to avoid this)

R
is

k
 I

m
p

a
c
t

R
is

k
 L

ik
e

lih
o

o
d

R
is

k
 s

c
o

re

R
is

k
 L

e
tt

e
r

Comments

D
ir
e

c
ti
o

n
 o

f 

tr
a

v
e

l

South Holland District Council - Strategic Risks 2013/14

Assistant 

Director Finance 

0
1

/0
2

/2
0

1
4

Business Rates 

Retention Scheme.

Business rates retention 

scheme leaves the 

Council exposed to 

changes  in the 

business tax base and 

collection performance.  

Exposure to los of rates 

if re-rating of power 

stations occurs

• Reduced levels of 

income 

• Financial impact on 

Council budget

Mark 

Finch
3 3 9 3 3 9 Ongoing

• Monitor collection through the 

monthly CPBS performance 

reports 

• Reserve created to help with 

potential initial pressures / 

timing pressures

• After the first full year of 

running the new scheme there 

will be more data and statistics 

available in order to assess the 

long term impact of scheme 

changes 

• Outstanding appeal on two 

gas fired power stations could 

have a significant impact on 

retained business rates 

reducing income to safety net 

levels.   

3 3 9 H

The description has been 

updated to include exposure to 

power station re-valuation

��������

Director of 

Commissioning 

0
1

/0
2

/2
0

1
4

Ending of Disabled 

Facilities Grants 

payments to district 

councils, with funds 

transferring to Better 

Care funding stream 

(integrated health and 

social care pot)  

Existing funding 

arrangements for DFG’s 

where central 

government makes a 

funding award directly 

to housing authorities 

each year will end in 

14/15. And from 15/16 

the funds will transfer to 

the Better Care funding 

regime. There will no 

longer be any dedicated 

funding for the Council 

to undertake this work – 

there will however 

remain a clear statutory 

responsibility to 

undertake disabled 

adaptations. There is an 

expectation that 

organisations involved 

will work together and 

make services more 

integrated                                                    

The Council will have to 

draw entirely  on its own 

existing available 

revenue  funding to 

meet the statutory 

requirements under 

DFG regulations

Maxine 

O'Mahony
2 2 4 2 2 4

Engage with appropriate 

stakeholders including LCC and 

the CCG to make the case that 

at least existing funding levels 

should be maintained and that 

the Council participates in 

devising proposals to integrate 

these services with health and 

social care providers.                                     

2 2 4 M

This risk has been reviewed and 

no changes have been identified.  

The wording has been updated 

via email with Duncan Hall

��������

Assistant 

Director 

Commissioning

0
1

/0
2

/2
0

1
4 Failure to contribute to 

the growth of existing 

businesses in the 

district. 

Failure to contribute to 

the growth of existing 

businesses in the 

districts and support 

inward investment. 

• Reduced business 

rate levels 

• Poor job growth 

• Poor resource 

efficiency 

• Poor investment by 

SME's

Rob 

Walker
1 2 2 1 2 2 Ongoing

• Economic Development 

activity engaging with local 

business in order to provide 

support and assist 

development. 

• Grants for Growth - support for 

SMEs, providing practical help 

and financial assistance to help 

them reduce costs and increase 

competitiveness and resilience.

1 2 2 L
This risk has been reviewed and 

no changes have been identified
��������

Assistant 

Director 

Commissioning

0
1

/0
2

/2
0

1
4

Failure to maximise 

trading opportunities.

Failure to maximise 

trading opportunities.

• Lack of exploitation of 

assets and 

opportunities, e.g. 

trading arms (CPBS) 

• Trading arms 

complicate the business 

Maxine 

O'Mahony
2 2 4 2 2 4 Ongoing

• Business plans will be 

developed for all trading 

platforms / trading 

opportunities. 

• Support continued growth of 

Compass Point Business 

Services (CPBS) 

2 2 4 M

This risk has been reviewed and 

no changes have been identified.  

Owner changed to Maxine 

O'Mahony

��������

2

P
age 128



Q4

Service Area

D
a

te
s
 A

d
d

e
d

D
a

te
s
 C

lo
s
e

d

Risk Title Description Risk Consequences
Risk 

Owner 

Inherent

Risk 

Impact

Inherent

Risk

Likelihood

Inherent 

Risk 

Rating

Current

Risk 

Impact

Current

Risk

Likelihood

Current 

Risk 

Rating

Proximity
Existing Controls (What is being 

done to avoid this)

R
is

k
 I

m
p

a
c
t

R
is

k
 L

ik
e

lih
o

o
d

R
is

k
 s

c
o

re

R
is

k
 L

e
tt

e
r

Comments

D
ir
e

c
ti
o

n
 o

f 

tr
a

v
e

l

South Holland District Council - Strategic Risks 2013/14

Director of 

Commissioning 

0
1

/0
2

/2
0

1
4 Staff recruitment and 

retention at all levels 

within both 

organisations 

Staff recruitment and 

retention at all levels 

within both 

organisations 

• Loss of key senior 

staff 

• Loss of staff in face of 

economic growth and 

more lucrative 

opportunities elsewhere 

• Loss of staff 

knowledge 

Maxine 

O'Mahony
3 2 6 3 2 6 Ongoing

• Annual staff surveys regarding 

shared management and 

general staff issues.

• Programme of non-salary 

rewards to be introduced for 

staff, being looked at 2014/15

• Staff training

• Providing support for staff to 

have a voice within the 

authority - supporting the staff 

forum which provides staff with 

the opportunity to raise 

concerns. •  Setting up a staff 

forum 

3 2 6 H
This risk has been reviewed and 

no changes have been identified
��������

Assistant 

Director 

Commissioning

0
1

/0
5

/2
0

1
4 Failure to effectively 

implement joint 

corporate business 

continuity plan

Failure to effectively 

implement joint 

corporate business 

continuity plan

• Impact on delivery of 

services 

• Loss of IT systems

• Ineffective 

communication 

•  Failure to provide 

suitable premises •  

Failure to provide 

suitable premises

Rob 

Walker
3 1 3 3 1 3 Now

Business impact analysis is 

place; service areas have 

business continuity plans in 

place; business continuity plans 

to be tested; out of hours 

procedures in place; mutual aid 

/ support arrangements in place 

with Breckland Council and 

neighbouring authorities; 

business continuity plans 

reviewed on a regular basis 

through business continuity 

group.

3 1 3 M
Risk identified with Riana 

Rudland 01/05/14
����

3

P
age 129



T
his page is intentionally left blank



SH Operational Risks - Exceptions, Plan: Target, View Date: 2013-06-3009 August 2013 13:58 Page 1 of 1Q4

Dept

R
is

k
 R

e
fe

re
n

c
e

D
a

te
 A

d
d

e
d

D
a

te
 C

lo
s
e

d

Risk Title Description Risk Consequences
Risk 

Owner

Inherent

Risk 

Impact

Inherent

Risk

Likelihood

Inherent 

Risk 

Rating

C
u

rr
e

n
t 
R

is
k
 I
m

p
a

c
t

C
u

rr
e

n
t 
R

is
k
 

L
ik

e
lih

o
o

d

C
u

rr
e

n
t 
R

is
k
 s

c
o

re

C
u

rr
e

n
t 
R

is
k
 L

e
tt
e

r

Comments

D
ir

e
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
tr

a
v
e

l

Community 

Development N
E

W

0
1

/0
7

/2
0

1
3

Loss of service through 

natural or manmade 

disaster (flood, fire, 

epidemic, riot etc), 

utilities breakdown, 

major equipment 

breakdown, building/ 

major equipment end of 

useful life

Loss of service through 

natural or manmade 

disaster (flood, fire, 

epidemic, riot etc), 

utilities breakdown, 

major equipment 

breakdown, building/ 

major equipment end of 

useful life

Loss of service including 

cancellation of events 

and hires

Loss of income

Reputational damage

Damage to irreplaceable 

heritage items/ building

Claims for loss of 

service (contractors/ 

leaseholders)

Cost of re-opening

Phil Perry 3 2 6 3 2 6 H
This risk has been reviewed and 

no changes identified. ��

Community 

Development N
E

W

0
1

/0
7

/2
0

1
3

Loss of service through 

withdrawal of SHDC 

subsidy

Loss of service through 

withdrawal of SHDC 

subsidy

Closure/ partial closure 

of facilities/ services

Damage to irreplaceable 

heritage items/ building

Reduction in public 

benefit

Impact on town centre/ 

district economy

Impact on night-time 

economy (reduction in 

choice/ quality)

Loss of local/ regional/

Phil Perry 3 1 3 3 2 6 H

The South Holland Centre 

currently has a tranformation 

project group investigating future 

service delivery and Leisure 

provision currently has a Member 

task group reviewing the service.  

No changes to this risk have been 

determined at this time.  

�

Environmental 

Services

 S
H

-E
S

-O
R

 0
5

 

3
1

/0
8

/2
0

1
0

Burial Space

Lack of space for new 

burials as a result 

cemetery becoming full.

No space for burials in 

Spalding cemetery

Glen 

Chapman
2 2 4 3 2 6 H

Risk reviewed and no changes to 

risk identified. Project work 

continuing including consideration 

of alternative land and resolving 

objections. 

��

CPBS - Resilience - 

IT

R
 -

 1
1

9

0
1

/0
2

/2
0

1
3 Risk of reliance on 3rd 

Party Suppliers to 

deliver key elements of 

ICT systems.

Risk of reliance on 3rd 

Party Suppliers to 

deliver key elements of 

ICT systems.

IT Service unable to 

deliver to customers 

expectations and the 

service cannot control 

the pace of change.

Gary 

Stephens
3 2 6 3 2 6 H

This risk has been reviewed and 

no changes have been identified. ��

Member & Electoral 

Services

 S
H

-L
S

-O
R

 0
2

 

3
0

/0
4

/2
0

1
2

Capacity and processes 

to monitor section 106 

agreements

• Lost financial 

opportunities 

• Legal challenge from 

developers

• Challenge from the 

community

Thomson, 

Vicky
2 2 4 3 2 6 H

Increased impact because some 

section 106 agreements could be 

very valuable.  Legal Services 

Coordinator is currently 

investigating arrangements at 

SHDC for monitoring.

�

South Holland District Council - Operational Risks 2014/15

P
age 131



T
his page is intentionally left blank



SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
Report of:  Assistant Director, Democratic Services 
 
To:    Governance and Audit Committee – 26 June 2014 
 
(Author: Christine Morgan – Member Services Officer) 
 
Subject: Governance and Audit Committee Work Programme 
 
Purpose: To set out the Work Programme of the Governance and Audit Committee 
 

 
Recommendation: 
 
That the Committee gives consideration to the contents of this report and identifies any 
issues for discussion. 
 

 
1.0 INTRODUCTION 
 
1.1 The Governance and Audit Committee regularly considers a variety of reports from Internal 

Audit, External Audit and the Section 151 Officer. 
 
1.2 Many of these reports are considered at regular intervals, the majority being annually, half-

yearly or quarterly. 
 
1.3 In addition to these reports, the Committee also considers issues on an ad-hoc basis with 

some reports arising from consideration of items at previous meetings. 
 
2.0 WORK PROGRAMME 
 
2.1 Attached at Appendix 1 to this report is the Work Programme for the Governance and Audit 

Committee.  It lays out all meeting dates for the 2014/15 municipal year.  Alongside each of 
these meeting dates are issues considered by the Committee on a regular basis together 
with the author of the report, its purpose and whether it is mandatory, and the frequency with 
which it is considered. 

  
2.2 It has been agreed that this Work Programme be a regular item for consideration on the 

Committee’s agenda, thus creating a formal document laying out the work of the Committee 
in a clear, structured and organised way.   

 
2.3 The attached document contains items considered on a regular basis, and also any ad hoc 

issues as and when they arise, for example, issues raised at a meeting to be covered at a 
future meeting, and any one-off issues.  

 
3.0 IMPLICATIONS 
 
3.1 Carbon Footprint/Environmental Issues 
  

Carbon Footprint/Environmental implications have been considered and in the opinion of the 
author, there are none arising out of this report. 
 
 
 

Page 133

Agenda Item 11.



3.2 Constitution and Legal 
 

Constitutional and Legal implications have been considered and in the opinion of the author, 
there are none arising out of this report.  However, the Work Programme should assist in 
providing a clear programme of work for the Governance and Audit Committee in line with 
the requirements laid out in the Council’s Constitution.  
 

3.3 Contracts 
 
 Contracts implications have been considered and in the opinion of the author, there are none 

arising out of this report. 
 
3.4 Corporate Priorities 
 
 Corporate Priority implications have been considered and in the opinion of the author, there 

are none arising out of this report. 
 
3.5 Crime and Disorder 
 
 Crime and Disorder implications have been considered and in the opinion of the author, there 

are none arising out of this report. 
 
3.6 Equality and Diversity/Human Rights 
 

Equality and Diversity/Human Rights implications have been considered and in the opinion of 
the author, there are none arising out of this report. 

 
3.7 Financial 
 

Financial implications have been considered and in the opinion of the author, there are none 
arising out of this report. 

 
3.8 Risk Management 
 

Risk Management implications have been considered and in the opinion of the author, there 
are none arising out of this report.  However, one of the roles of the Governance and Audit 
Committee is to monitor the effective development and operation of risk management and 
corporate governance in the Council and the Work Programme should assist in keeping track 
of risk issues. 

 
3.9 Staffing 
 
 Staffing implications have been considered and in the opinion of the author, there are none 

arising out of this report. 
 
3.10 Stakeholders/Consultation/Timescales  
 
 Stakeholder/Consultation/Timescale implications have been considered and in the opinion of 

the author, there are none arising out of this report. 
 
4.0 WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED 
 
4.1 No wards or communities will be affected by this report. 
 
 

Page 134



 

 
Background papers:-  None  
 

 
 
Lead Contact Officer 
Name/Post: Christine Morgan (Member Services Officer) 
Telephone Number: 01775 764454 
Email:  cmorgan@sholland.gov.uk 
 
Appendices attached to this report: 
Appendix A – Work Programme for the Governance and Audit Committee 

Page 135



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX A 

 

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT – CALENDAR OF WORK PROGRAMME ITEMS 

 

Date of Meeting Agenda item Author Purpose and whether mandatory Frequency 
 

26 June 2014 Annual Report (report on the past year) Internal Audit Internal Audit opinion to support draft 
Annual Governance Statement 
Mandatory 

Annual 

 Internal Audit – Audit Plan Progress 
Report 

Internal Audit To update Committee on progress of 
the plan. 
Not mandatory, but part of 
Governance role. 

Quarterly 

 Draft Annual Governance Statement Section 151 Officer Approval 
Mandatory 

Annual 

 Draft Statement of Accounts Section 151 Officer To approve financial statements prior 
to release to External Audit 
Mandatory 

Annual 

 Treasury Management Performance 
(Annual Report) 

Section 151 Officer To comply with Treasury 
Management Strategy 
Mandatory 

Annual 

 Local Code of Governance/Update Section 151 Officer Good practice One-off item 

 Fraud Report 
 

Section 151 Officer Part of Governance role – not 
mandatory 

Annual 

 Business Continuity Update Report 
(report by exception) 

Riana Rudland Part of Governance role – not 
mandatory 

To each 
meeting 

 Risk Management Update Report (report 
by exception) 

James Edwards Part of Governance role – not 
mandatory 

To each 
meeting 

25 September 2014  ISA 260 Report (previously know as the 
Annual Governance Report)  

External audit Mandatory report to those charged 
with Governance. 

Annual 

 Internal Audit – Audit Plan Progress 
Report 
 

Internal Audit To update Committee on progress of 
the plan. 
Not mandatory, but part of 

Quarterly 

P
age 137



Date of Meeting Agenda item Author Purpose and whether mandatory Frequency 
 

 Governance role. 

 Annual Governance Statement Section 151 Officer Mandatory – approval required Annual 
 

 Statement of Accounts (Formal Approval)  Section 151 Officer Mandatory – approval required Annual 

 Business Continuity Update Report 
(report by exception) 

Riana Rudland Part of Governance role – not 
mandatory 

To each 
meeting 

 Risk Management Update Report (report 
by exception) 

James Edwards Part of Governance role – not 
mandatory 

To each 
meeting 

November/December 
2014 

Special meeting – HRA Draft Estimates 
and Business Plan 

Section 151 Officer Delegated duty to review HRA 
Estimates. 
Not statutory requirement 

Annual 

18 December 2014 Annual Audit Letter 
 
 

External Audit Mandatory/Constitutional requirement. 
To approve audit fees. 

Annually 

 Internal Audit – Audit Plan Progress 
Report 
 
 

Internal Audit To update Committee on progress of 
the plan. 
Not mandatory, but part of 
Governance role. 

Quarterly 

 Treasury Management Half-Yearly 
Performance Update 
 

Section 151 Officer To comply with Treasury 
Management Strategy, reporting 
requirements 

Half Yearly 

 Treasury Management Strategy 
Statement, Minimum Revenue Provision 
Strategy and Annual Investment Strategy 
(SEAN HOWSAM TO ATTEND) 

Section 151 Officer Mandatory requirement. 
To review Treasury Management 
Strategy and approve Prudential 
Indicators. 

Annual 

 Business Continuity Update Report 
(report by exception)  

Riana Rudland Part of Governance role – not 
mandatory 

To each 
meeting 

 Risk Management Update Report (report 
by exception) 

James Edwards Part of Governance role – not 
mandatory 

To each 
meeting 

10 March 2015 Audit Plan 
 

External Audit External Audit Plan – Mandatory 
Approval 

Annual 

P
age 138



Date of Meeting Agenda item Author Purpose and whether mandatory Frequency 
 

 Grant Claims 2013/14 
 

External Audit External Audit Certification of Grant 
Claims – Mandatory Approval 

Annual 

 Internal Audit – Audit Plan Progress 
Report 
 
 

Internal Audit To update Committee on progress of 
the plan. 
Not mandatory, but part of 
Governance role. 

Quarterly 

 Internal Audit Plan (plan for the year 
ahead) 

Internal Audit Annual Internal Audit Workplan – 
Mandatory Approval 

Annual 

 2013/14 Accounts – Accounting Code of 
Practice update, accounting policies, 
significant estimates and critical 
judgements to be used in the preparation 
of the Council’s 2013/14 Statement of 
Accounts 

Section 151 Officer Approval of accounting policies prior 
to preparation of financial statements 
– Good Practice 

Annual 

 Business Continuity Update Report 
(report by exception)  

Riana Rudland Part of Governance role – not 
mandatory 

To each 
meeting 

 Risk Management Update Report (report 
by exception) 

James Edwards Part of Governance role – not 
mandatory 

To each 
meeting 

At the end of each municipal year, liaise with S151 Officer to programme regular items in the Work Programme for the next year 
 

 

P
age 139



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2.a) The Governance and Audit Committee meeting held on 26 March 2014 (enclosed).
	2.b) The Special Governance and Audit Committee meeting held on 14 May 2014 (enclosed).
	3. Fraud Report 2013-14
	4. Annual Internal Audit Report 2013-14
	Item 4 - Appendix A

	5. Internal Audit
	6. Draft Annual Governance Statement 2013-14
	Item 6 - App A Draft AGS 2013-14

	7. Pre-Audit 2013-14 Financial Statements
	8. Annual Treasury Management Review
	9. Local Code of Corporate Governance
	Item 9 - App A Local Code of Corporate Governance

	10. Risk Management
	Item 10 - Appendix A SHDC Strategic Risks Jun14
	Item 10 - Appendix B SHDC OperationalRisks Jun14

	11. Governance and Audit Committee Work Programme
	Item 11 - Appendix A


